“Soversign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" J5C

Cansalidated Financial Statements

Yaar ended December 31, 2007
with Independent Auditors” Report



Sovereign Wealth Fund "Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consolidated Financial Statements
CONTENTS

Page
Independant Auditors” Report
Consalidated Financinl Statements

Consplidated Balance SHEel .....c.oocimiommmmmmsm e ke el s i L FP— 1-2
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ... ol R R L e b F=d
Consolidated Statement of Changes in EGUILY ... i 6
Consobidated Statement of Cash Flows .. T A O LA AT R M [ P -8
Notes to the consolidated financial SERLCTMENLS ..o oo o s e A -
] TOTVMBOEIN . oreermes il s ot i o kbbb beretar o b e im et e e St
Basis of preparation.... i e i L e e A e At sy Iﬂ
Summeary uE‘slgmfmm m:uuntmg puin::es e e R
Critical accounting estimates and Jud.g_maul STt ) U .
AT e e B SRttt S o iz
Discontinued operations and assets classified as eld for SA1E v i g
Property, plant and egquipment.... L i i d s S
T T S —————— <
[nvestments in jodnt VenTres And ASS0CTAES ... i i i b A e s 47
10, Loans to cusiomers... . R R R S
11.  Amounts due rmmmd:: msnm:n:-m A PN s s S iy T T
12, Crihor fnamcinl BE5EES <. e cememeesimimimimmin s s oni i e e i e we  S r H L1
|3, (Orther TOn-CMITenT BEEEIR .ot e i siasis i P S S R S R T !
4. Invemiories.., T i A o e )
15. Trade su:mmu mcmable anl:l uum nn'rr.m a.sser.s s B T = R A e A T
{6, Cashand cash equivalents.... e
YT BRI e it sishbe o g s i e e remrere e A 57
DB P T IEIRE iovcicovamssomamimrmsirsims e e LA Bt 5 b4 o e AR e i
10,  Loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstam ... it i L
20, {Mher non-current Babiles .o i mimime st st B R e T TS LU LEPUT i) 63
T, TPOVIBEIIES o ososesevarsrmrmrrr iy rm s i bms s kb AARE R Pyt R SRR AR 12 e A et b &7
B4, Oer CUITERE T IIES . i iesmuarmimieinas e st e b AR foamr 3871 b AL P A AR 69
R T 1T 11| - S G e s et 1T R &4
6 COVETTINUEDT BIBTHS cavarererirrmesensrissssedediararararam s bnpeie i 480 1A s e e i AL PR T e R T
27, Costof sales ... ! e e e i )
2%, General pnd m'mﬁ.u':atm: npmses ......................... e g e vmrres e s KL TR s ™
20, Transporiation and s.cil:lng EXPENSES. .. i e e i e T
30, Impairment loss.. SO O NI LARCP RS SRy |
31. Other operating mcnrne e B e ST N e e PRV T PO DTEY | |
32, Other operating m;p:rns:a b e A Lo A E e AR IR L S R M
T T T L T SRR ———————— T R 73
14, Finance mcome .. B N P R & S P B PR P TR .
35. Share of income in 1 pssociates ar'u:l Jmna venures . e o o sty P
36, [NCOIME X CXPENSES. mrererererememeeesissinia PP F R TS el b T el EriEt e et T i T3
A7, Consobdation - o it s ot AR e et Kl i e e S SRR Ry e e )
38.  Significant non-cash rAREACHONG o ciimririrrers e esasas o i r s e AR ST 78
3%, Related party disclosures......... SRR e 78
40.  Financial instruments and financial risk munment uhj:v:uv:s and poliches ... o B
41, Commitments and a:untmgm:ms USRI S S RN,

42, Seament reporting ... A A ) oy e Ol SO S I G L L Sk T REERO TS, '
FLO T -0 C—— R 05

Mo T, e L 2



l”“““llun...

Zll FrnsT & YOUNG

Ermil & Young LLP
£sental Tower

AlFardhi Awe,, TTIT
dimady, Haralfstan

TOO wdgsicT ang PAdrn
ICaaNTTAN, AMATE

PO Anb-Tapat,, TTT
s sEcaumaf Tavs

Tel: +7 CFIT) 250 EAE0 A 4T VST 58 5950
Fan LT (T2T1 258 5961 Damp: o7 (T27) 258 BOA]
. By comf ks akFstan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

To the Shareholder of "Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Razyna"” J5C

We have audited the accompanying consolldated financial statements of "Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-
Kamyna™ JEC and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consclidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and & summary of significant
stcounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentatlon of these consolldated financial
statemsnts in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal controd as
managemeant determines s necessary Lo enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror.

Audifors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Aoditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ofhical requirements and plan and perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consclidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disciosures in the
consclidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud ar errcr, In making those risk assessments, the avditor consldars internal controf relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in fhe circumstances, but nof for the purpose of expressing an
cpinion on the effectiveness of the entity's infernal control An awdit also includes evaluating the
approgriatenass of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, 25 well a5 evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we hawve chtained is sufficient and apgropriate to provide a basis for cur
Audil apinian.
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In our apinkon, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of “Soverelgn Wealth Fund "Samruk-Kazyna" J5C and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011,
and thair financial performance and their cash flows for Ehe year then ended in accondance with
Internaticnal Financlal Reporting Standards.
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| hudit Partner 7 General Director
| Ernst & Young LLF

State Audit License for audit activities on the
territary of the Republic of Kazakhstan:

iseries MMKD-2 Mo, 0000003 issued by the

indstry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan

Alexandr Nazarkulov A
Auditor

D059 dated & January 2012

23 May 2012



Soversign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consolidatad Financial Statements
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

&g at Decamber 31,
ity mitions of Note 2041 2040°
ASS5ETS
Hon-current assets
Froperty, plant snd aquipment T E,0328 648 4 3536682
Intangible assels B 306,988 286,172
Inwestments in joint venturas and associates a 1,294 882 1,096,077
Loans fo customers [ 1,072,530 1.214,144
Amounts due from credit institutions 11 34T BT 2 370,566
Deedarnad Bk assel 8 56,813 194,713
Oifer nan-currand financial assats 12 404 882 618,505
Other non-current assels 13 300,77 222 885
= 8,903,234 B,244 544
Current assets
Inventosies 14 ITE 457 341,552
WAT recoverable 87,816 T3 567
Income tax prapaid 70,534 45,508
Trade acsounts receivable 16 276,552 251 608
Loans bo cushmss 10 GET, 100 562 648
Amaounts due from credit institutions 11 700,528 B4 085
Ciher cumant financial assels 12 338,025 445,354
Ciher curment asasts 15 275,211 236,804
Cash and cash eguivalents - 16 1,840,700 1,638 460
4,440,024 4 563 823
Aesels classified as hald for sale B 70,147 5,841

TOTAL ASSETS 13,413,405 12,815,308




Soverelgn Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC

Consalidated Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued]

Az gt December 31,

M il of Tenge Mate 20111 2010%
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity holder of the parent
Share capsal 17 4,050,383 3.E51.,909
Fevalualian resene for avallable-for-gale wesimants {10B,5497) 20652
Cumrency franslation resenm 186,145 172,613
Ofer capltal reserves 17,656 21,022
_Retmined samings B23433 A37T. 822
4,970,820 4 553,048
Hon-controling interest L 758 683 TEE, 366
Total equity 5,729,603 EAZZ 414
Non-cument liabilities
Barrowings 18 3,645,036 3,228,004
Leans from the Gowernment of the Repubic of Razakhsian 18 430,747 405,782
Finance lease liabilites 14,307 14 879
Prowlghons 21 70,564 66,556
Defermad tax liability 35 248,666 257 412
Employee beneafit liabiity 22 A7 ,908 28 408
Amournts due fo the customars 23 481,375 556,345
Derivatives 7,348 7062
Oither non-cument iabilities A 426,703 432 261
5414652 4 996 TH4
Current liabikities
Borroaings 18 550,740 854 117
Loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan 19 438,968 473,195
Finance |eass liabiities B 451 o.317
Provisions 21 151,608 115,405
Employes benefit liability 22 3,631 3735
Income faxes payable 38 2,945 4 480
Traede and other payablas 442,640 450,387
Amounts due to the cstomers 23 255,289 B4 061
Darivatives 6,578 70,855
ther current liabilities 24 408,148 340,430
2,265,020 2,396,062
Lignilifies associsted with assets classified as hald for sase ] 130 a8
Total llakilities 7883802 7,302,804

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

13413405 12815308

“Cerlain mmmbars showe fers do por correspond to the 2010 consofidared financial statements and reflect
aayustmems made af defailed tn Nose 3,

The accounting pollcles and explanaiory notes on pages 9 through 90 form an imtegral part of these corsolidaed

SHancial staramens.,

Managing Director — Member of the Management Board

Chiel Accountant

FAYE L, kL -
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Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended Decamber 31,

Cansolidated Financial Satements

#n milians of Targs Mate 2011 010
Revenus 25 4,402,938 3609215
Govemmenigrants 26 24,406 21.314
4,427,332 3,630,528
Cost of sakes 27 {3,194,.222) (2,515, 164)
Groas profit ii'ﬂ-ﬂ-.'l"lﬂ 1,_1_“.1_._."-143_65_
General and admenisirslive expensas 28 (438,583) (372,225
Transportaton and seliing expenses 29 [367,178) (253.018)
RBargain purchase gain on acquisiion g 1,458 10,169
Loss on disposs of property, plant and eguipmant, net (1,073} (3,082}
Irpairrnent loss 30 [232,035) {453, 353)
Crher apearaling intoms £ 85,154 183 Bad
_Other operating expenses 32 {54,755) (318,561}
Operating profit 236,104 312,939
Finance costs a3 {184, 215) (167, 980)
Finance inoome 4 6B, 848 75,606
Share of Imoome i associses and joing vantures 35 611,177 27120
Met foreign sxchange (loss) / gain (23,803} 18,736
Profit before income tax 688,021 /38,411
income fax expenses a5 ~ [367,883) (28, 743}
Profit for the year from continuing operations 318,138 BOT 658
Prraafit fromn disconminued operatians & 32,491 25683
Profit for the year 150,629 B34, 351
Aftributaiie o
Equity holder of the parent 330,035 544591
_ Non-controding intarast ~ 20,554 88,380
350,638 B34,351




Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consolidated Financial Staterments
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(continued)
Faor the years ended Decamber 31,
iy mitions of Tanga __ Note 2011 2010
Other comprehensive income ! [loss), net of tax:
Farelgn curmency translalion 14,322 [10,940)
Unraalized (lasg) [ gain from revaiuslion on avallable-for-sale assets {134,6BE) 22 070
Mai realized gain / (loss) on financial essets available-for-sale 1,466 {445)
Feclassifications from other comprehensive income 1o elher igsses
on impairment of available-for-sale assels = 1,555
Gain from operations with hedge insfrumeants 343 HOE
Tax effect of components of the ather comprehensive income (22} =
Cher income = 5 L
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 232087 £47,087
Attribitable o
Equity holdar of the parent 0B, 828 857 810
Non-controling interest 2341 a9.167
232,057 247 08T
Eamings par share:
Basic and diuted share in prafit for the perod altributable 1o the
equity holder of the parent, Tenge 54,85 15787
Eamings per share for continuing aperations:
Basic and diluted share in profit from continuing operations
attribastabile for the equity hokder of the parent, Tenge 85.51 157.44

*Certain mumbers shown Rere do not corvespand fo the 2010 consolidated financial staterenty and reflect
acljustments made as detailed in Note 3.

The accounting polictes and explonatory notes on pages 9 throngh 36 form an iniegral part of these consolidated
finanetal statements,

’f{ r' B ,{M M
Managing [irector — Member of the Management Board _“} . '-:'5:.-‘-'"‘
g t ; ﬂ'ﬂ:’ﬂfm Rakhmtov
HEEE % gz
! *"-:_-'."l"'-:'-_. 1;' ol )
Chicf Accountant w .‘-_':_.'f R W
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Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ J5C Consolidated Financial Statements
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Fnrlh&ggg:aendedﬂmmberai. -
_dn miiprs of Tenga i Mote 2011 2010°
Cash flows from eperating activities:
Profit before Mcome tax BEE6,021 836,411
Prafit froem disconteueed operations before ncome 18x 3248 28,633
Adjustmants for:
Depraciation, depletion and amortization 7.8 288,707 259,191
Share of income in associates and joint ventures g 1611.147T) {423 155}
Finance cosis 3 154,215 187 8530
Finance incoma 34 [6E,844) (75,608)
Impairment loss 30 232,035 48,353
Lang-term employee benafits 22 13442 10,280
Bargain purchase gain on acquisiion 5 (1, 4686) (100, 185
Prawision charges 21 irrd (50,187}
Dervatives (40,118} (501, 56D)
Less on disposal of property, plant and equipmant, net 1.073 3,082
Gain on disposal of subsidianes (2,819} -
Allewance for doubifsd debits on trade accounts recefvable and
ather current assets L] 5,033 14 183
Lass / {3ain) on revakeation of financial assets designaled at far
value through prafit and loss 7440 2017
Realized koss on revaleation of available-for-sale aseats 1,466 1,380
Gain from loes of significant influence 12 - (18,881)
Effect of the debt regtractunng 2 = 285,338
Amortization of fair value sdjustments of ecquisitions 21487 2800
Unreafizad foresgn exchange ss 12,4598 2256
Other non-cash transactions _ 8,353 T.77e
Cash MNows from operating activities bafore working capital
changes 788,182 B34.822
Changas in cther non-cumen a8sels (34.528) (1,154)
Changes in loans to cugtomers (203,703} (328,158
Changes in amounts due from credit institulions {2.512) 168,554
Changes in other financisi assets 48,025 {172,350
Changes in derivatives (48,463} [(15,678)
Changes in inverdories (20,B50) (66 .273)
Changaes in VAT recoverable (24.407) 12.477)
Changes in frade accounts receivable {22.018) (54 455)
Chenges in olher current assels 35,854 [3413)
Changes in borrowings and loans from the Govemment of the
Republic of Kazakhstan 182,436 247 B3E
Changes in irede and oiher eccounts payatée (50,26T) 116,821
Changes in amounts due o the customers 178,967 183,581
__ Chamnges in other Fabdiies 24,357 a7
_Cash generated from operating activities N B36,27T3 54,560
Inoome taxes paid {231,578} [Z27 625)
Interest paid (142 885) {153,308)
Intares] received B : 45,BB3 51838
Mot cazh flows from operating achivithes 507 698 825,440




Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ J5C

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the years ended Decamber 31,

Consalidated Fingncial Statements

I millons of Tenge Note 2014 2010°
Caczh flows from investing activities:
Placement of bank deposis, nst 308 0968 {58,157}
Aoguisition of associates and joinl veniunes a (110, Z60) {5.258)
Aoqusiion of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired b (80,330) {2,787
Cash of subsidiaries being reclassifed to dispossl group {5,432 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {830,458) (T47 B14)
Purchase of mfangible asseis (24,833} (9,631}
Purchase of ather financatl assets (g9,163) {118,773}
Procesads from sale of proparty, plant and equigement 35,013 30,864
Advances paid for non-curment asesis 13 (33,42B) (B2.540)
Dividends recaived from joint veniures and associabes & 450,224 321,478
Proceeds from sale of associates Ti1 -
Froceeds from sale of subsidiaries - 10,958
__ Stock options exercised 2 5
Met cash flows used in investing activities {448,07E) (E58,7H5)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bomowings 390,038 9,307 572
Repayment of bomowings (g4, 283} {o86,816)
Repayment of finance laase flabillties {8, 160) {7 B52)
Redemption of shares of subsidiaries {15,74E) [25,034)
Transactions wilh the Sharehalder (63,359) (14,478
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders of subsidsanies (26,7049} (24 188)
Contributions io share capital by non-controfiing shareholders 16,117 8,347
Dividends pald 1o the Shaneholdar {9,077} {7.058)
Acaulsition of non-cantralling inerest A {B,B8T) (17,450)
Contributions o share capial 147 552 141,447
Hl!lt'.nh flewe (used in) / from financing activities [(61,834] aTazez
ETI'ecta of exchange rate changes on cash and cash aquivalents 3,454 (2 538}
“Met Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1.240 328 3B
_Cash and cash equivalents st the beginning of the year B 1,639,450 1,311,132
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16 1,640,700 1,639,460

*ertaln numbers shown here do net correspond fo the 2000 consolidated financlal statemenls and reflect
adjustments made av derailed in Note 3.

The accounting polictes and explanalory notes on pages @ throtgh 96 form an integral part of these corsolidated

Jimawcial siatements,

Managing Director — Member of the Management Boand

Chiel Accountanl

i.ﬂlﬂiﬂl Fakhmelo
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Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna® JSC Consolidated Financial Statemenis

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years anded 31 December 2011

I GENERAL INFORMATION

Corporate information

Soverelgn Wealth Fund “Sammuk-Kazyna™ 13C (the “Fund” or “Samruk-Kazyna') was established on November 3,
2008 in accordance with the Decree of the President of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated Oetober 13, 2008 and the
Decree of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated Oxctober 17, 2008. The formation was enacted by the
merger of Sustainable Development Fund “Kazyna” JSC (“Kazyna™) and Kazzkhstan Holding Company for State
Assets Management “Samruk® JSC (“Sammuk™} and the additional transfer of ownership in cenain entities owned by
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhatan (the “State™ or the “Government™) to the Fund. The Government,
represented by the State Assets and Privatization Commitiee of the Minisry of Finance of the Republic of
Karakhstan s the sole sharchoider of the Fund {the “Shareholder™).

The Government's overall objective of the rearganization is to increase management's efficiency and to oplimise
oreanisational structures In these entities i order to successfully achieve their strategic objectives set in the
respective Government programs and development plans, Merger of Samruk and Kazyna and additional tramsier of
businesses represent a combinasion of businesses under common control, which is accounted for by the Fund using
the pooling of interests method.

Prior to February 1, 20012, the Fund's activities were governed by the Law of the Republic of Kazskhstan “On
Sovereign Wealth Fund™ No. 134-4 dated February 13, 200% and were aimed af assistance in providing stable
development of the state coonomy, modemization and diversification of economy. and improventent of the Group
companies’ efficiency. According to the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan enacted on February 1, 2082 *On
Sovereign Wealth Fund® No. §50-4, the Fund’s activity is focused on improving sovereign wealth of the Hepublic of
Kazakhstan by Increasing the long-term value of the Group companies and by effective management of the Group's
assals.

The Fund is a holding company combining state-owned enterprises listed In Nove 37 (the “Croup”). For
management purposes, the Group is organized into organizational business unis besed on their products and
services, and has seven reportable operating sepments {Mote 421

» The Ofl and Gas scgment includes operations related to exploration and production of oil and gas,
transportation of oil and gas and refining and trading of crude oil and refined products.

« The Transportation segment includes operations related to railway and air transportation of cargo and
PRSSETIZETS.

s The Telecommunication segment includes operation of fixed line communication, inchuding local, long-
distance intercity and international telecommunication services (including C15 and non-CI5 countrses); and
alss rent of lines. data transfer services and wireless communication services.

+ The Energy ssgment includes operations related to production and distribution of electricity, the function of
oversight over the input of electricity into the energy system and consumption of imported electricity, the
function of centralized operation and dispsich of facilities in the Unified Electricity System of Karzakhstan.

+ The Mining and industrial segment is engaged in exploration, mining. processing and sales of mineral
resources, military industry enterprises and civil machine indusiry, projects for the development of chemical
industry and peslogical exploration.

« The Financial end Inmovation Institutions segment includes operations related to development and

stimulation of investment and innovetion activities in all segments of the cconomy of Republic of
Kazakhstan, Further, this seament inchsdes commercial banks acquired by the Fund during 2009.

+ Segment of Corporate center and projects includes Fund's investmg and financing activities,
The address of the Fund's registered office is Astana, 19, Kabanbay Batyr Avenue, the Republic of Kazakhstan,
These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on May 23, 2012, by the Managing Director
Member of the Management Board and Chief Accountant of the Fund.
Ecomomic environment

Republic of Kazakhstan continues economic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks as
required by & market economy. These reforms and developments and the effectivensss of economic, financial and
monetary measures undertaken by the Government sre aimed to support the future stability of the Kazakhstani
EConomy.



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Coensolidated Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

I.  GENERAL INFORMATION {continued)

Economic environmen! (continued)

The Kazakhstani economy is vulnerable to market downturns and sconomic slowdowns elsewhere in the world. The
global financial crisis has resulted in the instability of capitnl markess, sipnificent deterioration of liguidity in the
banking sector, and fighter credit conditions within Kazakhstan. [n terms of Sabilization Plan, the Government has
taken measures to ensurs the liquidity and refinancing of foreign loans of Kazakhsiani banks and companies, which
resalted in the improved economic situation in Kazakhstan, However, despite the positive results of stabilization
measures taken by the Government, there s uncertainty regarding the access 1o capital and cost of capital for the
Group and #1s counterparties, which could affect on the financial position, results of operations and business
prospects of the Group,

While management believes it is aking approprizie measanes 10 support the sustainability of the Group's bisiness in

the current circumstances, unexpected deterioration in the areas described above could negatively affect the Group's
results and financial position in 2 manner not currently determinable.

FPlan of stabilization ol economic and financial svstems

In order to mainiain stability of economic and financial aystem of the country during the world economic crisis, the
Government by Decree Mo, 1085 dated Movember 25, 2008 approved a loint Actipn Plan of the Government, the
Mational Bank, the Agency on the Regulatson and Supervision of Financial Market and Financial Organizations of
Republic of Kazakhstan on stabilization of the econgmy and financial system for 2009-2010 (“Stabilization Plan™).
The Stabilization Plan provides certain measwres aimed at the following:

& Stabilization of Mnancial sechor

#  Resolution of real estate market issues
o Small and medium bisiness support
¢ Davelopment of agricubtural sector
s [mplementation of innovative, industris] and infrastrectural projests
The Fund is the principa] openstor Tor the Government in the implementation of the Stabilization Plan.

Linder the financial sector stabilization measures of the Stabilization Plan the Fund in 2009 ecquired a controlling
interest in BTA Bank and Alliance Bank and acquired o significant stake in Halvk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC and
Kazkommertsbank JSC, These measures were aimed to provide additional liquidity to the banks and ensure their
solvency,

In 2010, under BTA Bank’s debt restructuring plan approved in March 2010, the Fund acquirdd newly issued sharnes
of Temirank JSC (* Temirbank™), a subsidiary of BTA Bank.

The Fund is not planning to keep its interest in BTA Bank, Alliance Bank, Temirbank JSC, Halvk Bank of
Kazakhstan JSC and Kazkommerisbank JSC in o bonp-term perspective, In 2000, Alliance Bank, BTA Bank and
Temirbank JSC completed the process of restructuring their debis. The ability of Alliance Bank and Temirbank to
contmue 35 gokng concern entities largely depends on successful realization of new business models in accordance
with restructuring conditions. The ability of BTA Bank to continues 85 a going concern entity largely depends on
results of debt restructuring, effective since May 8, 2012, in accordance with & decision of the Specialized finance
court of Almaty (Nore 430 As of December 31, 2001, the combined net liabilities of BTA Bank, Temirbank, and
Alliance Bank recorded in these consolidated financial siatements are 494,522 million Tenge (20100 170621 millkon

Tenge).

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These conzolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historicnl cost basis, except as described in the
accounting policies and the notes to these consolidated financial statements,

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Kazakhstan Tenge (“Tenge™ and “KZT7) and all monetary
amounts are rounded 1o the nearest million Tenge except where otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial stafements have been prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting
Standards (" IFR5™) as issued by International Accounting Standard Board (*1ASE™).

n



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consclidated Financial Statemants
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continned)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial stalements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of certain critical
sccounting estimates. Tt also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting
palicies, The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant 1o the consolidated financial statements are disclosed Nope 4,

Foreign currency transhation

Functimial ang presentalidn clFrenoy

ltems included in these consolidated financial staterents of each of the Group's entitics are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Tenge, which i the Group’s presentation currency.

Transacrions oo balaices

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional carmency using the exchange rases prevailing at the
dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation af the reporting date exchange rates of monetary asses and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencics are recognized in profit and loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost m 4 foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are transkated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Cronge eriifies

Cimins, losses and financial position of all of the Group's subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates {none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy]) that have & fenctional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and lighilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at that reporting date:

= income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange raies
{unless this average is not & reasonable approximation of the cumulative affect of the rates prevailing on the
iransaction dates: in which case income and expenses are translated 1 the rate on the dates of the
transactions), and

» all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separdle COMpanent of other comprehansive income.

Exchamge rates

Weighted average currency exchange rales established by the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange (“KASE") are used as
afficial currency exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The following tahle presents currency exchange rates to Tenge a5 al December 31:

2011 2010
Ls0 14840 147 50
ELR 181.72 196.88
CHFE 157,65 15740
RUR 4.81 483
JPY 1.01 1.8

The currency exchange rate of KASE as at May 23, 2012 is 147.70 Tenge 1o | S Dollar.

11



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Congolidated Financial Statemants
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

k8 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Changes in anceounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidnied financial statements are consisient with
those applied in the preparation of the annoal consolidated finarcial statements for the vear ended December 31,
2010, except for the following new and amended IFRS and [FRIC interpretations effective as of January 1, 2011

IAS 24 Related Parpy Tronsactions (Amendment)

The TASH issued an amendment 1o [AS 24 that clarifies the definitions of a related party. The new definitions
emphasize & symmetrical view of related party relationships and ¢larify the circumstances in whish persons and key
management personnel affect related party relationships of an entity. In addition, the amendment introduces an
exemption from the general related party disclosure requirements for transactions with government and entities that
are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the same govemment as the reporting entity. The
adoption of the amendment did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IAS 32 Fingneia mstrments: Presentation (Amendment)

The [ASR issued an amendment that aliers the definition of 2 financial liability m IAS 32 1w enable entities to
classify rights issues and certait options or warrants as equity instruments. The amendment is applicable if the rights are
given pro iz 1o all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity"s non-derivative equity insiruments, to acquine 2
fixed number af the entity’s ewn equity insiraments for a fixed smount in any currency. The amendment has had no effect
an the firancial position or performance of the Group becguse the Group does not have such instmaments,

IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Mirimum Funding Requirément ( Amendment)

The amendment refmoves an unintended consequence when an entity is subject to minimum funding requirements ansd
makes an early payment of contributions to cover such requirements. The amendment permits a prepayment of future
cervice cost by the entity o be recognized as m pension asset, There are no minimum funding requirements in Republic of
K azakhstan, therefore the amendment of the interpretation had no effect on the financkal position or performance of the
3o

Improvements fa [FRSs (May 20000

In May 2010, the [ASS issued its third ommibus of asendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing
incansistencics and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard, The adoption of the
following amendments resulted in changes to acoounling policies, but had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Groap.

o IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The measurement options available for non-confrolling lmteres (M) were
amended. Only components of NCI that constitute & present ownership priferesd that entitles their holder o &
proportionue share of the entity’s net assets in the event of ligquidatien should be measured af either fair walue or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net ssets. Al cther
components are 1o be measured = their scquisition date fair valiee.

« IFRS 7 Fimancial Instruments — Discloswres: The amendment was [ntended 1o simplify the disclosunes
requirements by reducing the volume of disclosires anund colliteral eld and impreving disclosares by requiring
1o pust the quantitative information in context.

s IAS | Preseniation of Financial Statemenis: The amendment clarifies that an entity may present an analysis of
each compenent of other comprehensive income either in the statemert of changes in equity or in the notes to the
finzmeial statements.

Other amendments resulting from Improvemnents to [FRSs to the following standards did not have any impact on the
accounting pelicies, financial position or performancs of the Croup:

s [FRS 3 Busimess Conthinasions [(Contingent comsideration arising from business combination prics b sdoption of
IFRE 3 {as revised in 2008)



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna"” JSC Congalidated Financial Sistements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

i SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continoed)

improvements to [FRSs (May 2000 feontiraed)
s+ IFRS 3 Business Combinarions (Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards).
o 1AS 27 Consolidated ard Separate Financial Statements.
o LAS 34 Jsrerimr Fingnciol Satemenrs.

The following interpretations and amendments (0 interpretations did rot have any impact on the financial position of
performance of the Group:

» IFRIC 13 Customer Lovalty Programmes {determining the fair value of award credits).
o [FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabifittes with Equity Instruments.

Standards issued bot not effective

The CGroup did not adopt the following standasds issued but not yet effective. This listing of standards and
interpretations issued are those that the Group reasomably expects to have an impact on disclosures, financial
position or performance when applied at a future date, The Group intends 1o adopt these standards when they
become effective, except for IFRS 9.

145 | Financial Siatement Presentation — Presentation of ftems of Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

The amendments to 1AS | change the grouping of items presented in ather comprehensicve income. fems that conbd
be reclassified to profit or loss at & future point in time {for example, upon derecognition o settlement) would be
presented separately from items thar will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and has no
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. The armendment becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July |, 2012.

FAS 19 Employee Benafits (Amendments)

The TASEH has issved numerous amendments 1o IAS 19, Thess range from fundamental changes such & removing
the carridor mechanism and the concept of expected retums on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording,
The Group is currently assessing the full impact of the amendments. The amendments become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1. 2013.

J4% 12 tncome Taxes — Recovery of Underlving Assets

The amendment clarified the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value. The
amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that defierred tax on investment property measared using the fair
value model in 1AS 40 should be determined on the basis of an assumption that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, it introduces the requirement that deferred tax on non-deprecizble assets that
sre measured using the revaluation model in 1AS 16 always be mensured on a sale basis of the assel. The
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.

IAS 27 Separgre Financial Statemenis (a5 revised n 2011}

As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what remams of 1AS 27 is limited to accounting for
subsidiaries, jolntly controlled entifies, and associates in separute financial statemments. The amendment becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

FAS 28 Invesiments in Assoclates and Join Ventures fas revized tn 2011)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, 1AS 2% has been renamed [AS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joing Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition o
associites. The amendment becomes cfective for annual periods beginning on or after January [, B013.



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consolidgted Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continaed)
Standards issued but not effective (continoed)

[FRS 7 Finaneial Instranents: Disclosires — Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements

The amendment requires additional disclosure sbout finarclal assets thal fave been transfesred but nat dececognized 1o
enuhle the wser of the CGroup’s financial statemsents to understand the relationship with those assels that have not been
derccognized and their assccisted liabilites. In addition, the amendment requires disclosures about condinuing
imvoivement in derecognized assets to ensble the user of the financinl statements to evaluate the natare of, and risks
associated with, the entity s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets. The amendment becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011 The amendment affects disclosure only and has no impact on the
Group's financial position or performance.

[FRS ¢ Financial Insrruments: Clpssiflcation and Measuremen!

[FRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the TASBs work on the replacement of 1AS 39 and applies to
clussification and measurement of financial assets and financial linbilities as defined in 1AS 39, The sandard is
effective for ennual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 In subsequent phases, the IASE will address
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect
on the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on
classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the
other phases, when issued, to présent 2 comprabensive picture,

JERS 10 Consolidarted Finaneial Sralemens

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of 1AS 27 Consolidated and Scparae Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for comsolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. [FRS 10 establishes 2 single control mode! that applies to all entities including special
purpose enfities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to
determine witich entities are controlled, and therefore, are required 1o be consolidated by a parent, compared with
the requirements that were in LAS 27. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2003,

JERS 11 Jevinr Arrangemenls

IFR% 11 repleces 1AS 31 Interests in Joint Yentures and $1C-13 Jointly-controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contribations by Wenturers.

IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointhy controlled entities {JCEs) using proportionade consolidation. Instead,
JCEs that meet the definiton of a joint venturs must be accoumted for using the equity method, This siandard becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2013,

TFRS 12 Divelosire of frvolvement with Cither Ensities

IFRS 12 inchades all of the disclosures that were previously in 1AS 27 related to consalidased financial stalemerts, 03 well
as all of the disclosures that were previcusly included in 1AS 31 and [A% 28. These disclosures relate to an emiity’s
inerests in subsidiaries, joint arangements, assockates and structured entities. A pumber of new disclosures are akso
required. This standard becomes effective for annuil pericds beginning on or afler Jassary 1, A

[FRE |3 Fair Valive Mepruremenf

[FRS 13 establishes 3 single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 doos nol change
when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance cn how to measure fair videe under IFRS when
fair value i required or permitied. The Group is carently assessing the imipact that this standard will have on the firsamclal
position and performance. This standard becomes effective fior annual periods beginning on or afier January 1. 2013,

Reclassifications

The CGroup made centain reclassifications m the comsolidnted balance sheet as of December 31, 2010 with purpose to bring
it to the reporting Format of the consolidated balance sheet & of December 31, 2011, Changes in classification of the
fllowing amounts bed 1o the reclassification of other current liabilities items on December 31, 2010 and had no material
impact on consolidated balance sheet &3 of December 31, 2009,

14



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consalidated Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

.8 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ontinued)

Reclassifleations (continued)
Impact of reclassifications on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010 is presented as follows:
in mifians of Tange As was presgnied Restatements As presented
Provisions 108,130 7.275 115,405
Tradae and othar payables 401,123 59,264 460,387
Other current fisbiitles . a0BpA8  (B6334) 340430
816,232 = 16,222

In addition, the Group consiered some rearrangements of 2010 data in respect of the income from associated
company transfered to discontinued operations as disclosed in Nave 6,

Consalidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Fund and its controlled subsidiaries
(More 370,

Enbsidiarics

Sybsidiaries arc the entities controlled by the Group, Control exists wien the Group has the power, directly or
indirectly. to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity, thas ohtaining profit from its activities. Exoept
for acquisition in transactions between entities under common control, subsidiories are consolidated from the date
when cofitrol is obtamed by the Group and are de-consolidated from the date when control ceases, At the soquisition
of the subsidiary, sequisition cost is distributed between assets and liabilities based on their fair value a3 at the date
of acquisition, Financial statements of the subsidiarss are prepared for the same reporing period as those of the
Fund, wting consistent accomnting policies. All intra-group balances and transactions, including unrealized gains
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full Unrealized losses are eliminated in the sarme manmer is
unrealized gains, cxcept that they are eliminated to the extent that there 15 no evidence of impairment.

Mon-controlling interests represent # portion of gains or losses and net nssets in subsidiaries, which are not owned
by the Group, and are recorded separately in equity in the consolidated balance sheet separately from parent share
capital. Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the nen-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit

halance,

Trmvesimeant in foim vemiures and assocteles

The Group hat interests in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities, whereby the venmrers have a
contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the cconomic activities of the entities. Also, the Group
has interests in associates, in which it exercises significant influence gver the economic activities of the entities. The
Group's investment in its joint ventures and associates are aceounted for using the equity method,

15



Soversign Wealth Fund *Samruk-Kazyna™ JSC Consalidated Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

i P SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Consolidation (continued)

{revestment (R joimi ventures and associates fronfinued)

Under the equity methad, the investment in jolnt venture/associate is carried in the consolidated balance sheet of cost plus
pogt acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the joint venture/associate, Goodwill relating to a Jolm
venlure/ssociate is included in the camying amount of the mvestment and is neither amortised nor individualfy pested for
i pai et

The consolidsied statement of comprehensive income reflects the share of the results of operations of the. joint
verturelassocate. Where there has been o change in et asscts recognised directly in the equity of the jannd
venture/assockate, the Group recognises iis share of any changes and dischoses this, when applicable, in the consolidated
statemeent of changes in equity, Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions betwesn the Group and join
venture/associate are eliminated o the extent of the Group's interest in the joint venlure/associate.

The share of profit of joint ventures/associates Is shown on the face of the comsolidated statement of comprehensive
income. This is the profit attributable to equity holders of the joint venture/associte and thesefore is profit after tax and
minarity interests in the subsidiaries of the joint ventures/sssociates.,

Financinl statements of the joint venture/associate are prepared for the same reporting period as those of the parent
company, Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the sccounting polickes in line with those of the Group.

Afier application of the equity method, the Group determings whether it i necessary to recognise an additional
lmipairment loss on the Greup's investment in its joimt ventures/associates. The Ciroup determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective cvidence that the investment in the joint venture / associzie is impaired. I this is the case
the Giroup calculstes the amount of impaimment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint
venturelassociate and its carrying vahs and recogniscs the amount in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
ingmie,

Upon Toss of significant influence over the joint venture/associnte, the Group messures and recopmises any retaining
investment af its fair value, Any difference between the carrying amewnt of the joint venturetassociobe upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal are recognised in profit or
bopam,

Burimess comblnarions

Business combinations are acooanted for using the scquisition methed. The cost of an acquisition is measured a5 an
apgregnte of the considerntion transferred, measured &1 acquisition dute fair value and the amount of mmy ton-contraliing
imterest in the scquirce. For each business combination, the acquirer messures the nonscontrolling interest in the acquines
cither a1 fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identiflable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred ane
expensed and inchuded in sdministrative expenses.

When the Group acquines a busines, it assesses the financlal assets and Hahilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractunl lerms, economi: circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acguisition date, This includes an analysks of the need of separation of embedded derfvatives in host contracts by the
pcguiree.

If the business combination |s achieved in stages, the acquisition date fiir value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair vilue &t the acquisition date through profit or loss,

Any comtingent consideration 10 be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized af Fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingsnt consideration which is deemed to be an asset or Hability will be
recognized in accordance with 1AS 39 either in profit or boss of a5 2 change to other comprebensive income. I the
contingent considemtion is classified as equity, it should not be remeasared until it is finally setiled within equily.

Goodwill s initially measured at cost being the excess of an aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amoun
recognized for non-controlling interest over the nel identifiable nssets acquired and liabilities assumed by the Groug, 1T
ihis consideratinn is lower than the fair value of net sssets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference i recognized in profit
oe loss.

After inifiel recognition, goodwill is measured ot cost less amy pccumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination i, from the acquisition date of an entity by the Group,
allgcated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected 1o benefit from the combination, irmespective of
whether gther asseis or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to these units.
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Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consolidated Financial Staternants
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {eontinged)
Consolidation (continued)

Ausiness combimations (conrfimed)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit &nd past of the operaticn within that unit ks disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the camying amount of the opertion when determining the gain or
loas an dispasal of the operation. CGoodwill dispesed of in this circumstance is measured bused on the relative values of the
aperation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Aceuisition of subsidiaries from partles under common contral

Purchases of subsidiaries from parties under commen control (entities under the Govemment's control] are
accounted for using the pooling of mterest method.

The assets and lighilities of the subsidiary transferred under common control are recorded in these consolidiated
financial statements at the carying amounts of the transferring entity {the Predecessor) at the date of the transfer.
Related goodwill, if any, inherent in the Predecessor's original acquisition is also recorded in these conselidased
financial statements. Any difference besween the total book value of net assets, including the Predecessor’s goodwill,
and the consideretion paid is accounted for in these consclideted financial statements & an adjustment {0 equity.

These consolidated financial statements are presented as if the subsidiary had been acquired by the Group on the
date 7t was originally neguired by the Predecessor.

Cherge In owmership inerests in subsidiaries

In transsctions where part of the interest in existing subsidiary is either sokt or soquired, but controf is retained, the
differences bepween the carrying values of et sssets attributable to interests in subsidiaries acquired or disposed and the
consideration given or received for such increases or decresses are charged or credited to retained eamings.

Augers elassified as held for rale and discontinmed aperarions

Asgets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured &t the lower of carrving amownt and fair value less
costs to sell, Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carmying amoeunts will be recovened through a
cale fransaction rather than through the continuing wse. This condition is reparded s met only when the sale is highly
probahle and the asset or disposal group is available far immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be
camnitied to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
dute of classification,

[n the consclidated statemment of comprehensive income of the reporting pericd, and of the comparable period of the
previous year, incomes and expenses from discontinued operations are reported separately fram normal ncome and
expenses, even when the Group refains a nomn-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale. The resulting prefit or
loas (et of tax) is reported separstely in the consolidated statcment of comprehansive income.

Property, plant and equipment once classified as hebd for sale are nid depreciated.
Mineral resourees exploration and development assets (oil and gas and mining assets)

Expenditures for aoquiyition of swlsuface use righits

Expenditures for acquisition of subsurface use rights {exploration and produstion) comprise sighature bonuses, historical
costs, obligaory expenditunss for ecelogical and social programs and are capitatized within intangible assets s subsurface
use rights at the stage of exploration and evalpation, Similar costs incurred hefore subsurfaice rghts were acquired shall
also be capitalized as field subsurface use rights &t the explaration and cvaluation stage if ressonable assurnce exlsts that
rebevant rights shall be obtrined by the Group’s entity. Expenditures for acquisition of subsurfsce use rights are accaumied
for an a feld-by-field basis. Each ficld is tested for impainment oo an annunl basis. If no future activity is planned, the
remaining halance of the license costs is written off, Lpen determination of economically recoverahbe reserves ("proved
resesves’ or ‘commerclal reserves”), amortization ceases. Staning from the commercial production in fields subsurface wse
rights (remaining costs) shall be transterred to the property, plant samd equipment and shall be amortized using unit-af-
praduction method on actual production based on the tal ammound of proved reserves,
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S S DTT PR EENENS

3. EUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)
Mineral resources exploration and development assets (oil and gas and mining assets) (continoed)

Explorarios and evaluation expemditares feonsimrciion In progress)

Exploration and evalustion expendifisres inclede gealopical and geophysical cost; costs directly related 1o bt wells;
averburden operations; adminlstrative and other expenses on evaleation, which could be related 10 a certaln field. These
costs inchude employee remuneration, materials and flel wsed, rig costs and payments made to condractors, Except for
geological and geophysical costs, explorstion and evaluation expenditures are capitalized within property, plant and
equipment a5 construction-in-pragress, scoounted for on a field-by-field basis and are not amortized, 1f minerad resources
are mod Founed, this could be an indication of impeirment, All capitalized costs are subject o lechnical, commersial and
management review ol least once & year 1o confirm the continwed intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the
discovery

When this is no longer the case, the costs are written off, If mineral resources are determined and devebopment is
sanctioned, relevant costs are then transferred to oil and gas or mining assets subclasses,

Develapment and production expenditures (oll and gas or mining assets)

Dewelopment and production expenditures comprise previously capitalized {and reclassified i the beginning of
production} expenditures for scquisition of subsurface use rights and exploration and evaluation costs; drilling of
producing wells regardless of the drilling results; construction of iesting grounds; development of ground
technological constructions required for production, collection and preparation of mineral resources at fields; other
costs incurred in the process of organization of commercial production at flelds; capitalized discounied costs for
wells conservation and site restoration. Development and production expenditures are capitalized within property,
plant and equipment (0if and gas and mining assets), and are accounted For by flelds, Development and production
expendifures are depreciated using a unit-pf-produection methed as follows: (1) costs for scquisition of subsurface
use rights including discounted decommissioning costs are depreciated over total proved reserves, (2) the remaiming
field development expenditures are deprecisted over proved developed ressrves, Cerain oil and gas property and
mining assets (urface struciures and equipmment) with vseful Tives significamly differing from those of the fields are
depreciated on a streight-line basis over their useful lives.

Depreciation of oil and gas and mining assers (within property, plant arvd equipment ang inangible assers)

il and gas and mining asses are depreciated wsing a unil=of-production method based on actual production from
the beginming of commercial production at fields, Cerain oil and gas property (surface structures and equipment)
with wseful lives significantly differing from those of the ficlds are depreciated on o straight-line basis over their
useful lives. The cost of acguisition of subsurface use rights inclading discounted decommissioning costs arc
depreciated over total proved reserves. The other field development costs are amortized over proved developed
ToEErVies.

Property, plant and eqoipment

Cm initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost Subsequently, property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriaie proportion of production overheads, Property,
plant and equipment, other than oil and gas azseis, principally comprize the following classes of asseis, which are
deprecialed on a straight-line basis over the expected useful Lives:

Pipalines and refinery azsats 4-100 years
Bulldings and premises 5-100 years
Rafway tracks and infrastraciune 10-80 years
fning massis #4{) years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 2-5{ yoars
Other _d-40 years

When ftems of property, plant and equipment are subject to major inspection, the cost is recognised in the carrving
ameunt of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria sef oul in ITAS 16 are satisfied,
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K B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOOUNTING POLICIES {eontiaied)

Froperty, plant and equipment (continued)

An jtem of property, plant and equiprent i3 derecognised wpon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of an asset (caleulwted as the difference
batween the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the reporting
period the asset is derecognized,

Restduial values, nsefil lives and methods of depreclaton are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriafe, at each financial
year end.

Intamgible asscts

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recopnition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are cormed ot cost less ony accumulated amortisation end any accumulated impainment boss. Internally
generated intangible assefs, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure 15 chanzed
against profits in the year in which the expenditure is incurred, The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be gither finite or. mdefinite. Intangible asseis with finite lives are amortised over the aseful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the infangible asset may be mpared. The amortisation
periad and the amortization method for an intangible agsed with a finite wseful life are reviewed of Jewst ot each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expocted pattern of consumption of futere econgmic
benefits embodied in the intengible asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as
appropriata, and reated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the expense category consistent
with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible aszats with the finite usefl life principally comprise the following classes of assets which are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the expected usaful lives:

Licenses 2-20 years
Softwars 2-10 years
Subsurface use rights 18-43 years
Crhar o 2-20 years

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized, bul tested for impairment annwally or whenever there are
indications of impaiment and, if necessary, written down to the recoverable amount.

lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses asseds or groups of assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrving value of an assel may not be recoverable, Individual assets are grouped For impairment assessmient
purposes at the lowest bevel af which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows
of uther groups of assets. 1 any such indication of impairment exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset
proup is required, the Groep makes an estimate of it recoverable amount,

An asset group’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less eosts 1o sell and its value in use. Where the
carrving amount of an asset group excesds ifs recoverable amount, the asset group is considered impaired and a
provision (s made tx reduce the &sset 1o i recoverable amount, In assessing value in use, the estimated furure cash
flows are adjested for the nsks specific to the asset group and are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discound rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. An assessment is made ot each
reporting date as w0 whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment provisions may no longer
exist or may have decrezsed. If such indication exists, the recoverahle amount is estimated. A previeusly recognized
impainment provision (s reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used o determine the asset™s
recoverable amount since the last impainnent provision was recognized. If that s the case, the carrying amount of
the assct is increased to its recovereble amount, Thai mcreased amount cannot exceed the carrving amount that
would hove been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment provision been recognized fior the asset in prior
years, Such reversal is recognized in profits and losses.

Afier such & reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying
amounl, less any residual value, on a svstematic basis over ils remaming wseful life,
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued)
Impairment of non-finzncial assets (continued)

The following process is applied & oessessing impairment of goodwill:

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators that goodwill & impaired at gach reporting date, Goodwill is
tested for impairment, annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impaimment = determined for geodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units. o which
the goodwill relates, Where the recoverable amount of the cash-genersting umits is [2ss than their carmying amount an
impairment logs is recognized. Tmpairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed m fulure periods,

Financlal assets

The Group's investments are classified as cither financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. When investments are
recognised mitially, they are measured af fair value ples, in the case of investments not at fair value throegh profid or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines the classification of is financial investments after
mitial recognition. All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the settlement date, which is the date
that the investment is delivered to or by the Group,

Mon-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold o maturity.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an petive market. Sach nsseds are carried at amaortised cost using the effective interest methed, Geins and losses are
recopnised in income when the loans and receivables ure derecopnised or impaired, as well 25 through the
amortisation peocess.

Available-for-sale investments are those mon-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-zale or
are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initinl recognition available-for-sale mvestments are
measured a1 fair vaiue with gains or losses being recognized as a separate component of eguity until the investment
is derecognized or until the investment is determined fo be impaired, 2t which time the cumulative gain or loss
previoushy reporied i equity is included in profits and losses. Reversals of impainment losses in respect of equity
mstruments ang nol recognised moprofits and losses. Impairmeant losses m respect of debt instruments are reversad
through profit or loss if the increase in fair value of the instrament can be objectively related o an event occurting
after the impairment loss was recognised.

The fair value of investments that are sctively raded in orgamized Nnancial markets is determined by reference to
quipted market bid prices at the close of business on the balgnce sheet date, For inwestments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s kength
market rransactions; reference to the current market value of another instrement, which is substantially the szame,
discounted cash flow analysis.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses ot each balance sheet date whether a fnancizl asset or group of fmancial assets is Impaired.

Assers carriad af amertized cast

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assels carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is messured as the difference between the asset’s camyving amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit bosses that have nod been incurred) discounied at the
financial asset's original effective interast rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition), The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account, The amount of the loss shall be
recognized m profits and losses,
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continwed)

Assety carrfed o amortized cost foomtinued)

If, in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decreagse can be related objectively
to an event gecurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss & reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment boss 1s recognized m profits and losses to the extent that the carmving
vithee of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost al the reversal date,

In relation 1o trade receivables, a provision for impaimment 15 made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insalvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be abls to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount af the receivable is reduced
through vse of an allewance account. Impaired debts are derccognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Awvailable-for-sale financial invesiments

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference befween iis cost (net of any principal
payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or
loss, is transferred from eguity fo profit and loss. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as available-
for-sale are not recognized in profit and loss, Reversals of mmpaimment losses on debt instruments are reversed
throwgh profit and loss; if the increase in fair valve of the mstrument can be objectively related 1o an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized in profits and losses.

Derivalive Minancial instruments

In the course of its ordinary activity the Groap operates with differsnt derivative linancial instruments, including
futwres, forwards, swaps and options al currency and capital markers, crude oif forward and swap contracts 1o hedge
its Fisks associated with commodity prices fuctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are held primarily for
trading purposes, are initizlly recognized sccording to recownition policies of finamcial mstrumends -and are
subsexuently measured at fair value, Fair valve i delermined hased on registered market quotations apd pricing
madels, that take into account spot price and strike price of the respective instruments and adher factors. Derivative
finnncial mstruments are accounted for as an asset (unrealised gain), when fair value 15 positive and as Hability
{unrealised [oss), when fair value i3 megative, Gains and losses from operations with these instruments are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable valws, Costs comprise charges incurred in bringing
imventory bo its present focation and condition, MNet realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessery to make the sale. The same
cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature and wse, [nventories of Oil and Gas and Energy
operating segments are valued on a firsl-in frst-out (“FIFO") bagis. All other inventories are valued on the
weighted-average cost basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits, shori-term and highly liquid investments
with original maturity of not more than three months readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject o
insignificant risk of change in value.

Loans and borrowings

Bormowimgs are recopnized inftially &t fair valoe, net of wansaction cosis incwrmed, Bomowings are subsequently
measured af amariized cost; any difference between the procesds (net of transaction costs) and the redemplion valise
is recornized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method, Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance shoet date,
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X SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and borrowings {continued)

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as borrowings, where the substance of the contrsctial
wrrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset, or o satisfy
the obligation other than by the exchanpge of & fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fxed number of
own equity Instruments, Such instruments include smounts due to the Government, amounts due fo credit
mstrations, which are initizlly recognized at fair value of amounts obtained less costs directly atributable to the
transaction, Subsequently obtained pmounts are recognized at amortized cost,

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of & qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asser, Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Convertible debi instruments

The component of the convertible debt instrument that exhibits characteristics of a Bability i= recognized as a
linbality in the balance sheet. net of transaction costs, The fair value of the liability compoenent is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent non convertible bond; and this amount is classified as a financial liability measured at
amertized cost undil it is extinguished on conversion or pedemplion,

Options on remaining minority interest arising on busingss combination

[f, a5 a part of 34 business combination, the Group becomes a party to a put-option on remaining mon-controlling
share in the scquired business, the Group assesses whether being a party 1o such oplion gives i access to benefits
and risks nssociated with ownership of such non-contralling share,

When it & defermined that the put-option on the remaining shares gives access o benefits and risks of share
ownership, the business combination i accounted for on the basis that the underlving shares subject to the put
option bave been acquired. Fair value of the liability to the minerity shareholders under the put option 3 recognized
as a part of the cost of the business combination. Any difference between that cost, and the share of the met assets
that would otherwise have been reparded as being attributable to the noo-comtrolling interest, s reflected within
goodwill. Any dividends subsequenily declared and paid 10 such non-comtrolling shareholders prior (o the exercise
of the option are charged directhy to profits and losses,

The finameral Babality 15 subsequently measured in accordance with the requirements of TAS 39, Changes in the fair
value of 2 financial liability as well as any finance charges are recorded directly in consolidoted stutement of
comprehensive income.

Options on purchased interest arising on scquisition of investments

If, while acquiring investments, the Fund isswes acall eption to a third party on acquired interest in the business, the
Fund assesses whether being a party 1o such option gives o a third perty access to benefits and risks associated with
ownership of such inferest.

If a call-option does not provide a third party with access to benefit and risk of canership of an interest, & call option
is oot accounted for the purposes of determination of Fund’s significant influence.

Fair value of the liability for the Fund under the option is recognized as o part of acquired investments. The financial
liability is suhsequently measured in accordance with the requirements of [AS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and Measurement™. Changes in the fair valee of a financial lizbility as well a3 any income or boss
related to the realization of these options are recorded directly in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continned )
Derecognition of linanciol assels and linbilities

Finaneial agsers

A Fnancial esset (or, where applicable a part of & financial asset or part of & group of similar financial assets) is
derecosnized in the balance sheet when:

& the rights to receive cash flows from the asqet have expired;

s the Growp retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay w0 a third party under a *pass through® arrangement; or

s the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either {a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and revwards of the assed, or (b} has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Finansial fabilities

A financial Gability is derecornized in the balance shest when the obligation under te Iability 1z discharged or
cancelied or expires.

Difsetting of Minuncial instruments

Financial assets and financial liakilities are offset and the net amoent reported in the consolideted sistement of
financial position if, and only if;

#  There is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts;

» There is an intention to s=tile on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the Labilites simelaneously,

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reponting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or deaber price gquotations (bid price for [ong positions and ask price for shor
positions), without any deduction for transaciion costs.

For financial instruments nod traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such fechnigues may include:

= Using regent amm’s length market transactions;

# Reference o the current fair value of another instrument thost is substantiafly the same;

o A discoumed cash Now analyais or ather valuation models.
An analysis of Fair valees of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measared are provided in
Mare 4

Leases

Operating leazes
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as

eperating lenses. Opersting lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on & straight-line basis over the lease term,

Flaance leaees

The Group recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet &t amounts equal a1
the commencement of the kease term to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payiments, In calculating the present value of minimum lease payments the discount factor used is
the intersst rate implicit in the lease, when it is practicable to determing it; otherwise, the Group's incremenial
barrowing ride is used. Initial direct costs incurred are included as part of the asser,
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k8 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continsed)
Lenses (continued)

Flrance leases (eoniinued)

Lense payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the oustanding lishility. The
fimance charge 15 allocated (0 reporting periods during the lease term 50 85 to produce 2 constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining batance of the lability for each period.

A finance lease gives rise to depreciation expense for the asset as well a3 a finance expense for each accounting
pariod, The depreciation policy for leased assets is consistent with that for depreciable assets that are owned.

Provisions

Assel resivement obligation (decommissioning!

Provision for decommissioning i3 recognized in full, on & discourted cash fow basis, when the Group has an
obligation to dismantle and remove a facility or an item of plant and to restore the site on which it is located, and
when o ressopable estimate of that provision can be made. The amount recognized is the present valoe of the
estimated future expenditure detérmined in accordance with local conditions and requirements. A comesponding
item of property, plant and equipment of an amount equivalent to the provision i3 also created, This asset is
subsequently depreciated as part of the capital costs of the production and fransportation facilities on a unit-of-
production basis.

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning provision that result from changes in the estimated
timing or amount of the outflow of resources embodving economic benefits required fo settie the obligation, or
change in the discount rate, is sceounted for 5o that:

(a) changes in the provision are added 1o, or deducted from, the cest of the related asset in the current period,

(b) the amount deduected from the cost of the asset shall not exceed its carrving amount. IT a decrease in the
provision exceeds the carmving amount of the asset, the excess is recognized immediately in the satement of
comprehensive income; and

(c} if the sdjustment results in an addition to the cost of an assed, the Group considers whether this is an
indication that the new carrving amount of the asset may not be flly rmecoverable. If it is such an indication,
the Group fesis the assel for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount, and accounts for any
impairment loss, in accordance with LAS 36,

Aflowance for hank latters of credit and grarantees

In the crdinary course of business, the Group gives financial guarantees, consisting of letters of credit, guarantees
and acceptances. Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair valve, in “Other
liabilities’, being the premivm received, Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's Hability under each guaraniss
contrvet 15 measured ot the higher of the smortised premium and the best estimate of expenditure required 1o settls
any financial obligation arising as a result of the puarentee.

Ay increase in the fiability relating to finzncial guarantees arangements is taken to the statement of comprehensive
incame, The premium received is recognised in the profits and losses on a sivaight-line basis over the life of the
Eudraney,

Cther provizions

Provistons are recognised in the financial statements when the Group bas a present obligation (legal or constructive)
g5 & result of a past evend, it is probable that an outflow of resowrces cmbodying econemic benefits will be reguired
to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, Where the Group expects
& provision 1o be reimbursed, for example under an inswrance contract, the reimbursemient is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is viriually certain.

If the effect of the tme valug of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fuiure
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the Lability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of Hme 5 recopnised as a finance cost,



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna"” JSC Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Emploves benefits

Drefined condribution plan

The Group withholds 10%% from the salary of is employees as the emplovees” confribution o their designated
pension funds. Under the legislation, emplovees are responsible for their retirement benefits and the Group has no
presant or fulure obligation to further compensate its emiployess upon their retirement.

Social fax

The Group pays social tax according to the current statutory requirements of the Republic of Kazakhstan. Social tax
15 expensed as incurred,

Lhefined benefit plan

In accordance with the Labour Union Agreements and other benefit rules the Group provides certain benefirs o is
employges upon their retirement (“Defined Benefit Plan™)

The Group recognises sctuarial goains and losses anising from the resssessment of the emploves benefit lobility in
the perfod they are Identified in profits and losses and recognizes benefit costs and obligations based on estimanes
defermined in accordance with [AS |2 “Emploves benefirs™,

The ohligation and cost of bencfits under the Defined Benefit Plan are determined wsing the projected unit credit
methed, This method considers each vear of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and
measures each unif separately o bulld up the final obligation. The cost of providing beaefits is charged 1o profit and
foms, =ooas to attribute the totnl benefit cost over the service lives of emplovess in accordance with the henefit
formula of the defined benefit plan. This obligation 15 messured ot the present value of estimated future cash flows
using a discount rage that is simikar to the interest on government bonds where the currency and terms of these bonds
pre consistant with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benesfit plan obligation.

The defined benefit plan 15 unfunded.

Equity

Share capial

Ordinery shares arc classified as equity. External costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares, other thon on
i busimess combination, are shown as & deduction from the procesds in equity, Any excess of the falr value of
conskderation received over the par value of shares issoed is recognised an increase in the retained eamings.

New-contralling interest

Mor-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from the equity
pitributable to the equity holders of the Fund. Losses of subsidiories are attributed fo the non-conirolling interesgs
even if this results n a deficit balance,

Driviclevicly

Dividends are recognised as o liability and deducted from equity at the reporting date only if they are declared
before or on the balance sheet date, Dividends are disclosed in the financial statements when they are proposed
before the balance sheet date or proposed or declared after the balance shest date but befors the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue,

Share based pavments

Emplovess of the Group recaive remuneration in the foem of share-based payment transactions, whereby emphoyees
render services as consideration for equity instruments of a subsidiary in which they are employved {"equity-settiad
transactions’ ).

The oot of eguity=seftbed transactions with emplovees is measured by reference to the fair value of the instruments
at the date on which they are granted. The fair value is determined wsing an appropriate pricing maodel,
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. 8 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eontinued)
Equity {continueed)

Share based paysients feontimed)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in other equily neserves,
over the period in which the performance and'or service condrtions are fulfilked, ending on the date on which the
relevant emplovess become fully enfitbed to the award {“the vesting date™), The cumulative expenss recognized for
such transactions at cach reporting dase until the vesting date reflects the extent w which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The staternent
of comprehensive income charge or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized
a5 at the beginning and end of that period.

Mo expense is recognized for awards on equity instruments that do not ultimanely vest

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the
terms had nof been medified, An additional expense & recognized for any modification, which increasss the total
fair valse of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial o the emploves as measured af the
date of modifcation,

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, Bt is treated as i it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not vel recognized for the award is recognized immediztely, However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and designaied a5 a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated &5 iF they were a modifieation of the original award, 25 described in the previows paragraph.

Trade and other payahles

Liabilities for trade and other accounts pavable are carmed at cost which is the fair value of the consideration o be
paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not bilked 1o the Group.

Bevenne recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amoum of
revenue can be relisbly measured.

Gale of goody

Revenws from the sale of crude oil, refined products, gas, uranium products and other goods 15 recognised when
delivery has tzken place and risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the cusdmmer.

Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the services have been performedd,

In respect of services related 1o fransporiation, revenue s recognised by reference o the stage of completion of the
iransportation at the consolidated balance sheet date provided that the stage of completion of the transportation and
the amount of révenue can be messured reliably. Prepayments received from customers relating to transportation
services that have nod been initisted are recognized 85 “advances received from customers”™ when received,
Advences received from customers approximating the estimated future revenues releting to initiated deliveries are
transferred to deferred income under the “Other current liabilities™ item in the consolidated balance sheet. Deferred
income i eredited to revenue, as the service is provided.

Sales of air ransporiation tickets that result in award credits for customers, under the customer lovalty program, arc
accountsd for as multipls element of revenue transactions at the fair valoe allocated between the services provided
and the award credits granted, The consideration allocated 1o the award credits is measured by referance to their fair
value — the amount for which the award credits could be sold scparately. Such consideration is not recognised s
revenue af the time of the inltial sale trensaction — but is deferred and recoznised as revenue when the award credins
are redeemed and the Group's obligations have been fulfilied.

Estabilsfiment of fardiis

A number of subsidiaries of the Group aré  subjects to regelation by the Agency Tor Regulatfon of Natural
Monopelies of the Bepublic of Kazakhstan (“ARNM"), This agency is responsible for approval of the methedology
for tariff calculation and tariff races, under which the subsidiaries derive a significant part of their revenues.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES {continwed)

Government gramts

Duee to the fact that the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan is a the sole shareholder of the Fund, the Group
analyses all tansactions with the Government to essess in which transactions the Government acts primarily in its
capaciy of a Shareholder, 1 it &5 determined that in o specific trensaction the Government scts in its capacity of a
Shareholder any gains or Josses incurned by the Group as a result of such transaction are reflected directly in eqaity
as either a contribution or withdrawal of a capital by a Shareholder,

If it is determined that in a specific transaction the Government does not act in its capacity of the Shareholder such
fransactions arg aceounted for using provisions of [AS 20 *Accounting for Government Grants and Drisclosure of
Covernment Assistance”. In such circumsiances, govemment grants are recognised at their fadr value where thers is
reasonsble assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates fo an expense item, B i3 recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grant on
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate, Where the grant relates 10 an &ssel, the fair value i
credited to a deferred income account and is released to the statement of comprehensive income over the expected
useful life of the relevant assel by equal annual nstalments. Grants related to income are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within revenues from operating activities.

Expense recognition

Expenses are recognized as incuwrred and are reported in the conselidated financial statements in the period to which
they relate on the acerual basis.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profits and losses except
o the extent that @ relates 1o items charped or credited directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in other
comprelensive income, Curment tax expense i the expecied tax payable on the taxable income for the vear and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years,

Excess profil tax (EPT) is treated as an income fax and forms par of income tax expense. In accordance with the
subsoil agreemenis, the Group accries and pays EPT, at specified rates of after tax profit which has been adjusted
for specific deductions in accordance with the applicable subsoil agreements, when certain internal rates of return
are exceaded.

The internal rate of return is calculated based on the cash Nows from cach subsodl agresment, adpsted for the
national inflation rate, Deferred tax is calculated with respect to both corporate income tax (CIT) and EPT. Defermad
EPFT is calculated on temporary differences For assets allocated to contracts for subsoil use at the expected rate of
EFT to be paid under the contract.

Deferred tax ks provided using the balance sheet methed, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amouts of zssets and liabilities for fmancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
following temporary differences are not provided for;

= the initial recognition of an asset or Lability in a transaction that is nod a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither apcounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

*  investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the foresseable futun:,

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured af the s rates that are expected o apply o the period when the
asset i5 realised or the liability is settled based on the fax rates (and 1ax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset 15 recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future @xable profits will be available
agamst which the asset can be ufilized, Deferred fax agsets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
thie related tax benefit will be realized.

Value added tax (VAT)

Tax authorities permit the settbement of sales and purchases VAT on & net basis, VAT recoverable represents VAT
on domestic purchases net of VAT on domestic sales. Export sales are zero rated.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Related parties

Redased parties inchsde the Group’s Shareholder, key mamagement personned, associates and enterprises in which a
substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group's shareholders or key
manggement personnel.

Contimgent lizbilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognised i the consohdated financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes (o
the consolidated financial statements More 47 unlesa the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
esonomic benefits is remote.

Confingent #sets are nod recognised in the consolidated finencial statements. Where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable, they are disclosed in the nodes.

Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are
reflecied in the consolidated financial statements. Post-vear-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes when matarial,

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the consolideted finencial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amoumnts of assets, liabilities and contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated fancisl statements and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses
and contingent assets and liabilities during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerming the fiture and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a malerizl adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial vear are discussed below;

Ol and gas reserves

(il and gas reserves are a material factor in the Groups computation of depreciation, depletion and amorizasion
(“DD&A™). The Group estimates its reserves of oil and gas in accordance with the methodology of the Society of
Petroleum Engine=rs (SPE). In estimating its reserves under 3PE methodology, the Group uses long=term planning
prices, which are also used by management for invesiment decisions regarding development of fields. Using
planning prices for estimating proved reserves removes the impact of the volatility inherent in using year end spot
prices. Management believes that long-term planming price assumpiions are more consistent with the long-term
nature of the upstream business and provide the most appropriate basis for estimating ofl and gas reserves.

All reserve estimates mvolve some deprse of uncertainty. The uncertainty depends chiefly on the amaount of refiable
geclogical and enginesring data available at the time of the estimate and the interpretation of this data,

The relative degree of uncertainty can be convered by placing reserves into one of two principal classifications,
gither proved or unproved. Proved reserves are more cenzin to be recovered than unproved reserves and may be
further sub-classified as developed and undeveloped o denote progressively mereasing uncertainty in their
recoverability, Estimtes are reviewed and revised annually. Revisions occur due 1o the evaluation or re-eviluation
of already available geological, reservoir or production data; availability of new data; or chenges to underlving price
assumptions. Reserve estimates may also be revised due to improved recovery projects, changes in production
capacity of changes in development strategy, Proved developed reserves are wsed to caleelate the unit of prodaction
rates for DD&A. The Group has included in proved reserves only those quantities that are expected to be produced
during the initial licenss perod. This ks due (o uncerainties surrounding the outcome of such renewal procedures,
shvee the renewal s ultimately at the discretion of the Governmenti. An increase in the Group's license periods and
corresponding increase in reported reserves would generally lead 1o lower DDA expense and could materially
affect earnings, A reduction in proved developed reserves will increase DD&A expense (assuming constant
production), reduce income and could also result in an immediate write-down of the property’s book value. Given
the relatively small number of producing fields, it is possible that any change in reserve estimates year on year could
sipnificantly affect prospective charges for DD&EA,
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {continued)

Uraniom reserves

Uranium reserves are a primary component of the Group's projected cash flow estimates that are uasd 1w a58e58 the
recoverable vatues of assets and to determine deprecietion and amortization expense. In estimating the amount of
uranium- regerves, the Groop obtaing reports from geological experts who estimate the reserves based on the
quantification methodology sct out by the Kazakhstan Siate Commission on Mineral Reserves (SCR) o interpres
geological and exploration data and determine explored reserves (proven reserves) and estimated reserves (probable
reserves), The eatimation of reserves is based on éxpert knowledge and estimation. The quantification of reserves
imvolves @ degres of uncertinty. The uncerainty is primarily related to completensss of relighle geological and
technical information, In addition, the presence of reserves doss not mean that all reserves will be able 10 be
extracted on an economically effective basiz. Uranium reserves are analyzed and revised on an annual basis, The
quantity of reserves can be subject 1o revision as a result of changes in production capacities and changes in
development strafegy,

Agsel retirement obligations

Under the terms of certain contracts, legislation and regulations the Group has legal obligations o dismantle and
remove tangible assets and restore the land at each production site. Specifically, the Group’s obligations relate to the
ongoing closure of all ron-productive wells and final closure activities such as removal of pipes, buildings and
recultivation of the contract territories. Since the lcense terms cannod be extended at the discretion of the Group, the
settlement date of the final closure obligations has been assumed to be the end of each license period, [T the asset
retinement obligations were to be settled at the end of the economic life of the properiies, the recorded obligation
could increase significantly dae o the inclusion of all abandonment and closure costs, The extent of the Group's
ohligations to finance the abandonment of wells and for final closure costs depends on the ferms of the respective
contracts and cwrment begislation. Whese neither contracts mor legislation include an unambizuous obligation to
underiake or finance such final abandonment and closure costs at the end of the license term, no lability has been
recognized, There B some uncertaimty and significant judgment imvolved i making such a detenmination.
Management's assessment of the presence or absence of such obligations could change with shifts in policies and
practices of the Govermnmment or In the local industry practice,

The Croup calculates asset retirement obligations seperately for each contract. The amount of the obligation is the
present vadue of the estimated expendifures expecied to be required to sottle the obligation adjusted for expected
inflation and discounted using average long-term risk-free interest rates for emerging market sovereign debt adjusted
for risks specific to the Kazakhstan market, The CGrroup reviews sife restoration provisions ak each balance sheet date,
and adjusts them to reflect the current best estimate in accordance with IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing
Decommissioning, Restoration, and Simiar Lighilities, Estimating the future closure costs involved significant
eatimates and judgments by management. Most of these obligations are many years in the future and, in addition to
ambipuities in the legal requirements, the Group's estimate can be affected by changes in ssset remowal
technodogies, costs and mdustry practice. Uncertamties related o the final closure costs are mitigated by the effects
of discounting the expected cash flows. The Group estimates future well abandonment cost wsing current year prices
and the average bong-term inflation rate.

Environmental remediation

The Group also mekes cstimates and judagments in establishing provisions for environmental remediption
obligations. Environmental expenditures are capitafized or expensed depending upon their future economic benefit

Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and do mot have & fulure economic boneiit
g axpensed,

Liabilities are determined based on cwrrent information abot costs and expected plans for remediation annd re
recorded on on undiscounted basis if the ttming of the procedures has not been agreed with the relevant authorities,
The Group's environmental remediation provision represents management's best estimate based on an independent
assessment of the anticipated expenditore mecessary for the Group fo remain in compliancg. with the current
regulatory regime in Kazakhstan, Pursuant to a memorandum of understanding (“MOU™) signed by KazMunayGas
Exploration Production JSC (“KMG EF*), a subsidiary of WC KMG, with the Ministry of the Environment in July
2003, the KMG EP egreed to take responsibility for remediation of certain soil contamination and il waste disposal
which resulted from oil extraction dating back 1o the commencement of production, As at the date of these financial
statements the scope and timing of the remediation plan has not been formally agreed with the Government
Accordingly, the liability has not been discounted. Because the origingl terms of the lability have not vel been
established and management reasonably expects 19 execute the remediation plan over a period of up to ten years, the
Cirpup has classified this obligation as non-current except for the portion of costs expected 1o be incurred in 2012,
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continmed)

Environmental remedistion (continoed)

For environmental remediation provisions, actual costs can differ from estimates because of changes in Eaws and
regulations, public expectations, discovery and analysis of site conditions and changes in clean-up technology.
Further uncertainties related to environmental remediation obligations are disclosed in Neve 4/, Changes in the
provision for environmental remediation obligations are disclosed in Note 21,

Heserve on constroction of socizi assets

As of December 31, 2081, other provisions include provisions of subsidiaries for construction of Kazakhstan
History Museum (NC EMG), Teleradio complex (NC KTZh) and Siudents’ Palace (KAPF) in Astana and
recomsiruction of “World Expo-Center™ in Moscow under the Government's assignments Tor the todal amount of
109,064 million Tenge (2010: 71,582 million Tenge). Upon the completion of the construction and reconstruction
the assets will be transferred to the Government free of charge, so the Group determined that it has a constructive
obligation of which the amount of future probable cash outflows is relinbly messured. The cstimated costs of the
provision for the consfruction are 26,631 million Tenge, 55,744 million Tenge, 22 730 million Tenge and 3,959
million Tenge respectively (20010; 25,560 million Tenge, 27,130 million Tenge, 18,892 million Tenge and nil Tenge,
respectively). The todal estimated costs were recognized in the equity as distrabution 0 the Shareholder. (Vove !7)

Increase in the provistons in the amount of 37,481 million Tenge are mainly atributable fo additional Government”s
assignments (o supply teleradiocomplex building with media end technicel equipment (28,614 million Tenge), to
reconstruction of World Expo-Center as well as to the changes in initial valuation of provisions for construction of
ather prajects,

Expenditures of 62,268 million Tenge and advances pabd 1o suppliers m the amount of 12,337 million Tenge in
2000-2011 were recognized es other current asscts. Changes to the initial estimate of the cost for the construction
could have a significant impact on the amount of provision. The Group assessed the effect of the time value of
maney a5 ol materizl.

Impairment of non-Mnanckal assels

An impaitment exists when the carrving value of an asset or cash generating unit excesds its recoverable amount,
which 5 the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, The fair value less costs to sell caleulation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in arm's length transactions of similer assets or observable
market prices bess incremental costs for disposing of the ssset. The value in use caleulntion i based on a discounted
cash flow model. The cash Bows are derived from the budget for the mext five years and do ned include restrizefuring
activities that the Group is not yet commitied to or significant future investments that will enhance the asser™s
performance of the CGLU being tested, The recoverable amount i most senzitive 1o the dizcount rate used for the
discounted cash Mow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate wsed for extrapolation
purposes. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUS, incloding
sensitivity analyses, are further explaimed in Mote 7 and &,

In 2001 the Group recognized an impairment of propery, plant and equipment for 49,063 million Tenge (2010:
11,322 million Tenge) in the conselidated statement of comprehensive income (Nare 7).

In 2011 the Group recognized an impairment of goodwill for 2,371 million Teoge (20610 #il) 10 the consolidatéd
statement of comprehensive imcome (Nore &) Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment ab the
moment of transfer to tangible and intangible processing assets or in the presence of impaimment indicators.

Dwie to the suspension of exploration and evaluation activities on centmin fields the Group recognized impaimment of
some of its exploration and evaluation assets in the amount of 20,859 million Tenge in 200E {2000: 931 million
Tenge) (Move 7 and &1 The Group also derccognized the loan of 7.812 million Tenge relating 1o the financing of the
exploration and evaluation activities at one of its felds, In sccordance with the financing arrangement, in the event
of no commercial discovery the Group is released from its obligation to reimburse its share in the project financing.

Usefal lives of flems of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses remaining useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment af least at each financial year-
end. If expectations differ from previowss estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting
eslimate in acoordance with [AS B “Acooising Pollcies, Changes in Accounting Estimates awd Errors™,
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continaed)

Deferred tax asscis

[referred tax assets are recognized for all allowances and unosed tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable temporary differences and business nature of such expenses will be proved. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax aswets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and level of futere taxable profits topether with future tax planning strategies. The amount of recognized
deferved tax assets as &t December 31, 20011 was 56,813 million Tenge (2010: 194,713 million Tenge). Further
detzils are contained in Nore 34

Taxation

Uncerainties exist with respect 1o the mierpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount
and timing of future taxable income, Given the wide range of the Group's international business relationships and
the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual
results and the assumptions made, or future chenges to such assumptions, coubd necessitate future adjustments to tax
income and expense already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of awdits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it operates. The amount of such
provisions ks based on variows factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interprefations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of mierpretation may arise on a
wide varicty of ssues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group company’s domicile.

In assessing tax risks, management considers to be probeble obligations the known areas of nen-complianee with tax
legislation, which the Group would not appeal or does not believe it could succassfully appeal, if additional taxes arz
charged. Such determinations inherently involve significant judgment and are subject o change 25 2 resuli of
changss in lax laws and regulations, amendments to the taxation ferms of the Group’s subsoil agreemenis, the
determination of expected (ncomes from pending tax procesdings and current outcome of ongomg complinncs
audits by iax anthorities. The provision for taxes disclosed in Note 27 relates mainly to the Groop's application of
Kazakhstan transfer pricing legisletion to export sales of crode oif from 2002 to 2006. Further uncenaintics related
to taxation are disclosed in Nowe 41

Fair vadue of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the consolidated balznce sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation technigques incleding the discounted cash flows
maodel, The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
& degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values, The judgments include considerations of inputs such as
Iipuidity risk, credit risk and wvolatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair valus of
financial instruments reported in consolidated Onancial statements.

Employee benefit liability

The Group uses actuarial veluation method for measurement of the present value of defimed emploves benefit
liability and redated current service cost (More 270, This involves the use of demographic assumptions abour the
future characteristics of current and former emplovees whe are eligible for benefits (mortality, both during and afier
employment, rates of emploves tumover, ete.) as wekl as financial assumptions (discount rate, future anmeal material
asskstance, fiuture annual minimum sakary, e average rallway ticked price).

Impairment Insses on loans to customers and eredit institotions

The Group reviews its individually significant loans to customers and credit institutions at each reporting date to
ussess whether an impairment loss should be recorded 1n the consolidated statement of comprehensive ingome, In
particular, judgement by management is required in estimation of 1he amount and timing of future cash fiows when
determining the impairment loss. In estimating these cash flows, the Group makes judpement about the bomower’s
financial sitwation and the net realizable value of collateral, These estimates are based on assumptions about a
number of factors and acual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance,

Loans that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually insignificant Joans ars
then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similor risk characieristics, fo determine whether provision
should be made due o incurred loss events for which there is objective cvidence but whose effects are not yet
evident,
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4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continmued)

Impairment lisses on logns 0 customers and eredit institutions (continued)

The collective assassment takes account of deta from loan portfolio (such as credit quality, levels of ammears, credit
otilisation, loan to collateral ratios etc), concentramions of risks and economic data (mcluding levels of
uncmployment, real estate prices indices, couniry risks and the performance of different individual groups). The
impairment loss on leans to customers and credit institutions is disclosed in more detail in Noie {0 and Nore 77

Allowances on doubtfall accounts reccivable

The Group makes allowances for doubtful accounts cecetvable, Sigmificant judgment s used o estimite doubtiul
accounts. In estimating doubtfiul accounts historical and anticipated customer performance are considered. Changes
in the economy, mdustry, or specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the allowanee for doubtfiul
accounts recorded i the consolidaied financal statements. At December 31, 2011, allowanses for doubtful sccounts
have been created in the amount of 74,923 million Tenge (2010: 78,382 million Tenge) (Nodez 13 and 155

5 ACQUISITIONS
Acquisitions of 2011

Acquisition of share in Ural Group Limited BVI (“UGL")

O April 15, 2011, KMG EP scquired 50% of the common shares of UGL from Explosation Venwre Limited. LGL
holds [00% equiry interest in Ural Oil and Gas LLP (“UQG™), which has an exploration licenss for the Fedorovskyi
hydrocerbones field located in the Western Bazakhstan region. In May 2010, the exploration liense was extended
until May 2014,

The 3P4 siake in UIGL was acguired for cash consideration of 164,497 thousand US Dollars {or 23,907 million
Tenge at the transaction date exchenge rate) gross of withholding tax. Of the total consideration 46,687 thousand US
Dollars (or 6,784 millkon Tenge) was attributed 1o the foans receivable from a joimt venture, which was inimally
recopnized al falr value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method,

Investments in UGL are recognized as an investment in & joint venture in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

The Group®s shire of LGL sssets and liabilities at the acguisition date at Tair value was as follows:

Fair values at the
dn milars of Tevgqe acquisition date
Mon-cumint assaks 28,536
Othar curmrant assets 104
Cash and cagh equivalents 232
Tatal assets 28872
Mor=curment kabllibes 11,464
Current lisbilities 285

_Total liabilities 11,748
Mat assats 17,123

The fair value of non-current assets includes the exploration license of LN of 17,460 million Tenge.

Acquisition of AltauNefieService LLF and Karpovskyi Severmyl JSC

On June 10, 2011, NC KMG acquired 100% interest in AktauNefteService LLP (“ANST) for cash of
134 million US Dollars (or 48,590 million Tenge at the transaction date exchange rate). Main acrivitiy of ANE,
which has five subsidiaries, is the provision of services (drilling, repairs, transportation and other) to the crude oil
production companies in the Western Kazakhstan region. ANS's major client is MangistauMunaiGas JSC, a 50fh
joint venture of NC KMG.
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5. ACQUISITIONS {eontinued)
Acquisition of 2001 (continued)

Avquizition of AktauNefleService LLP and Karpovskyl Beverayi JEC foontineed)

COn December 23, 2011, KMG EP scquired a 1007 interest in Karpovskyi Severmnyi JSC (¥ES J3C7) K8 J5C is an
nil and gas company, which has a license for the exploration of the Karpovskyi Sevemyi gas condensate field
lecated in the Western Kazakhatan region. The interest in K5 I15C was acquired for cash consideration of 8,436
million Tenge, KMG EP pald 8,076 million Tenge and recognized a pavable of 410 million Tenge. The exploration
license, upon fulfillment of cerain conditions prioe to the end of 2011, was exiended to December 2004 from
December 2012,

The fair value of non-current assers includes the exploration license of KS I5C of 6,899 million Tenge and other
exploration end evaluation assets of 3,131 million Tenge.

The fadr values of idenfifiabbe asseis, labilities and confingencies of ANS and K5 J5C a5 a1 the acquizition date
wers &5 follows:

In milliars of Tenge AktauMefteSarvice LLP Karpavskyi Severmnyi JSC
Property, pant and egupment and intangible
EIESIE 33 456 -
Cither non-Curnert as5als - 10,100
Imventaries 9,834 -
Trade accounis receivable and other curment
m552ig 8847 i3
Cash and cash eguivalants 1,660 -
_Tatal assels 53,951 10,106
Other non-current lablliies F.002 2085
Defarred tax Eabdity 3813 1.321
_Loans and otiver current liabilities G468 3
Total liabilities 17,283 1,620
Net assets 36,668 8,486
iEoodwill arsing on acquisition {Mole & 11,922 -
Cash consideration 4E 530 8.466
Cash paid (48,580) {B.485)
Met cash scquired with the subsidiany 1,880 =
Ket cash outflow {48,930} 8.486

If the acxuisiions ook place as at Janwary 1, 2011, the revenue and met profit of the Group for 2011 would have not
changed significantly,

The goodwill of 11,922 million Tenge comprises the value of expected svnergies arising from the acquisition as
AMNE provides significant portion of s services fo MangistauMuonaiCas J15C, a subsidiary of NC KMG's joint
venfure - Mangistau Investments BV, Goodwill is included in “Oil&Gas segment™ (Note &) and tested for
impairment jointly with the Group’s investment in Mangistau Investments BV,

Acquizition of Kvarz LLF and MK KozSilicon LLP ard DF Ortalyk LLP

In Wovember 2011, NAC KAP sequired 100%: lmesest in Kvarz LLP and MK KazSilicon LLP. Kvarz LLF has o
subsail use contract for mining of vein quartz at Sarvkulskoe field, which is located in Almaty region of Kazaklstan,
The principal business netivities of Kvarz LLP include mining and processing of vein quartz and processing of
mineral raw materials, Principal business activities of MK KazSilicon LLP include production and realization of
metallurgical and polverystalling silicon and recycling of silicon production waste, As the vein guartz, mined and
processed by Kverz LLP, is subsequently processed by MK KazSilicon LLP for production of silicon metal, the
companies operate &5 a single generating unit. These entities were acquired for cash of 4,751 million Tenge.



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated Financial Siatements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5 ACQUISITIONS {continued)
Acgoisitions of 200 1{eontinued)

Acguizition of Kvarz LLP and ME KazBilicon LLP and DF Ortalyk LLFP (continwed)

In December 2011, NAC KAF acquired 100% ownership interest in DF Ortalyk LLP. The principal business
activities of DF Ortalyk LLP include the provision of services on mining, processing of chemical concentrate of
uranium and services on mining preparation works af the Centrel Mynkuduk mine, which is located in South-
Kazakhstan region of Kazakhstan, The mineral rights for explovatson and mining of uranium deposits at the Central
site of Mynkuduk mine was acquired by WAC EAP in 2000, DF Oralyk LLF was acquired for cash of 21,123
million Tenge.

The fair value of idemtifable assets, labilites and contingencies of these entities a5 at the acquistion date was as
folioowa:

Kvarz LLP and MK
Iri milions of Teage KazSilicon LLP DP Ortalyk LLP
Prapery, pland and egquipmant and inlangible asseis 7850 7410
Jther non-curmernt assets - 854
Inyentosias 538 1,367
Other cument Bssets 218 1,305
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,348
Tolal assets B 422 12,254
Other non-curmant liabilities 30
Defarred tax Babdity 1,432 350
Loans and other current liabilitles 2,708 928
Total iabilities 4 257 1,279
Met assets 4,165 11,015
_Goodwill arising on acquisition (Mote ) 585 12,110
Cash consideration 4,751 21,125
Cagh paid (4,751} {21,128}
_Met cash acquired with the subsidiany 7] 1,348
Met cash outflow (4,746} {18,777}

If the acquisitions took place as at January 1, 2011, the revenuse and net profit of the Group for 2011 would have not
changed significantly.

The goodwill of 10,696 million Tenge comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition as the
pequired companiss own processing facilities m minmg ndustry. The goodwill is included in “Mining and indascrial
segment {Uranium productiony™

Cirher aogmisitions

In 2011, WC KT7h acquired 50.82% and 100%4 shares of Yostosmashzavaed J5C and Almary VEM Service LLP,
respectively, for the total cash of 511 million Tenge, As a resull of these acquizitions the Group recognized bargain
purchase gain of 949 million Tenge, recorded in profit and loss, goodwill of 322 million Tenge and inereass in non-
contolling interest of 1,035 million Tenge.

On October 3, 2001, BTA Bank acquired a 100% interest in BTA Bank J5C Alemecard LLP {*Alemcard™) for cash
of 150 thousand Tenge. As a result of this scquisition the Group recognized bargain purchase gain of 512 million
Tenpe which was recorded in profit and loss.

As discussed in Note [7 in 2011 the Fund acquired 100% shares of National Geological Company “Kazgeologia™
in exchange for it own shares with the value of 76 million Tenge. The net assets of acquired entity comprised cash

of 76 million Tenge.
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5 ACQUISITIONS (continued)
Acquisitions of 2011 {continued)

Acquisition of non-confrolling interest in subsiary of the Fund

As discussed in Note /7 in 2011, the Fund acquired 3% shares of National Compony Kaemkhstan Enginesring JSC
in exchange of it own shares with the value of 6,388 million Tenge. As a result of the change in ownership the
difference of 680 million Tenge between the carmying values of the net assets attributabie to the scqoired intercsts in
the subsidinry of 5,708 million Tenge and the consideration paid of 6,388 million Tenge was recorded in the
retained earnings in 2001,

Acuisiion of non-controlling interest fn subsiory aof NC KAMG

In Movember 2001, NC KMG incréased its ownership in Rompetrol Georgia by 1%, increasing it to 99%. As e
result of the change in ownership the difference of 1,858 million Tenge between the carrving values of the net assets
attributable to the aequired interests in the subsidiary of 1,778 million Tenge ond the considerstion paid of 80
million Tengs was recorded i the retained eamings in 2011,

Acquisitions of 20010

Aciuisitions of firanciel organizations

In January 2010, BTA Bank obtained 75% share in the equity of Accumulative Pension Fund Ular-Umit JSC (*Ulac-
Umit™) and 75% share in equity of Pension Aszet Management Company Zhetysu JSC (“Zhetysu™) in accordance
with agreements on discharge of liabilites of ceptain elients of BTA Bank. The main activity of Ular-Umit is
attraction of pension contributions and managing persion payvments to its depositors, The main activity of Zhetyzu i
pension assets investment management.,

In January 2000, BTA Bank oblained a 100% share in Titan Incassatsiva LLP (*Titan Incassatsiya™). The main
activity of Titan [ncassatsiva is encashment and transfer of banknotes, coms and valuables.

On March 25, 2010, BTA Bank obtained o 75.28% share i the equity of [nsurance Company Atkanta-Polis J5C
{“Atlanta-Polis™) by the decision of Specialized regional court of Almaty in consideration with the partial discharge
of liahilities 1o BTA Bank of NSK-Capital LLP, The main activity of Atlanta-Polis 15 insurance,

During 2010, BTA Bank acquired a 100% interest in the equity of Logopark Hagibey LLC as a result of farfeiure
of pledged property of one bormower, The main activity of Logopark Hagibey LLC s logistics.

On November 6, 2010, the FMSA ook & decision 1o issue permission for voluntary reorganizmation through joining
of Atlanta-Polis and Subsidiary Insurance Company of BTA Bank J3C, BTA Zabota (“BTA Zaboa™} 1o JSC
Subsidiary Company of BTA Bank, BTA Insurance (“BTA Insurance™}, On December 10, 2010 BTA Insurance
within restructuring of the Group's insurance business based on trensfer act assumed property, rights and liabilithes
of Atlanta-Polis and BT A fabota.

Although BTA Bank did not own eny shares in First Kazakhstan Securitisation Company and Second Kazakhstan
Securitsation Company as al December 31, 2010 and for the year then ended, they are treated, in nccordance with
SIC-12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities™, as subsidiaries, because af those dates BTA Bank controlled and
benefited directly from operations of thess entities,

The miormation on fair value of identifishle assets and kabilities of Ular-Umit, Fhetysu, Atlanta-Polis, Trtan-
Inkasaataiya and Logopark Hagibey ss at the purchase date is presented bebow;

Atlanta- Titan- Logopark
Ular Umit Zhatysu Polis  Inkassalsiya Hagibey
Aogets
Cash and cash equivalenis 134 G2 33 56
Amounis due from credit institutions 206 - - — =
Invesirmants secuifies 6,242 4,248 808 -
Armoasnis receivebie under reverss
repurchase agraements - - 207 - =
Tradirg securities - - 58 - -
Propery &nd equatanant 485 20 107 XE7 2 155
Curren income fax assat 5768 273 - - =
Deferred tax assel 319 757 - - -
Oiher assels 208 54 487 147 145
B,56%9 E414 1,698 580 2,800
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5 ACQUISITIONS (continned)
Avquizsitions of 2000 (continwed)

Acguisitions of financial organizalions (contimed)

Atanta- Titan- Logopark
Liar Umit £hetysy Folis_Inkassatsiya __Hagibey
Linbilities
Accounts payabée (1.422) 11} = = =
Amounis dus to credst mshiutions - - - - (4,845
Chher labilities {134) = [728) (117) =
[1,608) 1) (T26) (117} [4,845)
Met assets 6,963 5,403 872 ad3 (1,845)
Lass: non-conbrolng inlerest (1,741) {1351} (24 - -
Goodwill on acguisition - - - - 1,845
Excess of the acyuraer's shane in fel
fair value of identifiable assets and
Eabilies of aoguires over the cost [5,222) (4,052) (352 (443 -
Cesh consideration - - 280 - -

BTA Bank received share of ownership of Ular-Umit and Fhetysu as 2 discharge agzinst certain debt before the
Bank. Independent estimation of the fair valee of identifiable assets and labilities of acquired companies wos not
necessary, since BTA Bank's management believes that the carrying amount of identifiable assets and liabilities,
which are liquid and had short maturitics, approximately equals to their fair vahoe.

BTA Bank made a decision to walue non-controlling interests in UWlar-Umit, Zhetysu and Atlanta-Polis based on
proportional share of non-controlling interest in their identifiable net assets,

Todal consideration paid included cash payment of 280 million Tenge.
Amnalysis of cash flows at acquisition:

Mt Hﬁ"l acouired in the subsidiary 265
Coshpasd ) (260}
Met cash imflow ]

[f the nequisitions took place as at January 1, 2019, the revenue and net profit of the Group for 2010 would have not
changed significantly,

[ July 201 |, the shere of BTA Bank participation in the capital of Logopark Hagibey LLC was sold in full, Income
from disposal of Logopark Hagibey LLC amounting to 2,609 million Tenge was recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehenzive incoeme.

Acguizitics of NBK LLP ("NBE")

On September 24, 2010 KMG EP zcquired a 100% interest in MBK. NBEK is an oil 2nd gas company, which has a
license for the exploration and production of the West Novobogatinksove oil field focated in Atyran oblass of the
Republic of Kazakhstan, The scquired company was in the exploration stage and has rights to sell hydrocarbons
received at test production from four successful exploration wells over the period of exploration. The inferest in
MWEBK was scquired for cash consideration of 35,000 thousand US Dollars {3,163 million Tenge), KMG EP paid 90%
of the consideration and withheld the remaining 10%, subject to the vendor completing their obligations under the
sale purchase agrecment. Subsequent to the acquisition, MBK's exploration license wis extended 1o Septembear 2012
from Septembar 20140,

Acguisittons of Sapa Barlau Service LLP (SBS")

On September 24, 2000 KMG EP acquired a 100% interest m SB35, SBS = an oil and gas company, which has a
license for the exploration of the East Zharkamys [ field located in the Aktobe region of Kazskhsetan, The interest in
5BS was acquired for cash consideration of 4,410 million Tenge. KMG EP paid 90 of the consederation and
withheld 10%, subject to the vendor completing their obligations under the sale purchase agresment. Subseguent to
acguisition, SBS"s explomtion license was extended to Novemnber 2012 from MNovember 2010,

[
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5, ACQUISITIONS (continued)
Acguisitions ol 20010 {continwed)

Aceprivivions of SapaBariaw Service LLP (888"} feontinued)
Thee fair values of the identifiable assets and labilities as of September 24, 2000 was as follows:

NEH 5B5

Mon-cumeni assats 8,162 £A4TE
Cufrent assels 12 3
_Cash - 2
e — 6,174 5450
Mon-cwrant liabilites e &5
Current liabilities 12 185
1,31 1.070

_MNet assets 5,183 4.410
Total acquisitioncost 5,163 4410
Less: deferred payment liability _{516) - _{441)
_Met cash outflow 4,647 3,065

If the aequisitions took place ns at January 1, 20110, the revenue and net profit of the Group for 2010 would have ot
changed significantly.

2000 aequisition of non-contralling fmterext in subsidiaries af NC KMG

During the year ended December 31, 2000 NC KMG scquired additional shares i Rompetrol Rafinare SA.,
Rompetrol Well Services 5.A., Rompetrol Bulgeria and Rompetrol Georgia. Dietails of these additional acquisitions
are discussed balow.

On January 27, 2000 MC KMG initiated a mandatory public offer for the acguisition from non-contrelling
shareholders of [32.77 million Rompetrol Well Services S.A. shares available on stock exchange, for a price of
ROM .43 per share. On February 23, 2010, NC KMG acquired additional 20,74% shares of Rompetrol Well
Services 5.A, for a total amount of ROM 248 million (equivalent to 1,202 million Tenge & an average rate of
currensy exchange for 2010} After the public offer, the Group contrals 73.01% of Rompetrol Well Services 5.4,

On Febroary 8, 2010, NC EMG initiasted a mandatory public offer for the scquisition from mon-conirolling
sharcholders of 5,062.17 million Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A. shares available on stock exchange, for a price of ROM
0.0751 per share, After the closing of the offer period, on March 26, 2014, the Group acguired an aéditional 22.6%
of the share capital of Bompetrol Rafinare 5.A,, for an amount of RON 358 million {or 16,740 million Tenge at an
average rate for the vear ended December 31, 2010,

As aresult of the above-mentioned acguisitions:
+  Non-controlling interest decreased by 63,335 milion Tenge;, and

# 47302 million Tenge relating to the difference between the carmying values of net asseis attribotable to
sequired imieTests in these subsidiaries and the considerstion paid for such mereases was allocated o retained
CAmings.

After the public offer, the Group controlled 98.6% of Rompetro]l Rafinare 5.4, The interzst in Rompeiral Rafiname

S.A. decreased as of September 30, 2000, w 54.62% through the conversion of the convertible debt instrument.
{Nate I7).
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i, DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Discontinued operations

“Zhilstragberbank Kazakhstan' JSC and “Kezakhstan Fund of Grarantee of mortgage loans " J5C (20117)

On April 11, 2011, the Fund and the State Property and Privatization Committee of the Minisiry of Finance of the
Republic of Kazkhstan signed an Exchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreement™) for the transfer of the Group's
shares of Zhilstroisherbank Kazakhstan JSC (“Fh55B™) and Kamkhstan Fund of Guorantes of mortgage loans J5C
{"KFGML™) in exchange for various railway and other fixed asses,

Lipon the completion of this exchange transaction on April 12, 2011, the Fund recognized a loss of 25,827 million
Tenge directly In aguity (Nore 77 being the difference between the book valee of net assets of the disposed entities
and the fair value of the assets received. The table shown below shows the maim cafegories of assets and liabilites of
disposed entities a5 of disposal date:

ira maions of Taroe Aggeis and Rodlies as of ransler dale
Propadty, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,753
Loans fo customers ar.222
Fimance: asseis 34 783
Amounts due from credit institutions 4 J59
Ciher non-cisvent assets 191
Cther cumrend assets 1,604
Cash and cath agiialens 5432
Total assels 115,130
Bormowings 12,000
Lot fraem fhe Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan 23,5480
EAmounts dus o customers 47,041
CAher non=curmenl [iabilities 554
Ciher cumens liabilites 1,258
_Total liabilities B4,433
Met assats 30,697

Met Ioss attributable to the operations of ZhSSE and KFGML for the period from January 1, 2011 till the date of
exchange amounted 10 533 million Tenge (2010; loss of 200 million Tengeh

Met cash Mows of Zh35H and KFGML:
in milans of Tangs From January 1, 2011 fill the date of axchanga 2010
From operating activity 1,483 1217
Fram invesling activity (B,B4T) {5,104)
From finance activity 3.2 3,400
_Mat cash outflow (4,163} {1,821y
CSM Kazakhstan (2011)

On December 21, 2011, Kazakhtelecom concluded an apreement to sell its 4995 ownership in GEM (Vove ) 1o
Sonera Helding BV, a subsidiary of Swedish mobile operator Telia Sonera AB. The Board conzidered GSM mer
the criteria to be classified as held for zale as of December 31, 2011, for the fellowing reasons:

s On December 21, 2011, a sale-purchass agreement was signed stating the selling price of 1,509 million LS
Dioblars,

e On Febroary 1, 2012, Kazakhielecom completed the sale for consideration of 1,519 million U5 Dollars.

Investment in the associate was classified within asaets held for sale 25 of December 31, 2011, in the consolidated
balance sheet, and share in the associate’s profit was classified as profit from discontimeed opermation in the
consolidated staterment of comprehensive Income Tor 2011 and 2000,

fomilans of Tenge R L 2011 2010
The carrying emaunt of the Group's investmeants in the sssociete, classfied a5 hald for

sl 58,339 -
The share of fwe associain's profit classified as discontinued operafion (Aafe §) 33,024 25,039

E}



Soveraign Wealth Fund "3amruk-Kazyna" J3C Consolidated Financial Statemenis
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. DISCONTINUED OFERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED A5 HELD FOR SALE {continued)
Discontinued operations (continued)

Mabile Telecom-Service LLP (" MTE™) {2010

Omn December 14, 20009, Kazakhtelecom concluded an agreement to sell its ownership in Mobile Telecom-Service
LLP o Tele? Sverge AB, a Swedish mobile operntar.

O March 17, 2000 the Group completed the sale of Mobile Telecom-Service LLP for consideration of 76,000
thowsand L% Doliars {equivalent to 11,175 million Tenge). The gain on sabe amounted to 178 million Tenge.

The results of Mobile Telecom-Service LLEF for the year are presented below;

W miione of Tenge 2010
Fevanua 6rd
Cost of sales {G14)
(Eross revense o5
General and adminisialive expenses LU
Selling expenses 3]
Operating loss 188
Finance costs (12T)
Finance ncoma 1
Mt Toreign exchange gain H2G
Cther lnss {46)
income befare tax fram a discontinueed operatlon BEE
Gaim from sales of discontinued operations 178
Corporsle ncame tax benefit -
Income after tax for the year from & discontinued operation 344

{rain from sabes of discontinued operations was as follows:

in mitvan Tinge 2010
Casgh received from Tele2 AB 11,176
Mat assats disposed (1.821)
Provisson for loss from restructuring of recefvablas from MTS §2, 107
Gain on sale 178

As Mobile Telecom-Sendce LLF was sold before December 31, 2000, assets and liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2009 are no longer reflectad in the consolidated balance sheel

Cash inflow from sale;

_In et Terge 2010
Consideration recsived 11,178
Met cash disposed of with the discontinued operation {218)
Met cash inflow 10,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALF (continued)
Discontinued operations (eontinued)

Moty Telecom-Servies LLP ¢"MTE") (2070) feontinued)
The mat cash Nows incurned by Mobile Telecom-Service LLP are as follows:

fn mifiang of Tangs 2010
Operating [(271)
Inwesting (58}
Financing i
Met cash cutflow __{E-'
Basic and diluted samings per share, from discontinued operation, Tenge 75

Assets classified as hebd for sale

Net axzets of Balkhashskaya TES (20111

Om September 4, 2009 the Group signed sabe and a purchase agreement with Korea Electric Power Corporation
("KEFCo") and Samsung C&T Corporation (“Samsung C&T Co™), under which the Group commited to sell 75%
minus one share of Balkhashskaya TES JSC (Balkhashskaya TES). The Group's management has concluded that the
sitle of share would result in loss of control over Balkhashskaya TES. During 2010 and 2011 the sale of said share
wis not finalised as certain conditions were not met. These conditions are bevond the Group's control; however, the
Group’s management believes that these conditions did not affect the asset readiness for immediste sale in their
carrent condition. Szle of abovementionéd share of Balkhashskava TES took place in April 2002 (Note 43),
Accordingly, Balkhashskmya TES's assets and linbilities were classified as dispesal groups in the Group's
cansolidated balance sheet as at December 21, 2010 and 2011,

The table shown below shows the main categories of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale:

in milians of Tangs December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Amsets
Progerty, plant and equipment 2.763 2,524
Cdher non-cummant asssts 4,320 10
Invenioriss 1 i
Other current asaets 250 220
Cash and cash equivalenis 2782 1,087
Assets of the disposal group 10,126 3,452
Liakifities
Defered tex liabiiy 129 4
Other current assels 1 4
_ Liakilities, related to assets of the disposal group 130 48
Ket assets of the disposal group - 8 896 3,604

Oisker assels dassited as held for rale

As of December 31, 2011, other assets classified as held for sale comprised ‘of other non-current asseis in the
amaount of 1,632 million Tenge (2010: 3,089 million Tenge).
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Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

™. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Movement of expleration and evaluation assets is presented as follows,

in miltiars of Tenge Oll and gas assets  Mining assets Taotal
Met book value at January 1, 2010 10B,242 3,778 112,020
Foraign currency translaton 1514 - {514)
Change in estimate - (23 123)
Additions 28,000 1.570 27,5
Acquisitions through business combinations (Node 5) haty a1 5,395
Ciesposals {2.158) (542} (28000
Impairment provisicn, net of revereal (231) - 153
Transfers (o assels cassified as held for sale {1,261) = [1,261)
Met book value at December 31, 2010 134,852 5,604 140,456
Foreign currency bianslalion go = g0
Addiions 18,8388 1,440 21,328
Disposals {5,308) - {5,308)
impaiment provision, net of reverssl {15,1558) = (15, 155)
Translers (o inventornes - (1,156) (1,156)
Citver fransfers and reciassifications {1.408) 13.765) {5173)
Mat book value at Decamber 31, 2011 133,479 2123 136,802
Historical cost 148 565 2,136 151,71
Accumulated impairmend {1&,088) 15} (15,088)
Kt book value at December 31, 2011 133,473 2123 135,602
Historical cost 136,783 5,536 141,715
Accumulated impairment (431) (332) (1,263)
Het book value at December 31, 2010 134,852 5,604 140,456

As ar Decamber 31, 2011 certzin items of property, plant and equipment with net baok value of 1,015,904 million
Tenge {2000: 630,315 million Tenge} were pledged as collateral for some of the Group's borrowings.

As at December 31, 2011 the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease
agreements was 33,993 million Tenge (2010: 27 253 million Tenge).

At December 31, 2011 the cost of fully amortised property, plant and equipment of the Group was 371,633 million
Tenge (2010: 208,443 million Tengs).

In 2011, the Group capitalized bormowing costs at an average capitalization rate of 6.89% in the amoundt of 8,814
rillion Tenge (2000; rate of 4.73% in the amount 4 200 million Tenge).

Impairmeni of propersy, plawt and equipment

In 2011, the Group recorded net impairment of 49,063 million Tenge which is mainly aitributable 10 Impaiment of
property, plant and equipment of NC KMG subsidiaries, in particular KazTransOil JSC (KTO). for the total ameunt
of 13,470 million Tenge, TRG for the total amount of 13,344 millien Tenge and KMG-Service for the totzl amount
of 3220 million Tenge (2010: 14.736 million Tenge mainly amributable to impaimment of property, plant and
equipment of KMG subsidiaries, Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries JSC, for the total emount of 7,690 million
Tenge and KazMuneiGaz Refinery and Marketing JSC (“KMG BM™) for the tofel amount of 2,095 million Tenge).
In 2001, KMG recognized impairment of exploration and evaluation assets relating to Kurmangary, Tyab-Karagan
and ather flelds for the total amount of 20,839 million Tenge, which was reduced by the amount of a derecognized
loan of 7,812 million Tenge (NVote <)

In 2011, EKTO recognized an impairment loss of 13,470 million Tenge relating to the assets of Batumi O Terminal
and Batumi Sea Port. The recoverable amount of CGUs of these assets was determimed based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a ten-year
period. Cash Mows beyond the ten-year timeframe are extrapolated by applying a fint growth rate of 1,77%. The
Giroup used WACC of 16.19% to discount cash flows. Further details are provided in More 8,
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Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

— e e

i FROFPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Inpairment of property, plant and equipment (contineed)

In 2011, TRG recognized an impaiment loss of 10,576 million Tenge relating (o construction In progress and
warchouses due to the suspension of construction plans and absence of the market for the sale of such assets.
Management assessed that the assets are nod recoverable through normal operating activity or sale.

B.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Marketing
relatad Sub-
intangible  surface
_in mifiang of Tenge. Licenses Software Goodwill  assets userights  Other  Total
Met book value at January 1,

2010 35 467 23,708 127805 27,208 8,350 34654 258183
Foreign currency translaton (12} (121) (263 [182) - (Z3E) (B10)
Addilions 1987 G486 2 = 2,550 3519 14,407
Acquisitions through business

combinalions (Mote &) = ] 1,845 - 82T = 8,158
Dizpoaals (38} [1,032) - - {8} (2.512) (3.5688)
Amaortization charge {3,601} {7, 7oE) e [183) (&1} (6,154}  {16,B5E)
Accumulated emortzation on

dispasals 1 asn i o = 45 aog
Transfers to property, plant and

equipmiEn| (1 (27 - = = = (28)
Transfers from property, plant and

eguipment 163 4,112 = o = 12 4,587
Dt Iransfers 307 ag - = = (308} =
Mot book value ot Decomber 31,

2010 34,292 26,331 125,494 26,833 17.B56 30,230 265172
Foraign currency trenalafon (13) 267 812 187 = (221} (5EZ)
Change in acoounting estimate [t} (44)
Additions 1817 10,653 = = 7429 52461 25,180
Acguisiions through business

combanations (Mofe 5) B4 25 22 540 = 16558 v d5.B44
Desposals (103) [1,050) (1,944) (2 (X3 (516) {3.854)
Cescontinusd operations (Mol 6) (B2) (134 = = = {1.203) {1.418)
Amortizaton charge {4,780 [B,572) = (189 {72} (3347 (16,800)
Accumulated amortization on

dispasals av as5 - = = 267 1,189
impairment provision, met {1.939) - [2,371) (5, 704) (G48)  [10,562)
Transfers 1o propery, plant and

equipmeant = (1,992) - " x - {1.882)
Transfers from property, plant and

equipment 3 858 8,885 - - - BO4 11,167
Othes Iransters 2 167 {&} (3 - (160 =
Het book value at December 31,

2011 33,153 33,206 147, 208 7,006 35,734 30,583 306,989
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Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS {continued)

Marketing
related Sub-
intangible  surface
In millipes of Tangpe Licenses Software Goodwill  assets use rights Other Total
Historcs oosl 54,214 B8 200 177.6E3 27 555 41,643 43 241 412 545
Sccumulated emortzation and
___Impairment (21,061 (54,9357  (30.3E5) (555 (5808  (12648) (105557
Met book value at December 31, . o
2041 33,153 sa0d 147288 27,008 35,734 30,593 306,338
Higtarical cosi A48 574 54713 200568 2T, 705 18,024 40232 300221
Accumulaiad amorization and
mp@irment _(14182) (28302) (T1.477) (BT {133} (90083 (135049
Met book value at December 31,
2010 34,382 28,321 125,491 26,833 17,894 30,238 285,172

As ot December 31, 2011, the subsurface uwse rights comprise the net book value of oil and gas and mining
exploration and evaluation assets in the amount of 26,833 million Tenge and 576 million Tenge, respectively (2010
15548 million Tenge and 1,938 million Tengs, respectively).

Impairment testing of goodwill

Carrying amouant of goodwill as at December 31 is allocated to each of the group of cash-generating units as
follows:

Cash-generating unils 2011 2010
Refining and petrochemistry 123,140 122 879
il terminal and sea porl = 2,355
Other 11,822 -
Tofal ol and gas 135,062 125,234
Tofal mining (Uirarmm produciion) 10,686 -
Corporate business 421 249758
Reial business 331 810
Todal finsncial insftufions and nnovation instifubions TE2 3,785
Talal affr T8 4272
Total goodwill 147,258 120,491

Goodwill impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income were mainly
attributable to impairment in oil and gas segment in the amount of 2,371 million Tenge {2010: nif}

Key axzumplions wsed In coleulatlon of gosdwill]l recoverable s

The recovernble amount of goodwill has been determined hased on the accounting policies described in Mose 2.

The Group wses the following rates and penods for caleulation of goodwill recoverable amounts for the oil and gas
sEgment:

Petrochemisiry and refining Qil terminal and saa port
2011 2010 2011 2010
Discount rate T0.4%-12.8% T%-12.8% 18.98% 18.88%
Anficipated growth raie 3.3% 1.5%-3.%% - -
Period, pears ] & 10 10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—r T

3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continwed)

Kep assumptions weed in calordation of goodwill recoverable coropnt feontimeed)

Koy assumptions used in calculation of recoverable amount for oil segments are as follows:
s ross profis;
e Tariffs;

Ol and carge shipment volumes;

Discount rate;

Anticipated growth rates used w extrapolate cash flows during the planning period;
# Capital expenditures for 20012 - 2015,

(Frass predi

Grass profit is based on average values achieved m the two vears preceding the start of the budze period, These
values increazed over the budges period for anticipated efficiency improvements,

Tariffs
Batumi Sea Pont and Batumi 06l Terminal sct tariffs for shipment of cargo and oil individually for each customer

based on volumes of shipment, relationships history and market trends at the date of conclusion of shipment
ot

i and Ly ,rfm'pm ol welinmray
il and cargo shipment volumes — shipment volumes are based on mdustry data,

Hgeounl Fafes

Discount rates reflect the current market assessment of the risks specific to each cash-generating unit, The discount
rale was estimated based on caleulation of a weighted average cost of capital. This rate was further adjusted to
reflect the market assessment of any risk specific 1o a cash generatimg unit for which future estimates of cash-fows
heve not been adjusted.

Amtigipated growih rafes
Girgwih rates are based on published industry data,

Copital expenditres

Capital expenditures represent expenditures required to maintain the existing conditions of the sssets, no
mindemnization o restruciuring of the assets were considered.

Sengitivify to changes i asumplions

With respect 1o the assesament of the recoverable amount for eash generating units, management believes that no
reasonahly possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the camrying value of the unit to
materially exceed its recoverable amount, except for the following cash generiting units: Petrochemistry and
refining, Ol terminal and sea port. As at December 31, 2010, the recoverable amount approximated to their camying
amount, which means that any adverse changes in key assumptions could have caused an impairment foss o be
recognised for these units.

As of December 31, 2001, the break-sven point for the current rodel is achieved by decreasing operating expenses
by 65% and more for Petrochemistry and Refining cash generating units.



Sovereign Wealth Fund "Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidaied Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

LA INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES
Inwvestments in joint ventures and associates comprised the following as et December 31;

_In mitonz of Tenge 2011 2010

Jaint ventures:
TengzChavrall LLE 238,733 235 340
KazRopsGas JSC 184,433 130,733
Ekibashizskaya GRES-1 LLP ["GRES-19 121,037 105 535
Mangistau Invastments B.W. 112,314 31.454
KazGerhiunay LLP 831828 74 508
Beineu-Shymient Pipeling LLP 70,348 -
Eazakhoi-2ktobe LLP &, 766 45 248
Form Muder BV 31,681 3d 34
Ekibasluzskaya GRES-Z LLP "GRES-Z7) 23, TE6 18,381
‘alsera Holdings B.W. 17,654 16,040
Urad Grigap Limited BA ("LAGLT) (Mote 5) 17,703 —
Other 57,070 ar iy
Lass: Impamment [BEE) (a56)
298 483 734 159

Associales:

Pelrokazakhsian ine "OKI%) 98,671 112,608
Shekerbank J5C 852,824 B0 287
GEM Kazakhstan LLP ("GSM") (Nafe &) - 53,736
JVKATCOLLP 45, 32T 20 855
Caspian Pipelinge Consartismn LLP 16,811 16,280
JW Betpakdala LLF 15,083 14,208
BTA Bank (Ukraing) 14,768 16,872
Cither £8.539 47 3587
_Less: Impairman (34.825) {5.024)
298,489 561,708
1,294,862 1086 077

Orwnership in joing ventures and associates a2 at Decamber 31 is as foliows:

% Im share capital

2011 2010
Joint ventures:
TengizChevrall LLP 20.00% 20.00%
KazRosGas JSC 50.00% 50,008
Ekibastuzskayva GRES-1 LLP "GRES-17) 50.00% 50.00%
Mangisiau lnvestments B.\W. 50.00% E0.00%
KazGerMunay LLP B0.00% 50.00%
Kezakhoil-Akiobe LLP 50.00% 50.00%
Farum Muider BV 50.00% 50.000%
Ekibestuzskays GRES-2 LLP ("GRES-27) 50.00% 50.00%
WVaisera Holdings B, 50.00% 50.00%
Beineu-Shymkent Fipafing LLP 50.00% -
Liral Growp LEnited BYI ("UGLT) 50.00% =
Azspciates:
Petrokazakhstan Inc. (*PKIT) 33.00% 33.00%
Sekerbank JEC 33.98% 33.98%
GEEM Kazekhstan LLP («GEM») = 45.00%
S KATCO LLP 48,00% 48,008
BT4 Bank (Ukraing) 45,95% &880
Caspian Pipeling Consortium LLC 20.75% 20.75%
v Betpekdala LLP 30.00% 30.000%
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Sovereign Wealth Fund "Samruk-Kazyna™ JSC Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

a2 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (contineed)

33% mterest in PetroKarakhstan Inc. ("PEI7) was pledged as collateral for a loan, which was obtamed for its
acguisition, However, the pledged shares may not be exercised within the first 7 vears of the financing from the
acgquisition date (July 4, Z006).

On December 5, 2011 the shareholders of PEI approved a capital dividend in the amount of 198 million US Dollars.
in 2011, the Group recognized a capital dividend as dividends recaivable in the amount of 29,383 million Tenge
with a commespomding decrease in investment {2010 132 million U5 Dallars equivalant to 19,457 million Tenge).

On January 18, 2011, in accordance with the agreement between the Repubtic of Kazkhstan and Government of the
Feople’s Republic of China on the cooperstion in constnection and operation of gas pipeline Kazakhstan-China, a
new joinl venture Beinew-Shymbient Pipeling LLP was established. The Group has 50% interest in this new joim
wenture. The Group contributed cash of 71.32% million Tenge in 2011,

in 2011, the Group acguired 50% of common shares of UGL (Nere 53 for 17,123 million Tenge.
The year 2000
Avguisition of GRES-I

On December 9, 2009 the Fund has entered into an agreement with Ekibastuz Holdings B.V. and Kazakhmys PLC
an acquisition of a 50% share in Ekibastuz GRES-1 LLP. On December 11, 2009, the Fund has paid an advance of
680,854 thousand US Dollars {equivalent to 101,502 million Tenge as at the date of pavment) for these shares.

Om 12 July 2000, the Fund has complefed & transaction on sequisition of a 50% share in Ekibastuz GRES-1 LLP.
Changes in investments in joint ventures and associates are as follows:

i riiiewis ef Tangs 2011 2010
Balance as at January 1 1,086,077 1,085.200
Share of income of associates and jeint venlures E11,477 473 158
Dividenis recawed (457 32T) {321 478}
Change in dividends recaived (2,984} 8. 755}
Aeruiziione 100,851 111,842
Foraign currency translation B840 16,351}
Desposals [Ti1) {203, 265)
Transfars to assels classified % held for eabe (Node 6) (26, 366) -
Cither comprehensive loss (2, 741) e
Other changes in equity - (B22)
_({Impairmant] / necoesary {23.574) 2381
Balance as at December 31 1,294,582 1,085 077

In 2011 the Group recognized an impainnent Joss of nvestments in Shekerbank (Turkey) in the amount of 21,641
million Tenge as a result of valuation of investment's recoverable amount based on fair value less costs 1o sell.

In 2010 the Group reduced the allowance for impairment of investments in PJISC “BTA Bank™ (Ukraine) n the
amotnt of 2,402 million Tenge as & result of valuation of investment based on a five-year period financial plan
approved by the management of the associate 25 well as in connection with mitigation of political risks in Ukraine in
2010,

The following tables illustrate the summarized financial information of the Group's investment in joint veniures end
associates at December 31 (Group™s proportional share):

In midons af Tenga 2011 2010
Total assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates at

December 31
Total gassls 2,545,804 2,282,773
Total liabiities {1,253,B68) (1,200,110
Net assets 1,296,035 1,092,653
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9. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

In mifigns of Tenge 2011 2010
Total revenug and net profit in jeint ventures and associates for the year

Revenue 1,913,574 1,538,532
et profit B11.477 422 491

As at December 31, 20011 the Group's share n unrecognized accumulated losses of joint ventures and associates
amounted o 68,889 million Tenge (2010: 88,680 million Tenge).

10, LOANS TOCUSTOMERS

Ax gl December 31, loans to customiers comprised of the following:

i maltars of Tenge 2014 2010
Loans 1o large enfities 201847 1.8t 085
Loans 1o individusss E40 838 B33 BRG
Loans 10 amall and medivm business 282,042 247 684
Mt investments in inancs lease 44,237 37 489
Cther loans 17,085 8,836
Total loans 3,002,220 2 852 050
Less: Impaimmend aliowance {1,262,590) (1,175,076}
Loans to customers, net 1,730,630 1,778,983
Lass: cumenk portion (E6T, 100 {552 Bag)
MNon-curremnt portion 1,072,530 1,214,144
Movements in the loan Enpairment allowance were os follows for the years ended December 315
fn mifians of Tenge 2041 2010
Allowancs al January 1 1,176,078 1,187 078
Charged 355,089 146,350
Writtan-off {T8,138) (e )
Recovered {246,T18) (117.388)
Forgign currency ranslation 18,230 {18,558}
Discontnued operations {1,881} (53}
Allowance at December 31 1,262,590 1,175.078
The following table provides information on the credit quality of the loan portfolio at December 31:
in mitans of Tenge 2041 2010
Loans for which ne impairment has bean identified:
Standard loans 1482407 1,110,700
Lessimpalment silowance (62,803) {22,540
Standard loans, net of impairment sliowance 1,112,502 1,088,160
impalred loans:
Individually impained 1,638,280 1,200,610
Lessimeaimment sliowance {1.187 207} {801,.370)
indkvidually impaired loans, net of impairment allowance 451,073 450,240
Overdue loans:
- lass than 90 days 11,910 48,073
- over B0 days, but less than 1 year 70,834 183,136
- v | year 58,989 206,550
Less;impairment sliowance i5,778) (351,166)
Qverdua koans, ned of impairment slowance 178,055 184,603
Total impaired loans B27, 128 GEB B33
Total loans 1,739,530 1,776,893
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B P .

10, LOANS TO CUSTOMERS {continaed)
The components of et investments in finance [&ase a5 at December 31 are as follows:

I mitions of Tenps 2011 2010
‘Within one year 31,088 20,875
Lakef than Ome year, bul nod Bder than five years 18,815 214974
_Adter five yaam 7.0ED 4 B02

Minimum lease paymants 53,984 47 451

Lesy uneamed finance Income {9,747} (8,962
Lass impairment allowance (2.63T) {1,563
Het investmeant in finance leases 41600 35,938

As ot December 31 the ageing snakysis of loans to customers, is 2 follows:

in miffiares of Tenge 2011 20140
Maturilies less than 1 year BET, 100 52 B4B
Maturities over 1 year 1,072 530 1,214 144

1,738,830 1,776,803

1. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
Amount due from credit mstitutions comprised the following at December 31:

in milians of Tenge 2011 2010
Bank deposis Ta1,225 1,053,077
dmounts dus from cedit instiutions 315,765 354 GE0
Less: npairment allowames [(62,789) (B4 128)
Amounts due from credit institutions, net 1,048,204 1,343 851
Less: currant portion (T00,529) (554 [85)
MNon-currant portion 347 672 379,568
i mitians of Tange 2011 2018
10 largest local banks 806,766 1,157 540
Cither lacal credit Instituticns 39,7TTE 3.878
International credit institutions 201,659 154,058
1,048,201 1,343 651
iy milans of Tangs 2011 2010
Ratings from A&4 (Aaa) o AS-(Aad) BT, 725 d.188
Rating from B+(A1) 10 A-(A3) 79,330 2 455
Rating from BEE=(Baa1) 1o BEB{Baad) 81,557 35,085
Rating from BBEB-{Bae3) o B8-{Hal) 303,938 144 570
Rafing rom B+E1) lo B{(B3} 445 873 1,080,985
Rating from CCC+{Caal) o CC{Ca) " 7.058
Rafing is nol defined 093 0 114270
1,048,201 1,343 551
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Consolidated Financial Sistements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTHINS (contimued)

& mitliang af Tenge 2011 2010
Amounts due from credd nstubions, denominated in Tenge 19,650 47, 03
Amounts dus from credit mstiubons, denominated in US Dollers 417 535 BT ET
Amaunts due fram credsd mstiubions, denominated in ofher currencies 11,018 TA77

‘I-.{HE,EIH 1,343 8651

Ag gt Decernber 31, 2001 the weighied average intereat rate for amoents due from credit instituibons was 6,96%

{2010 5.52%)

The movernents in allowance for impairment of amounts due from credit institutions were as follows:

i miiTiana of Tangs 2011 -
Allowance & January 1 B4, 125 B3 G5B
Charged 1,357 3,187
Farelgn cumency (ranslation (1.504) {524)
Recoverad (T58) (22.083)
Writien-off (#31) (7.713)
Allowance at December 31 £2,784 84135

As at December 31, 2011 amounts due from credin institutions include cash of 43 346 million Tenge pledged as

collateral for centain Group's borrowings (2010; 39,963 million Tenge) (Nore 18).

12. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets comprised the following at December 31

b milans of Tengs 2011 2010
Note receivabla fram joint venture participant 18,439 20357
Mote receivable from associate participant 19,221 17,987
Availabde for sale financial assats 517112 891,102

Equity securities 260,569 485 BO3
Bonds of Kezakhstan financlal agencies 132,518 57,170
Treasury biks of the Minisiny of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan 748,582 102 883
Comporake boands 25,999 38,068
Bonds of infernational financial organizations 7,442 =0
MBREK nobes - 1.054
Qther debt aacwnities 5017 3.7
Less: Impadrment allowance {8,023) (7 454)
drciuding fnamclal assels suject fo repwchass sgreement 15,597 & Fog
Held to maturity financial assets 124 044 T EES
Bonds of Kazakhstan financial agencies 111,824 54,818
Treasury bilis of the Minigiry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan 10,778 11428
Conporate bonds 1,044 8,530
MERK nofes 2 144
Other debl securties 528 3,498
Less: Impairment allowance (134) [B35)
Securities purchased under reverss repurchase agreemeants 6915 6250
Secunties purchased under revarse repurchase agresmenis 5315 6250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

e e T

_In miltions of Tenge 2011 2010
Financial assets at fair valus through profit and loss g 816 23,781
Treasury bills of the Minisiry of Feance of ihe RepubBc of Kazakhstan 1B, 257 1,587
Bonds of Kazakhstan fnancial apencies BG73 2588
Ungissted investments in venture capital organizations 7,028 2,528
Unguoled equlty share investmenis 3,215 4 457
Corporate bands 1,200 11.454
Other equity securitbes - b f
Ohes debl securities 445 =
Trading securities 70,478 121 200

Bonds of Razakheian financial agencees 24,731 8,10
Traaswry bdls of the Mnsstry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan 14,771 35,768
Corporate bonds 5,373 AR
Traasury bills of foreign slates = B.863
Diher equity securiles 20,545 30,028
Chher debt securities BE5 5489
Derivative financial instruments 35,824 5,556
Cplians 33,501 5114
Currency Swaps 1,653 =
Cither 590 443
Tatal financizl assets 830,907 863 858
Less: current partion {336,025) (445,354
Mon-current partion 494 882 518,505

As at Decernber 31, 2011 the interest rates for available-for-sale financinl sssets, held to maturity fnanclal assets
and trading securities were in the ranges from 0.5% to 13%, from 0.93% (o 15% and from 3.6% o 13%,
respectively (2010 from 0.01% to 14%, from 3.6% o 15% and from 6.5% to 6.8%%).

e mil¥ons of Tﬂ.nE:l 2011 2010
Financial assats denaminated in Tenge 518812 618,830
Finansal assats senominated in US Dollare 171,300 .27
_Financial assate denominated in other curency 4571 13,247
795,083 858,303
e chamges in allowance for impairment of other financial assets are as follows:
dn miilians of Tandge 2011 20
Allowance at January 1 8,148 B,370
Charge 3482 4,587
Written-off (3,105} (4,120)
Dscontinued aperations (BE3) =
Forelgn currency translation 853 -
Recovered (534) _{oe8)
Allowance at Decembsr 31 8,157 B, 148
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS {continued)

Egulty securities favalloble for sale Treancial wxsels) = shares of «Toskibe NMuclear Energy Holdings (USE Inc.e
and « Toshiba Nuclear Energy Holdings UK Lidy

I 2007, MAC KAP purchased 400 Class A ordinary shares of Toshiba Muclear Energy Holdings US, Inc. {*THEH-
Us"} for 400,000 thousand US Dollars from Toshiba Nuclear Energy Investments U5 Inc. In addition, KAP
purchased 140 Class A ordinary shares of Toshiba Muclear Eneray Holdings UK. Lid (“THNEH-UK™} far 140,000
thousand US Dollars from and Toshiba Nuclear Enerpy Investments UK Lid. Through the purchass of 400 Class A
ordinary shares of TNEH-US and 140 Class A ordinary shares of TNEH-UK KAP acquired a [0 interest in these
eqtities. TMEH-US and THMEH-UK., own 100% interest in 'Westinghouse Group (""'Westinghowse"™).

In connection and simultansously with the acquisition of mterest in TNEH-US and TNEH=-UK, WAC EAF entered
inte a put option agreement {the “Put Option™), The Put Option provides NAC KAF with an option 1o sell its shares
to Toshiba Corporation for 100% of the original purchase price of 540,000 thousand 175 Dwollars for the first 6736 of
shares and 90% of the orizinal purchase price for the remaining 33% of shares resulting i a total estimated exerciss
price of 522180 thousand US Deollars, i7 cerification iz nod received from Westinghouse of fuel assembly
production by Ulba Metallurgical Plant (& subsidiary of MAC KAP). If the certification is not provided, MAC KAP
miay exercise the Put Option during the peried between March 31, 2010 and February 28, 2013,

In conmection and simulianeously with the scquisition of interest in THEH-US and THEH-UK, NAC KAP entered
inte & call option agreement (the “Call Option™). The Call Option provides Toshiba Corporation with the right to
demand from MAC KAP the sale of its TREH-US and TNEH-UK shares if the Committes on Foreign [nvestment m
the United States decides that NAC KAP 15 no longer a sivalegic pariner. n such case, the fair value of NAC KAPs
shares will be determined by an independent intepnational appraiser.

The Group has classified this investment as available for sale as this best reflects the intention of the Group and
ability to hold the investment for the long term. Investments in TNEH-LUIS and TNEH-LIE are carried at cost bacause
these invesiments are equiry in a private company for which fair valuee cannot be reliably measured.

As of December 31, 2011 carrying vahue of investments was 66,005 million Tenge (2010: 66,005 million of Tenge),

Equity securitles favallable for sale flnancial assers) — shares of Kazaklimys PLC

Om October 5, 2000 the Group hos acquired 11% of ordinary shares of Kamkhmys PLC, Consideration paid
amounted (0 198,028 million Tenge. Kazakhmys FLC is the largest copper producer and the owner of coalmines and
porwer stations in Kazakhstan.

Fair value of equity securities of Kazakhmys PLC as at December 31, 2011 was determined based on published
quatations on ective market and amounted o 124,87 million Tenge (2010 216,937 million Tenge).

Equity securities favaileble for sale finsncial aisess) - shores of Kazkommersbank JSC and Halvk Bank of
Razakhsoan JSC

Loss of significanr inffuence over Kazkommertsbark J5C and Halvk Bank of Kazakhsian J8C

In accordance with the option agreements concluded by the Fund and major shancholders upon the poquisition of
zhares of Kazkommertsbank J3C (“Kazkommertsbank™) and Halvk Bank of Kazakhstan J5C (“Halvk Bank™) in
20649, the major shareholders obdzined the right to purchass shares of these banks owned by the Fund at any time
during a period from the first till Gfth ammiversary of the acquisitions {eall options). The options became exercisable
in the first half of 2010, which resulted in the loss the Fund's influence over the banks. As o result, the Fund loa
significant inflaence in these associates and reclassified these nvestments into Mnancial assets available for sale and
recognized gain of 19,821 million Tenge in peofit and loss in 2010. At December 31, 2011 the Fund's ownership
imterest in these Banks remained unchanged. As at December 31, 2011 fuir value of shares of Halyk Bank of
Kazakhstan and Kazkommertshank JSC amounted to 340,149 million Tenge (20010: 132,204 million Tenge) ond
36,306 million Tenge, respectively {20102 73,159 million Tenge).

In March 2011, Holding Group ALMEX JSC and Halvk Bank of Kazakhstan signed an agreement on essignment of
right of demand for partial exercise of option on ordinary shares of Halyk Bank of Kezakhstan,
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1. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Egwity securifies (availehle for sale Tngncial assefs) — sheres of Koghommerisbank J8C and Halyd Bank of
Kazaklistan JSC {continued)

Loy of significans Influence over Kazkommerishank JEC and Halvk Bank of Kazalhisiar S5O {oominged)

In accordance with this agreement on March 30, 2011 Halyk Bank of Eersakhstan realized its right for partinl
execulion of option and acquired 213,000,000 of fts ordinary shares. Furthermorg, Holding Group ALMEX J5C
exercised an option and redeemed 46,064,909 ordinary shares of Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC. Total realizable
value of treasury shares emounted to 32,849 million Tenge.

After selling of Helyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC ordinary shares with a fair velue at the date of disposal of 93,263
milleon Tenge, the Fund ceased recognition of the rebevant option obligation on purchasing of ordinary shares, the
Tair value of thiz option on the date of exercise amounted 1o 80,021 million Tenga, An allowance of 6,474 million
Tenge on revaluetion of evailable-for-sale investments on ordinary shares of Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC was

reclassified into profit or boss. The resulting net loss on disposal of financial assets was recorded in the profit and
loss in the amount of 5,867 million Tenge,

Fair value of equity securitics of Kezakhmys PLC, Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC and Kazkommertsbank J5C as at
Drecember 31, 2011 was determined based on published guotations on active market,

il OTHER NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Cher nor-current assets comprised the following at December 31:

e mikiens of Tengs 2011 2010
Advances pald for non-casmen assels 184,242 150,814
Long-tenm VAT recoverable 71,760 64,840
Long-tedm inventory 11,160 2949
Aszsets for sele to the Govermment 3,011 =
Asgals 1o be fransfemed wnder finencs leage agrearmants 8,380 3,138
Restricted cashi 7.698 1,878
Dher 24,539 18,542
_Less: Impairmant allowsnca {15.874) [#6,326)
300,717 222 B85

Movernents in impaimment allowance for VAT recoverable are as follows:

i mmilons of Tangs 2011 2010
Al January 1 26,328 18,930
Charge fce tha yaar Tas 7.8
Wiitlen off (512) =
Racoverad {10,684) -
allowance at December 31 15,874 26,325

As at December 31, 2011 advances peid for non-current assets, mainly, comprise of the following advances:

Atyran Refinery LLP (subsidiary of NC KMG) prepaid 44234 million Tenge to Sinopec Engmeering for
construction of the aromatic hydrocarbons plant (2010 48,920 million Tenge):

EP KMG prepaid 17,992 million Tenge for construction of wells; (2010: 12,992 million Tenge):
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13.  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Feal Estate Fund Samruk-Kasyna paid advances of 3,547 million Tenge to construction companies (advances for
objects under construction that will be leased) (2010; 23,135 million Tenge), The Group concludes agreements with
constrection companics (the “Contractor”) on scquisition of residential and pon-residential premises and parking
s in Astans and Almaety. In asccordance with terms of the agreements, the Geoup is committed to make
prepayments B the Confractors and the Confractors are committed to complete the construction in sccordance with
the set deadlines. The Growp becomes the owner of the respective premises upon completion of the construction by
the Contractor. Completion of the prepaid properties i expected during the vears 201 [-2012:

NC KTZh paid advances for construction of the “Uszen — state border with Turkmenisian™ and “Khorgoz -
Ehetigen™ railway lines in the amount of 2,261 million Tengs (CH0010; 9,654 million Tenge), 23,337 million Tenge for
cars and locomotive supply expenses (Z000: nil), and 10,719 million Tenge for the purchase of spare parts for
assembly of locomotives (2000; 12,789 million Tenge);

KEGOC prepayments for construction of substation, ransmission lines and medernization of clectricity network
projects in the amount of 26,389 million Tenge (2010: 4,573 million Tenge):

Remaining advances paid for the fotal amount of 53,743 million Tenge (2010: 38,751 million Tenge) maindy
represent prepayments for supply of property, plant and equipment and completion of construction works.

I 2011, the ultimate Shareholder issued the NC KTZh with a decree in which it requested that the Fund, 31 the end
of the construction phase, sell certain assets, constructed within railway lines constraction projects, to the ultimate
Sharcholder at 8 yet to be agreed amount. The zale is expecied to occur in 2013 and while the sales price is yet to be
agresd, i1 is expected 10 be a1 4 minimum, the carrving valug of the said assets, In these consolidated financial
statements such assets have been presented within other non-curren: assats,

14.  INVENTORIES
[mwentories comprised the following st December 31:

i mmians of Tarngs 2011 2010
Refined products for sale 68,243 51,954
il and gas industry matenats and supplies 47,007 31,874
Wark in procass il 299 32837
Crude all 42,11 44 377
Oramed bid security 38115 31,807
Uranium products 30,244 35,504
Production meterials and supplies 29,762 16,763
Fuel 18,683 B, 796
Gas refinery products 18,518 25,365
Goods for resale 17,081 21,052
Railway materials and supplies 14,149 14,397
Eleclvic transmission equipment spare parts 3,384 4,234
Telecommunication equipment spam parts 2863 3273
Uranium matedals and supplies 1,318 g8
Crhher materials and supplies 14,249 286,102
Less: write-down to nel realizable vaiie — [15,735) [12.287)
ITE 45T 341,589

15,  TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Trade sccounts receivable comprised the following at December 31

_ i amniliang of Tangs 2011 2010
Trade accounts receivabs 207,110 271,381
Less:aliowancs for doubtiul debis (20,758) (18, 78%8)

276,552 251 608
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15 TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {continued)
(Mher current essets comprised the following atf December 31!

Iy rnifions af Tenge 2011 2010
Advances pasd and deferred expenses 108,634 106,306
Aszsat to the advantage of the Sharehalder (Mafe 4 74,808 14,478
Dividends receivable Nole 9) 34,845 24 ZEE
Prepayment 1o the Shareholder an dividends 9,077 7058
Qther taoes prepaymant 258 24 DEl
Obligatory reserde with the National Bank of RK 3,354 1,212
Assats to be fransfared under finance lease agreaments 2,546 2075
Arpounts dus fram employess 2,809 1.871
Restncted cash a5 2474
Other sccounts recaivabile 45 504 53,311
Othar 22,505 24,059
Less: impairmenl allowands _[3B,291) (32.471}
275,211 238 504

At Decemnber 31, 2011 the Group's receivables amounting to 26,926 million Tenge were pledged under Josn
agresments (2000; 16,835 million Tenge).

Changes in the allowance for impairment of trade accounts receivable and other current assets were &3 folbows:

in mittarts of Tenge 2011 2010
Resemve at January 1 52,258 43,182
zhange in accounting estimate (1) -
Charge fior the year 13,388 15423
Foreign curency tranglation (228) (1,0t
Write-off [39) {11,404}
Recoverad {5.787) {3,576)
Tranefers to ssesie classified as hald for ale [Nots §) (217) =
Loss of contred ouer subsidiany (282} 5730
Aflowance at December 31 58,049 f2.256

Ak af December 31, 2001 and 2010 trade accounts receivable and other current assets were not inferest bearing.
As af December 31 the ageing anahysis of trade receivables, is as follows:

Past due but not i

A e e P ——— e

Medther past
due mor 20 - B0 G60-80 BO-—120
i milions of Tenge Tial impared =30 days days days days =120 s
2011 iTe. 552 166,358 59,140 28,226 2,303 1,502 8,023
2010 251,606 187 415 48978 5,580 8.030 2,991 16,504
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1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash eguivalents comprised the following st December 31;

i milkons of Terge S & S 2010
Bank deposils — US Dollars 254,521 306,707
Bank deposits — Tenps 173,638 211,872
Bank deposits — ofher cumency 11,834 g,.562
Current accounts with banks = Tenge 845,208 BE7.078
Curreni accounts with banks — US Dollars 268,722 305,539
Curren accounts with banks - other curency 22,598 47 (51
Cash on hard 63,802 61,208
Cash in transit L = - as 238

1,640,700 1,835,450

As at December 31, 2011 Group's cash in the amount of 3,881 million Tenge represent guarantee payments under
lons and sre regtricted o uge, (20002 1,295 million Tenge).

Short-term deposits are placed for varving periods of between one day snd thres months, depending on the
immediste cash requircments of the Group. As at December 21, 20011 the weighted average interest rate for time
deposits with banks was 1.47% (2010: 1.21%).

17, EQUITY

17.1  Share capital
During 2011 and 2010 the Fund issued shares, which were contributed as follows:

Number of shares

authorized and Share capital, in

Payment for shares issued Par value, in Tenge  Millions of Tenge
Ag at Decernber 31, 2008 3.464,910,202 3,748,299
Conkiuicne n Cae 14,144,828 10,000; 5,000; 1,000 141,447
Contributions of proparty 21837 100,000 2,163
As at December 31, 2010 3,478,078 68T 3,891,909
Contributions in cash 14513387 1,000,000; 100,00; 1,000 147 552
Conbrbutions of propey 44 813 100,000; 10,000, 1,945; 1,000 £ 458
_Contriations of state-cwned shares B2 538 100,000, 34.647:1,353 5464
As at December 31, 2011 3480,637 455 4,050,383

As at December 31, 2011 3,480,637 455 shares (2010 3.4 79,076,667 shares) were fully paid.

In 2011, 44,813 shares issued by the Fund were paid by the transfer of other propecty by the Government with fair
valiee of 4,458 million Tenge (2010; 2,163 million Tenge),

In 2011, 64438 shares issued by the Fund were paid by the transfer of state-owned shares of National Geolagical
Company Kazgeologiva JSC (100%) and National Company Kazakhstan Engincering JSC (3%%). The total fair
value of the contribution amounted to 6,464 million Tenge in 2011 (2000: nif).

17.2 Discount on loans from the Government and on bonds purchased by the Government (National Bank)

During 2011, the Fund received loans from the Government, bearing lower-than-market interest rites (Mate [9).
Bonds discount at initial recognition in the amount of 21,793 million Tenge was recognized in the consolidated

statermnent of changes in equity (2010 111,144 million Tenge).
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17,  EQUITY [continued)
17.3  Dividends

011

On April 4, 2011, the Government approved the order of distribution of the Fund's net income for 2009 amaunting
e 7,056 million Tenge. This amount was paid on November 26, 2010 according 1o the Deciston of the Board of
Derectors of the Fund dated September |8, 2010,

20

On March 26, 2000, the Government approved the order of distribution of the Fund’s ner income for 2008
amoumiing bo &.646 million Tenge. This amount was paid on December 15, 2009 according o the Decision of the
Board of Directors of the Fund dazed September 30, 205,

17.4  Odher iransactions with the Shareholder

In accordance with a swap agreement signed in 2010 between the Committee of State Property and Privatization
("Committee™) and the Fund, the Fund transfers to the Commitise shares of Social-Entreprencurship Corporations
(“SEC™} and Mational [nnovation Fond JSC in exchange for the State’s 42% intersst in Pavlodar Patrochemical
Plant JSC (“PPP7), 1.67% interest i Kazakh Brtish Technical University (CRBTU™), ¥ interest in
Karagandagiproshakht JSC and other real estate and property.

In 2010 the Fund transferred shares of 3EC and NIF o the state ownership and received shares of PFF, KBTL and
Karagandagiproshakht LLF and other real estete and property. The management considers these ransactions as
contributions from and distributions to the Sharcholder. Therefore, the transfier of SEC and NIF and receipt of shares
of PPP, KBTU and Karagandagiproshakht and other real estate and property, was recorded as a distribution of
retaingd eamings of 55,569 million Tenge and & disposal of non-controlling interest of 22,584 million Tenge, that
represents difference between fair valus of disposed net assets of SEC and NIF and received shares of PPP, KBTLU
and Karngandagiproshaht and other assets,

Prior to the receipt of 42% shares of PPP from the Sharcholder, the Group acquired 58% of shares of PPP through
its subsidiary NC KMG (Note 5). Mon-coptrolling interest of 3,233 million Tenge was charged to retained earmings.

On April 11, 2001 the Shareholder and the Fund concluded another swap agreement. In accordance with this
agreament, the Fund transfers shares of its subsidiaries, Zhilstroisherbank Kazakhstan JSC and Kazakhstan Fund of
Guarantee of mortgage loans JSC, in exchange for state owned property (Neve 5). During 2011 the Fund transferred
shares of the subsidiaries and received the property according to the swap agreements signed in 2011 and 2010,
Therefore, the transfer of Fhilstroisberbank Kazakhstan JSC and Kazakhstan Fund of Guaranfee of mortgage loans
JSC and receipt of property, were recosded as a distribution 10 Shareholder of 20,692 million Tenge, that represents
difference betwesn the fair value of disposed net assets of subsidiaries end received property.

17.5 Change in ownership interests of subsidiaries - capital contribution by non-controlling interest
2011

Allignee Bank J5C

Om 25 August 2011, the shareholders of Alliance bank approved a reduction in the minimum guaranteed dividend of
preferred shares from 2,680 Tenge per share to 100 Tenge per share.

Accordinghy, the lisbility component was remeasured & the discounted net present value of the revised minimum
guaranteed dividends of 100 Tenge per share at the effiective interest rate of the instrument The change in the
liability component amounting to 19,461 miilion Tenge is recorded & an increase in non-controlling ivterest.

Natlonal Atomic Company Kazatomprom JSC

According to the terms of the zale agreement of 49% share in Semizbai-U LLP (Nore 20} combined instrument that
cantained equity component and debt componen: was imitinlly revognized. In connection with revision of strategic
plan of Semizbai-U LLP caused by decrease of market price on uranium products the instrument was revalued at the
net present value and resulted in equity component equal to zero. Change of the equity component resulted in
inerease of retained earningg by 5,833 million Tenge and comresponding decrease in non-controlling interest.
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17.  EQUITY (continued)

17.5 Change in ownership inferests of sobsidiaries — capital contribution by non-controlling interest
(continued])

Chther changes in ownershilp of subsidiaries

During 2011 other changes in ownership interests of subsidiaries as o result of contributions by pon-controlfing
interest increased refained earnings by 104 million Tenge and non-controlling intersst by 1,488 million Tenge.

2010

JEC Netfonal frmovaiional Fuwd (NIF")

Durimg 20140, the Government made an additional contribution to NIF, that resulted in a decrease of the Fund®s share
from 1 00% o 51,58%, As a resalt the non=controlling imerest increased by 12,323 million Tenge and the difference
of 9,488 million Tenge between the non-confrolling interest and the camying value of the met assets disposed was
shorged to retained samings.

Alfiance Bank

Linder the debt restructuring plan of Allisnce Bank, in March 2000 the Fund purchesed addittonal common and
preferred shares issued by the bank, Concurnently, the Fund transferred to the bank's creditors 33% of the bank's
ardinary and preferred shares resulting in 8 decrease in the Fund's interest in the bank to 67% of ordinary and
praferred shares, As the result of this transection the Fund recorded an increase in retained earnings in the amount of
59747 million Tenge and a corresponding decrease in the canrying value of the non-controlling interests in these
consolidated fimancial stetements.

Temirbank JEC [~ Temirkank 7

As part of BTA Bank debt restructuring plan approved in Mareh 2010, the Fund aequired newly issued ordinary
shares of Temirbank 15C, & subsidiary of BTA Bank. Concorrently, the Fund transferred to the bank's creditors
20.12% of the Temirbank’s shares resulting in the Fund™s interest in the bank of 79.88%. As resull of the
transaction, the Fund recorded a decrease in retained eamings in the amount of 27,59 million Tenge and a
corresponding increase i the carrying value of the non-controlling interests in these consolidated financial
statemenis.

B Bank

As part of BTA Bank debl restructuring plan approved in March 2010, the Fund has acquired newly issued ordinary
shares of BTA Bank. Concurrently, the Fund has provided 17.80% of the bank’s ordinary shares to the creditors of
BTA Bank, resulting in the Fund's share in BTA Bank of 82.20%. As a result of the transaction the Fund has
recognized a decrease of retained earnings of 111,579 million Tenge and respective increase of the non-controlling
interast in the consolidated finzncial statemants.

Navigmal Company Kazakhstan Engineering J5C

During 2010 the Government made a contribution o the share capital of Mational Company Kazakhstan
Enginesring JSC, that resulted in a decrease of the Fund's share from 100% to 61%. As a result of the transaction
non-contrelling interest increased by 5,432 million Tenge and difference between the non-controlling interest and
the carrving valae of net assets disposed tofaling 1o 712 million Tenge was charged to retained camings.

Canverdible debr instrument and relgted lifeations of NC KMG

As of December 31, 2009 NC KMG had an ourstanding balance of 3,353 million Tenge of a convertible deb
instrument issued by a significant subsidiary of TRG — Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A. 0 the Romanian Siate, The
nominal value of liabilities equaksd to 570.3 million Euro (112,280 miflion Tenga). The instrument had seven years
madurity and expired on September 30, 2010. Fair vafue of the debt component at the initial recognition was
determined as the discounted future contractual cash payments under the instrument. Under the share ownership as
of December 31, 2009 NC KMG would have lost control over Rompetrol Rafinare 5 A, if the entire debt mstrument
was sertled at September 30, 2010 by issuance of new shares to the Romanian State, withoul any further action by
TRG and'or Rompetrol Rafinere 5.A.
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17.  EQUITY (continued)

I7.5 Change in ownership Interests of subsidiaries — capital coniribution by non-controlling inierest
{continued)

207 {egmtinued )

Cowrversible debt Instrament and related livigations of Nealional comparmy KazMuneyGay (NG EMG ™) feontireed)

In arder to increase its interest in Rompetrol Rafinare 8.4, during the first half of 2010 NC KMG made a public
offer o all shareholders. In August 20010 Rompetrol Eafinere S.A. increased its share capital by issuance of new
shares amounting fo ROM 329 492 067 {equivalent to 78 million Eure at the date of subscription), all of which were
subscribed and fulty paid for by TRG, further increasing the Group's interest in Rompeirol Rafinare S_A. OF these
proceads from the share ssuance, during August 2010, Rompetrol Bafinare S A, repaid 54 mitlion Euro {equivilent
1o 10,464 million Tenge) out of the total debt of 5703 million Eure in relation to the convertible debt instrument 1o
the Roemanian State. In September 2010, Rompetrel Rafinare 5.A, paid the last coupon, amounting to 17 milion
Euro {equivalent to 3,315 million Tenge), leading to a nil balance of a liability component of the convertibie debt
instrument.

Om Scptember 30, 2000, the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of Rompetral Rafinare 5.4,
approved the conversion of the unredecmed convertible debt instrument into shares, the corresponding share capital
incresse and the exact numbers of shares 10 be peceived by the Romanian State for the conventible debt it held,
caleulated hased on the exchange rate in force on such date, ogether with a share premium calcutated as a difference
bhetween exchange rates valid on September 30, 2010 and on issuance date on Sepdember 30, 2003, This resulied in o
nom=comrolling interest of the Romanian 3ate of 44.70%,

These ransactions resulted in a decrease of the retained carnings by 113,467 million Tenge and increase of non-
contrelling interests by 103,003 million Tenge.

I August 2010, the Bomanian Sate, represented by the Ministry of Public Finance of the Romanian Siate, initiated
& legal action against the decision of Rompetrol Rafinare A, 1o Increase the zhare capital and convert the
converiible debd instrument partially in cash and partially by issuance of shares.

Constanta Tribunal dismissed the Fomanian State request; (a) for some of the annulment reasons considering that
the Romanian Stete lncks the capacity to stand trial, arguing that state did not kave the capacity of sharehokder when
such acts were adopted, (b) for some of the annulment reasons considering that they were not grounded. MFR
submitted a final appeal which s pending with Constanta Court of Appeal, having the next hearing on May [4,
2012, Due to the change of Romanian State m the end of Apnl 2002, the case was suspended up to & months period,
If the Romanian State prevails and the increase in share capital is rejected in the court, the Group would lese control
over Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A.

Furthermore, on Movember 17, 2000 the Mmisry of Public Finance of the Romanlan State bsued a Summons and
Forced Execution Title for the amount of RON 2,205,592 436 {for presentation purposes EUR 516.3 mitlion and, at
the exchange rate as of Decomber 31, 2010 is 100,797 million Tenge) as o result of the Romanian Authorities
disagreement with the decision of NC KMG to partially sertle the instrument by issuance of shares. Rompetrol
Rafinare 8.4, filed a claim against a forced execution requesting cancelation of the Summons and Forced Execution
Title. O Jamuary 14, 2011, the Constanta Court of Appeal suspended the enforcement and any effects of the Forced
Execution Title. The next hearings with respect to the annuiment of the Forced Execution Title are scheduled for
April 2012, Due to the change of the Romanian State in the end of April 2012, the case was suspended up to &
manths periad.

In addition, on September 10, 2010 the Romanian suthorities, represented by The National Agency for Fiscal
Administration (ANAF), issued a decislon for a precautionary seizure on all participations held by Rompetrol
Rafinare 5. A, in its affiliafes as well as on all movable and immovable assets of Rompetrol Rafinare 5, A, excepl for
imventorics. This measure is still in force end being challenged by NG KMG, As of reporting date the seizure has not
been enforced us the Romanian authorities did not initiate forced execation procedures. Management believes thal
the enforcement of the seizure by the authoritics would not be practicable.

Managzement belisves that the legal actions against NC KMG have no legal grounds and NC KMG will succeed.
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17.  EQUITY {continued)
176  Change in ownership interesis of subsidiaries — pequisition of nop-conirofling interes(
e i} |

BTA Bank

In April 2011, BTA Bank acquired additional shares of JSC Accumulative Pension Fund Ular- Urmnit ("Ular-Ulmin™)
and J5C Pension Asset Management Company Zhetysu (“Zhetvsu'), increasing it stake In these ingtitutions from
T3.00% to 100.00%.

As g result of the above-mentioned acquisitions:
s MNon-controlling interest decreased by 3,506 million Tenge; and

« 3079 million Tenge refating 1o the difference between the carrying values of the net assets attributahle to
acaquired interests m these subsidiaries and the consideration paid wos allocated to retained samings,

On April 29, 2011, the Committee for the Control and Supervision of Financial Market and Financial Instinetions of
the MNational Bank of Kazakhstan (the "Committee™) adopted a resolution to grant & permission for voluntary
recrganization of Ular-Umit and J5C APF BTA Kazakhstan, a subsifiary company of BTA Bank (“BTA
Kazakhstan''), by merging BTA Kazakhstan to Dlar-Umif. Ular-Umit on the basizs of the act of transfer and
gocepance ook over the property, rights and obligations of BTA Kezakhstan. The process of pension funds merging
was performed through a placement of shares to existing shareholders i proportion 10 the mtio of sale price of BTA
Kazakhstan shares to an issue price of Ular-Umit shares. The share exchange procedure was initiated in May and
completed in September 201 1. As a result, the share of BTA Bank in the share capital of Ular Umit decressed from
100.00% 1o 52.38%.

NC KA

In Movernber 20011, NC KMG increasad i3 ownership in Rompemrol Georgia by 1%, increasing it to 99%. A< a
result of the change in ownership the difference of 1,838 million Tenge between the carmying values of the net assets
atrributable to the ecquired interests in the subsidiary of 1,778 million Tenge and the consideration paid of 80
million Tenge was recorded in the retained eamings in 2011,

National Company KNazabkstun Engingering JSC

In accordance with the Regulation of the Government of the Republic of Kazekhston Mo, 1356 dated Movember 19,
2011 stete-owned shares of National Company Kazakhstan Engineering JSC were tranaferred to the Fund (Ware
17,1 which resulted in an increase of the Fund's ownership share from 61% to 100%. As a result non-controlling
interest decrensed by 5,708 million Tenge and difference between the non-vontrolling interest and the canying value
of pet assets amounting o 680 milllon Tenge was charged 1o retained eamings.

010

NC KM

During the year ended December 31, 2010, NC KMG acquired additional shares in Rompetrol Rafinare S.A.,
Rompetrol Well Services 5.A., Rompetrol Bulgaria and Rompetrol Georgia, Details of these additional acquisitions
are discussed below.

Om Fanpary 27, 2000 NC KMG initizted the mandatory public offer for the acquisition of 132,77 million Rompetrol
Well Services 5.A. shares available on stock exchange from non-controlling shareholders, for & price of RON 0.43
per share, On February 23, 2010 NC KMG acquired additional 20.74% shares of Rompetrol Well Services 5.A. for
# todal amount of ROM 248 million {equivalent to 1,212 million Tenge al an avérage rate of carrency exchange for
20107 After the mandstory public offer, NC KMG confrals 73.00% of Rompetral Well Services 5.A.

i1
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17, EQUITY {continued)
176 Change in vwoership interests of sebsidipries — acguisition of non-controlling interest (continued)
20010 {eontinued )

NE EMG feontimred)

Om February &, 2010 NC KMG initiated a mandatory public offer for the acquisition of 5,062.17 million Rompetrol
Rafinars S_A. shares available on stock exchangs from non-controlling shareholders, for a price of RON (L0751 per
share. After the closing of the offer period, on March 26, 20010, NC KMG acquired an additional 22_14% of the
share capital of Rompetro] Rafinare 8.4, for an amount of RON 338 million (equivalent to 16,740 million Tenge at
am average rate for 20100, After the mandatory public offer, NC KMG contrelled 98.6% of Eompetrol Rafinare 5.4,
The imterest in Komperol Rafinare 3.4, decreased as of September 2010 to 54.62% through the conversion of the
comvertible debt instramens.

As aresult of the above-mentioned acquisitions:
=  Non-controlling interest decreasad by 65,335 million Tenge; and

* #7302 million Tenge relating to the difference between the curmving values of the et assets auributable o
eoquired interests in these subsidiaries and the consideration paid Tor such increases was allocaied o retained

EATIRES,
17.7  Acquisition of freasury shares by subsidiary

MG EP

In 20011, KMG EP increased its treasury stock by 938,479 preferred shares repurchased for 13,746 miilion Tenge
{2010: 1,346,213 preferred shares repurchased for 24,532 million Tenge). The carrying value of the acquired non-
controlling interest was 14,892 million Tenge as of December 31, 2001 (2000; 20,535 million Tenge), The
difference of 854 million Tenge between the amount paid and carrying value of acquired non-controlling interest
was recognized m retained eamings in 2001 (20002 3,997 million Tenge).

17.8 Other distributions to the Sharehabder

Cawstrietion of secial bulldings

During the year, ended December 31, 2011, other distributions to the Shareholder represent an obligation, under &
Government degree, in relation o the construction of the following objects m Astana city: Kaeakhstan History
Museum, “Building for a feleradio-complex, Student's Palace” and reconstruction of the World Expo-Center (lhe
Expo-Center”) in Moscow, The Group has recognized a constructive obligation of which the amount of future
probabie cash outflows is reliably measured (Nate ). During 2011, the Group made a provision of 3,959 million
Tenge for the reconstruction of the Expo-Center and increased provision for eonstruction of the social balldings m
Astana by 33,568 million Tenge {2010: 71,582 million Tenge) which were recognired in squity as distribution to
the Sharehaolder,

Sponzorships under the Shareholder s requess

In nccordance with the Resolution of the Government, the Group provided sponsorship totaling to 5,000 million
Tenge for financing restoration of accommodations, engineering and social infrastructore damaged as a result of
floods daring spring 2011 at the West-Kazakhstan oblast. As a result, the Group recognized other distributions to the
Shareholder of 5 000 million Tenge.

17.% Currescy trapslation reserves

The currency translation reserve i3 used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of financial
statements of the subsidiaries, whose functional currency 5 1ot Tenge and w_hl:rsc_t'umncju! stiatemnents are included
i the consolidated finencial ststements in accordance with the accounting policy disclosed in Nove 3.
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17.  EQUITY (continued)

17.00 (rher capital reserves

her capital reserves includs the offect of cash flow hedpe accounting 1o record any fair value gzins or losses on the
designated derivative financial instrumenis in a hedging reserve within equity. These gains or fosses are
subsequently recveled to the profit and loss as transactions are settled,

{Mher capital reserves also inchude remumeration of emplovees for the services rendered in the form of share-based
paymenis with equity insruments of a subsidiary in which they are emploved, The cost of equitv-settied
remuncrations is recognized, together with & corresponding increase in other equity reserves, over the periad in
which performence end'or service conditions ure fulfilld. ending on the datz on which the relevant smployees
became fully entitled mw the award,

17.11 Earnings per share

Basic camings per share amounis are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attribufable to ordinery equity
holders of the parent by the weighted averaze mumber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Drifwted eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit anrbatable o ordinary equity holdess of the
parent {after adjusting for interest on convertible preferred shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares,

The following reflects the income and share data uzed in the basic and diluted eamings per share computations:

in milions of Tenge 2011 2010
Wel profit from continuing opesadions attributable 1o on@nary equity holdens of

the panent 287,544 518,308
Met profit from a discontinued cperation altnbutable to ordinary egquity

holders of the parant 32,481 26,683
Met profit attributable to ordimary equity holders of the parent for basic

eamings calculation 330,035 544,991

Welghted average number of ordinary sheres for basic and diluted eamings
par share 2478495 3142 A8 629 EED

17.12 Book value of shares

In accordance with the decision of the Exchange Beard of the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC ("EASET] dated
Owctober 4, 2010 financial statements shall disclose book vahee per share (ordinary and preferred) as of the reporting
date, caleulated i secordance with the KASE nales,

i iinilbens of Tange 2011 v (]
Tiata! assetie 13,413,405 12,815,308
Intangibie asgets {3086,988) (265,172

Tatsl liabities (7,683,802) (7,382 894)
Nat assets for ordinary shares 5,422,614 5,157,242
Number of ordinary shares as of December 31 3480637 455  1.470,076.BE7
Book value per ordinary share, Tenge 1,558 1483

63
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18,  BORROWINGS
Borrowings, including accrued interest, comprised the following at December 31:

i milians af Tenge 2011 2010
Fixed inferest rate borrowings 3,156,776 2 502,400

Wiighted average interest rate B.19% 8.38%
Variabile interest rale borowings 1,040,000 147870

_Waighted average interast rate E.18% 5.14%
4, 196,7TE 4082126

Less: amounts dus for sefternent within 12 months {550,740) 854,117}
Amounts due for settlement afier 12 months 3,845,038 3,228,009
I eriilione af Tenges 2011 2010
Us Dofiar-denomindied bomowings 3,582 382 3,664,005
Tenge-danominated bomowings 468,194 301 487
Cither currency-denominated bomowings 146,198 118534
4 186,776 4,082,126

Under the terms and conditions of certain borrowing agreements, respective subsidiaries of the Group are obliged to
comply with certain covenants, At December 31, 2011 and 2010, Group mansgement believes that the Growp’s
subsidiaries complied with all the covenants,

19.  LOANS FROM THE GOVERNMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF KALZAKHSTAN

Loans from the Govermment of the Republic of Kazakhstan comprised the following at Diecember 31:

fir mitbans of Tangs 2011 2010
Loans from the Government of the Fepublic of Kazakhetan BEY,715 A78 B5T
' BED, 715 878,857
Less: amounts due for sefflement within 1.2 months (438,968) (473,185
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 430,747 4065 TE2
011

As of December 31, 2011 the loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan comprised a loan obtained
by BTA hank, under repurchase agreements under the pledge of debt securities of the Fund, from National Bank of
the Republic of Kazakhstan in the amount of 430,928 million Tenge {2010: 465,746 millin Tenge). As of
December 31, 2001 the amortized cost of these debt securities was 424,638 millisn Tenge (2010: 349,721 million
Tenge).

In aceordance with the Law of the Republic of Kazakhatan “On Republican budaet for 207 1-2013" dated November
262000, in 2011 the Fund obtained loans from the Ministry of Industry and New Technologies of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, The total amount of loans is 46,600 million Tenge with interest rates ranging between 0.1% and 0.5%.
Loans were gramted for the pertod ranging from 10 to 25 years,

When Initially recognized, these loans were measured at fair value equal to 24.807 million Tenge using appropriate
market interest rate and subssquently are carried at amortized cost. The difference between nominal cost of loans
and their falr value in the amount of 21,793 million Tenge was recognized in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. As of December 31, 2011 the amortised cost of borrowings was 25,135 million Tenge (20110 nil).
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9. LOANS FROM THE GOVERNMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF KATZAKHSTAN (continued)

200

In 2000 the Fund placed 220,000,000 coupon bonds with nominal valwe of 1,000 Tenge per bond for the total
amount of 220,000 million Tenge, The maturicy of bonds 15 15 vears, coupon interest at the amount of {,.4% shall be
paid semi-annually. All bonds were purchased by the Wationa! Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan, Amounts
ohtained from placement of these bonds were used for acquisition of shares of Kazakhmys PLC i the crganioad
market. The difference between nominal cost of loans and their fair value at the amount of 102,732 million Tenge
wits recognized in the consolidated starement of changes in equity as additional contribution of Sharcholder. As of
December 31, 200 1, the carmyimg value of the loans was 123 409 million Tenge (2000: 18,59 million Tenge),

In accordance with the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan *On Republican budget for 2010-200127 dated December
7, 2009, in December 2010 the Fund obained 2 loans from the Ministry of Industry and New Technologies of the
Republic of Kazakhstan with inferest rafes ranging between 0.23% and (.5%. Loans were granted for the period
from 11 to 20 years and inlended to provide loans to subsidiaries for the purpose of granting housing loans 1o certain
catepories of citizens (15,163 million Tenged and fo fnance project ““Construction and operation of new railway ling
“Railway siation Shar — Ust-Kamenogorsk™ {3640 million Tenge). The miterest rates should not exceed 135 per
ganum and 0.3% per annum, respectively.

When Initially recognized, these loans were measured at fair value equal to 10,391 million with the recognition of
discoumt in the amount of 8.412 million Tenge in the consolidated statement of changes in cquity as additional
ceatribution of the Shareholder. As of December 31, 2011 the camrying valug of borrowings was 10,924 million
Tenge (2010; 10.3%] millzon Tenge).

In addition, on December 31, 2010 beans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan included 480,000 and
149 900,000 coupon bonds totaling to 629,900 million Tenge with 0.02% and 1% interest rates purchased by
Mational Bank of Kazakhstan discount recognized in retained eamings., Amounts obtained from realization of theso
bonds have the purpose 10 purchise 50% share in Ekibastuz GRES-1 LLP and refinancing of acquisition of 0%
share in Bogatyr Comir LLP under the Stabilization plan. As at December 31, 2010, carrying value of the
borrowings amounted to 209,796 million Tenge (2009: 191,991 miilion Tenge).

Also, as of December 31, 2011, loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan comprized non=current
borrowings received from the state budget to support cermain industries, including textile, gas processing and
chemical industries. The interest rates for the loans are from (0.1% 1w 8.4% reflecting the purpose of the loans.

2. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
As of the reporting date other non-current lisbilities mcluded the following:

Payables for goguisivion of particimation i a praject

Om Oetober 31, 2008 all participants of MCF signed an agreement according to which all project participants exceg
for KMG Kashagan B, V. agreed 1o partially sell their interest in the project on proportional basis in order to increase
the interest of KMO Kashagan BV, in NCP from 3.33% 1o 16.81% retrospectively from January 1, 2008, The
acquisition cost consisted of fixed amount of 1.78 billlon US Dollars (263 billion Tenge) plus snnual interest at
LIBOR + 3%, which annually is capitalised with the principal amount. The given debt obligation {s pladged by the
additional §.48% interest acquired. As at December 31, 2011, the carrying value of pledged assets (property, plani
and equipment, and exploration and evaluation assets) was 622,925 million Tenge (2010 530,100 million Tenge)

As a1t December 31, 2001 amortised cost of this lability amounted 10 320,927 million Tenge (2010: 314,566 million
Tengeh

B
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2. OTHER NONM-CURRENT LIABILITIES {continued)

Bigpowel of 49% shore in Semizbai-U LLP

In 2008, MAC KAP entered infto an egreement {'Agreement™) with Befjing Sino-Kaz Uranium Resounces
Investment Company Limited (“Sine-Kaz Company™) for the sale of a 49% share in Semizbai-l) LLP for cash
consideration of 234 million US Dollars for 28,274 million Tenge), which represents the current value of future cash
ourflows, The Group retaing 51% share in Semizhai-U LLP.

According to the Agreement Sino-Kaz has the right to distribute in proportion (o share participation the minimsm
net inceme from 2010 through 2033, which represents the repayment of the financial lobility recorded i this
transaction. This distribution is reguired for minimum payments of contrectunl amounts. These payments are
guaranteed by NAC KAP. This financial liability was measured ai fair value as st the date of 55 initiaf recognition.

NAC KAP also enmered inte put option that gives Sino-Kaz Company the right 1o sell its 49% share in Semizbai-U
for NAC KAP at a price equal to considerstion paid by Sino-Kaz Company, less the current cost of net income
distributed by Sino-Kaz Company. Realisation of this put option depends on the followling events: (a) Kazakhstan
Government terminates subsurface use contract for any of uranium deposits belonging to Semisbai-L; (b) uraniumn
expor by Semizhai-1J is either forbidden, or embargo is applied; (c) any other reasons arising in connection with
nonfulfillment by Semizbai-l any other agreements in accordance with arangements of the parties.

Terms of the Agreement commit Sino-Kaz Company to purchase all uranium produced by Semizhai-U LLP which
will be processed to uranium dioxide (pelicts and powder) by Ulba Metallurgical Plant JSC (a subsidiary company
of NAC KAP), for use in Chinese atomic power plants, China Guandong Muclear Power Corporation, the parent
company of Sino-Kaz Company, committed to certify the technologies used at Ulba Metallurgical Plant JSC for
production of uranium dioxide pellets and powder for use on Chinese atomic power plants, within two years from
the dase of the Agreement. [n 2000 the cerification was 2uccessfully accomplished. In October 2001, the first batch
of dioxide pellets produced by Ulba Metallurgical Plant JSC was shipped to China. In addition, in 2011, a contract
was concluded for 2012-2014 for the shipment of dioxide pellets to China.

As at December 31, 2001 amortised cost of this lizbility amounted to 40,746 (2010; 40,292 million Tenge).

Liabilities related to preforred shares of Alllance Bank

Op December 15, 2009, creditors of Alliance Bank, which owned the bank's liahilities of 95.1% of the total
financizl debt, approved the plan of the bank™s debt restructuring, The restructuring was successfully finafized on
March 26, 2010 and in exchange for restructurized debt the Bank issued to creditors new debt securities, and
preference shares with the fair value of a lighility component in the amount of 20,135 million Tenge, The liability
component of preference shares was recognised at fair value at initial recognition and arose due to preference shanes
having a minimum guaranieed dividend of 2,680 Tenge per share, On 25 Auguse 3011, the shareholders approved a
reduction in the minimum guaranteed dividend of preferred shares from 2,680 Tenge per share to 100 Tenge per
shinne,

The Hability component was remeasured at the discounted net present value of the revised minimum guaranteed.
The change in the liahility component amounting to 19,464 million Tenge is recorded a5 an increase in sguity. As at
December 31, 2011, the amortized cost of these liabilities was 762 million Tenge (2010: 22,2530 million Tenge).
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1. PROVISIONS
Provisions comprised the following st December 31

Provision
for bank
Azset  Provisbon for letters of
retirerment envinonmental  Provision  credit and
dn mabans of Tenge obligations Hebidlity for taxes guarantees Orther Total
Proviston &t December 31,

2009 28,BE8 0,527 M,635 58,127 7435 180,814
Fomemn currency translathon - (43 (53) (218) {13} (327
Change in estimata 1323 B13 {1,340) = G222 7018
Unwinding of discouni 2417 20 1 = 18 2456
Provision for the year 3054 Bas Ba14 329 82 350 5 152
Addilions thraugh business

comiinations (MNofs 5) - 11 - = = 11
Discontinued operation = - - 3 - 3}
Use of provision (1,460 (2213 {8,821 3143 (3,002  {12.401)

_Reversal of unused amounis - (52 {7 803 {51, 634) {85} (70559}
Pravision at December 31,

2010 33,581 29,565 24,933 540 528938 181,981
Fersign currency anslaton 8 (T1) 218 16 18 240
Change in estimate (2,2 152 = 126 2,500 5TE
Unwinding of discoun 2,587 = - = 1.115 3,534
Provizion for the year 3026 556 15,316 5,844 40,322 £5,072
Addilions lhrough business

combinations [Note 5) = = = " 580 ik
Discontinued aperalion = - e (301) = (301)
ise of provision [BET) {1,264} {5.812) (58] [E.014y (18,037
Reversal of unused amounls [Eh [S55) (11,718) £31] (1.1468)  {13.461)
Pravision at December 31,

2011 38,042 28 438 22 936 6138 1XE20 232172

Current partion and long-term portion are sepregated &5 follows:
Provision
Provision for bank
Assat for environ- lattars of
retirement mental  Provision  credit and
Iy mnilfons of Trrgpe obligations liaksility for laxes guaranioss Othar Total
Current porfion 748 1,887 22344 3,654 122,850 161,808
porticn 35 74 28,471 592 2,437 8,770 70554
Provigion at December 31,

2011 36,042 28,436 22,936 6,138 128,620 2232 172
Currenl postion 745 3170 23,886 3 BT.574 115,405
Long-term portion 33236 26,399 1,047 510 5,384 66555
Pravislen at December 31,

2040 33.881 25,569 24,933 540 52,938 181,961

A description of these provisions, including critical estimites and judgments, is included in Note 4.

T
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21, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY

State contribution scheme

The Group pavs social tax according to the current statutory requirements in the Republic of Kazakhstan, Social tax
and pavroll are expensed as incurred.

The Group also withholds and contributes up to 10% from salaries of its emplovess as the employvee contribution to
their cunulative pension funds. These amounts are expensed m the period they are incurred,
Defined henefit plan

Emploves benefit lHabilities under this plan are pavable in accordance with labour union agreemenis concluded
hetween certain subsidiaries of the Group (Wationa]l Company “KazMunayGas™ JSC, MWattonal Company
“Kazakhsian Temir Zholy™ J3C, Kezakhiclecom J5C, Samruk-Energy JSC and Kamkos LLF) and emplovees of
those subsidiaries,

The total Hability for the Group's Defined Benefit Plan comprised the following as at December 31:

2011 200

Prasent value of defined bensfil liability 41,538 32,333

A reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit plan Hability with specified payments is ns follows for
the vears ended December 31;

I milkons of Tanga 2011 2010
Total liskifity at the beginning of the yeae 32333 28,708
Currend service oosl 2,294 4,158
Past senice cost 2145 2 508
Interast cost 2,880 2615
Benedils pald during the year (4,135]) (4, 758)
Unrecorded past sarvice cosl a0 132
Actisasial boss recognized during the year 6,041 TTE
Totsl liabikty at the end of the year 41,538 32,233
Liakisty falling due within one year [3,631) (3. 735}
_ Lisbisty falling due after one year 37508 28 458

Actunrial loss recognised for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 results primarily from changes in
assumptions relating o futere salary increases.

Current service cost, interest cost, past service cost and actuarial loss in the aggregate amount of 13,442 million
Tenge weare recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within personnel costs (2010: 10,281
fnillion Tenge).

Estimates of the Group's lisbilities were made on the basis of published statistical data regarding mortality and
actusl Group's data conceming number, age, gender and years of employee service. Other principal assumptions #l
the balance sheet date, calculated as weighed averape for all plans, were as follows:

2011 2010
Discount rate 7.93% T.31%
The expactad rabe of fulwe annual material agsistance moreases S.21% 5.63%
The expected rate of future annual minimwem salary increases B.35% B.21%
The axpected rabe of future annual railway ticket price incréases 2.53% 4. 7T%

The Defined Benefit Plans are unfunded.
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I3, AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Ir HINOE of Tangs 2011 2010
Time deposits: 515,086 444 235
Legal antities 81,883 75,858
Indiwiduals 410,304 353 692
Govamment organizations 13,0T8 4 583
_Current accounts: 205,535 164 BE2
Legal entities 125,855 595,037
Individuals GE,345 86,287
Govarnmant organizations . 13,284 8,438
_ Guarantees and other deposits with restrictive covenants: 16,043 11,511
Legal entithes 10,331 5,865
Indiwidusais 5,598 5451
(overnment organizations 17 106
Amounts due to customers TaE 844 G20 408
24. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Crthier current linbilities comprised the following as at December 3 1
I rnilliens of Tenge 2011 2010
Advances received and deferred income: 160,225 124,827
Other laxes peyable 121,471 105,556
Dse to employess 59,041 41,387
Dither ) 57,412 68,850
408,145 40,430
Asar December 31, 2011 and 2010 other current labilities wers not inferest bearing,
25,  REYENUE
Revenee comprised the following for the vears ended Drecember 31:
dn miiars of Tenge 2011 20103
Sales of refired products 1,848 428 1,407,134
Fedweay cargo rensportation 590,436 488,574
Sales of crude ol 470,620 461,608
Inferast revens 267,951 286,001
Sales of uranium products 263,813 181.542
il and gas franspariation 222,720 243 028
Sales of gas products 162,154 157,008
Telecommunication services 164,584 144 353
Air fransportation 111,008 98,212
Elaciriciy comphex B5111 85,230
Eleclric energy fransmission senices 58483 44,010
Railway passengsr transportation E4.308 50,297
Postal senvices 189,328 17,263
Obrar raseie 327,132 1497 332
Less: sales taxes and commercial discounts (&52,110) (264 353)
4,402 528 3606215

Cifer revenue

Otther revenue comprises primarily revenue from commissions, revenue from the sale of inventories and rendering

of ather supplementary services to third parties provided together with matn services,
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6. GOVERNMENT GRAMNTS

According to Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan Mo, 1188, dated Movember |1, 2004
“On the approval of subsidies for carrier lossez connected with the provision of passenger transportation™,
beainning from January 1, 2005, National Company “Kazakhstan Temir Zholy™ JSC ("NC KTZh"™) started
recelving government granls 45 & compensations of carrers’ losses for socially important destinations, There are
no unfullilled conditions or contingences atiached to these grants. The amount of subsidy for the year ended
December 31,2001 was 18,454 million Tenge (2010: 15,409 million Tenge).

According to the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 1039, dated October 7, 2004
“On the approval of subsidies for relecommunication operators losses connected with the provision of universal
telecommunication services in rural sreas”, beginning from #th quarter of 2004, Kazakhtelecom JSC started
receiving government grants as compensation of operators” losses for socially imporiant destinations, There are mo
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies aftached o these grants, The amount of subsidy for the year ended
December 31, 201 1 was equal o 5,575 million Tenge (2019: 5,227 million Tenge).

In accordance with Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan Mo, 905 dated August 17, 20402,
the Government provides subsidies 10 companies rendering air passenger services on unprofitable routes from
Astana to other cities in Kazakhstan, The subsidy is based on the excess of flight costs over revenug eamed, The
emount of subsidy for the vear ended December 31, 2011 was 377 million Tenge (2000:; 678 million Tenge)

27,  COSTOF SALES
Cost of sales comprised the following for the vears ended December 31

I milons of Tenope 2011 2010
Meterials and supplies 1, TEE 580 1,340,201
Parsonnel cosis 437 558 385425
Interast expensa 264,504 228454
Depreciation, deplefion and emorization 247 358 214 445
Production services rendened 87432 51,828
Repair and malntenance 31137 T4 582
Mineral meiraction fax 829,104 79,335
Rent 341,508 15,196
Cther 148,083 135,588
3,184,222 2.515,164

28 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and pdministrative expenses comprised the following for the yvears ended 31 December:

I miiars af Tevge. 2011 2010
Personnel cosis 162,375 147,275
Spansorerip and charitable donations B9, 216 24 627
Consulting senices 46,744 38,934
Taxes other than come tax 42,537 31,274
Depreciation and amarization 28,501 29,629
Fines and penslties 13,585 5,254
Alowance for doubtiul debis 8,025 14,183
Other BO.200 80,043

438,683 a7 228

T
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29, TRANSPORTATION AND SELLING EXPENSES
Transportation and selling expenses comprised the following for the vears ended December 31

i tiars af Tenge . 201 2010
Rend fax 145,783 oa.oor
Transportation 104,807 a7 483
Cushorm duibes 51,665 7540
Pareonnal coste 18,800 17,8960
Depracidion and amortlzation 11,688 13,200
Commission fees to agents and advertising 11,174 10,600
Other 19,051 17,960
Ja7,178 253018

in July 2000, the Government made certain amendments to the customs legislation which resulted in the customs
dutics paid by the oil production subsidizries of the Group at 20 US Dolkars per ton of crude ofl exparted in 2010.

Effective January 1, 2011, customs duties paid by the Karakhstani crude ofl production subsidiaries increased to 40
U3 Dollars per toa from 20 US Dollass per fon of crade oil,

30. IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Impairment Joss comprized the following for the vears ended December 31

i milions of Tenge 2011 2010
Impairment of lnans to customers 146,974 12,074
Impairment of proparty, plant and equepment and intangble assets 57,254 11,245
ImgpairmentReversal) of investments in joint venfures and assotiates 21,574 {1.741)
Impairment of finandal assels 2,910 3,058
Irrepairrmend of goodwill 23 =
Impairment of amounls dug Trorm credil instiulions 538 14,811
CAher {2,047 £,908
232,035 48,353

3. OTHER OPFERATING INCOME

Other opernting income for the vear ended December 31, 2011 includes mainky nét mcome from operations with
finarcial nstrumsents carried at fair value throush profit and loss i the the amount of 32,337 million Tenge (2000
income at 52,517 million Tenge), income from change in the cost of secovery bonds of BTA Bank 12,265 million Tenge
{3010: nil), net income from transactions with foreign currencies in the amount of 1,422 million Tenge {2000
12,874 million Tenge), as well as other non operating income such as income from fines end penaltics, income from
disposal of other non current assets.

3. OTHER OPERATING EXFENSES

Other operating expenses are mainly presented by other operating expenses of second tier banks, inclu-:_li!:lg provision
for leners of credit and guarentees in the amount of 5,852 million Tenge (2010: reversal of provision for total
amount of 61,748 milkion Tenge).

Fair value of liabilities of BTA Bank and Alliance Bank as of the date of acquisition was identified assuming best
estimate of results from the future debe restractaring of the banks. Other operating expenses for 2010 ncludes the
effect of finalization of the debt restructuring totaling 285,339 million Tenge, that represents the difference between
actual gains from debt restrecturing and its estimation as of the date of acquisition, incheding effect of finalization of
debt restructuring of BTA Bank of 273,826 million Tenge and effect of finalization of debt restructuring of Alliance
Bank of 11,513 million Tenge.

71
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3%, OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

The above effect includes fair value of recovery notes of BTA Bank of 116,144 million Tenge that are part of new
liabilities after debd restructuring, These securities provide ther holders right 10 recedve m ocash 50% of actual
recovery of impaired assets consisting of impaired assefs for recovery, legal claims recovery and tax assets. As of
the date of acquisition of BTA Bank (February 2, 2009) fair value of those recovery nofes could nat be estimated,
and, accordingly, those notes were recognized at zero value. Difference of 169,195 million Tenge accurred, mainly,
due to difference between discount rates applied to estimate fair value of new liabilities as of the date of scquisition
of banks and date of actual debt restructuring, and differences between expecied and actual distribution of options
batween creditors.

Actual resultzs of subsidiary banks' debt restructuring are presented below:

BTA Bank

On May 28, 2010, creditors of BTA Bank JSC. holding 92.03% of the total bank’s linbilities, approved debt
restructuring plan. On September 1, 20010 BTA Bank successfully complesed the process of debt restructuring. As a
resql of debt restructuring, BTA Bank canceled all previously izsued bonds and other lizbilities, and has issued new
bonds with the fair value of 722,374 million Tenge and paid to creditors 945 million US Dollars in cash, equivalent
of 139,010 million Tenge. The sum of distribution amounted to 861,384 million Tenge and met gain on debt
resiructuring fofaled to 853,914 million Tenge.

Also, under the debi restructuring plan, in Augest 2010 the Fund acquired 44,173, 794,956 common shares as a
result of converting all of BTA Bank’s previously issued debt securitses within BTA Bank's first and second bond
programs belonging to the Fund, Fair value of converted bonds todalled to 671,472 million Tenge. On August 20,
2010 BTA Bank acquired from the Fund for | Tenge 8,179,148,436 of own common shares, which were allocated
on August 26, 2010 to creditors on restructuring withowt repayment. Transaction resulted in the Fund's share on
BTA Bank of £1.48% of ordinary shares,

Allfence Berek

On December 15, 2009 creditors of the Alliance Bank J3C, hobding 95.1% of the tofal bank’s liabilities, approved
debt regtructuring plan. On March 26, 2010 the Bank successfully completed the process of restractoring its debt. As
g result of debt restructuring, the Bank issued o crediiors new debt securities with fair valwe of 170,073 mullion
Tenge and preferred shares with fair value of debt component of 20,135 million Tenge. Additionally, the bank paid
to ereditors 73,358 million Tenge. The sum of distribution amounted to 263,771 million Tenge and net gain on debt
restructuring totaled to 324,745 million Tenge

Also, under the debt restructuring plan, in March 2010 the Fund acquired newly issued 4,000,000 common shares
and 1,567,164 preferred shares of Alliance Bank for the total amount of 129 billion Tenge, Shares were acquired for
cash consideration of 24 billion Tenge and conversion of Alliance Banks bonds of 105 billion Tenge to equity. In
sceordance with the debt restructuring plan the Fund allocated to the bank™s ereditors 33% of the hank’s common
and preferred shares, that resulted in the Fund’s share of 67% in common and preferred shares issued.

Ternirbank

In March 2010 creditors of the Temirbank JSC, holding 93.7% of the total bank™s liabilities, approved debt
restructuring plan, On Jupe 30, 2010, Temirbank succﬂsﬁ.ﬂly completed the process of restructuring #s debt.
According to the restructuring plan, Temirbank’s Eurobonds included in lizbilities under restructuring were
substinuted with new Eurobonds with falr value of 98,228 million Tenge and were partially repaid in cash of 22,651
million Tenge, Bank's gain on debt restructuring todzled to 93,768 million Tenge.

Linder the debt restructuring plan the Fund acquired 75,933,000 newly issued shares of Temirbank JISC for the total
amount of 107825 thousand Tenge and 15,905,000,000 newly izsved ordinary shares of the bank for the togal
amount of 23,380 million Tenge. External creditors were granted with 19.57% of newly issued shares of Temirbank,
that resulted in Fund®s share of 79.90%,,
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33, FINANCE COSTS
Finance costs comprised the fellowing for the venrs ended December 31;

la milipas of Taroa it | 2010
Imteres! on loans and debt sacurities lssued 164,802 148 652
Unwinding of discount on provisions and other payablas T.299 TAT4
Inderest an finance leasa obfgations 2314 A.105
Oither 18,500 10,750

184,215 167,800

3. FINANCE INCOME
Finance income comprised the followmg for the wears ended December 31:

i milions of Tenge 2011 2010

Interast moome on amounts due from credit netiutions and cash and cash
equlvalents 47,118 &1,808
Dividend income G,204 3,637
Income from loars and Snancial aseels 4 GEE 2,17
ity 8,747 8044
6,848 75,606

33. SHARE OF INCOME IN ARSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
Share of income in associates and joint veniures comprised the following for the years ended December 31;

i mirons of Tanga 2011 2010
TengizCherrnil LLP' 303 4058 182 885
Mangistau Investments B.Y. BD,853 23,735
Pekrpkarakhstan Inc. 48 5 47732
kazGariunay LLP 40,1497 23523
KazRosi3as J5C 38,338 46,372
JY Kaloo 19,811 16,802
Kazekhoi-Akiobe LLF 15,519 B0s
Ekibasthuzskaya GRES-1 LLP ("EGRES-17) 15,443 4,053
Halyk Biank JSC - 2 265
Kazkammerstank JSC - 1,602

_Othe 48,038 30,126
E11,1477 387120

36,  INCOME TAX EXPEMSES
Income ax expense comprised the following For the vears ended December 31;

I oS of Tangs 2011 201¢

Current Income fax expensas:

Corporate incoms tax 116,679 130,600

Withholding tax on dividends and interast income 57,920 51.011

Excess profit tax 20,830 12,119

Deferred income tax expense/ (benefit):

Corporate incoms tax 172,036 [188,173)
Withhoiding tax on dividends and Interest Income 208 1137

Excess profif kax 207 49

Income tax expanges 6T BRI 28,743

T3
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36. INCOME TAN EXPENSES (continaed)

The main part of defered income tax expense in 2011 i represented by BTA Bank's income tax expenses (139,544
million Tenge), which arose as a result of increase in unrecopnized tax losses carry-forward.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, in the Republic of Kazakhstan income tax loss carry forward is allowed for the ten
venrs period from the origin date of the loss.

A reconciliation of income tax expende applicable o profit befiore income @k al the stabidory moome tax mie (20% in
2011 and H0100 o income tax expense was as follows for the vears ended Decamber 31;

I milons of Tenga 2011 2010
Accountng profit bafore income tax from continued opsrations 6B, 031 a3 411
Accourting profit before income tax from discontineed operafions 32 481 25 8B3
Income tax expense on accounting profit 143,702 132818
Tax effect of lems, which are nol deductible or assessable for laxation

PUrposas &7 ,450 42 985
Excess profil 1ax 20,530 12,118
Withholding tax on dividends 1,433 7.0E2
Bargain purchase gain on acquisiion 184 =
Efffect of changss in income fax rates - 10,715
Effect of different corporate income tax rates {1,882) §,707
Losges fram impalmment of non-cument asgets - 2,038
Shara of nortaxable profit of subsidiaries and associates {18,403} {14,883
Incame fax accourted at different rate {51,384) 41 402}
Qther differences 6,377 40
hange in unrecognized defemed tax assets o 208,579 {128,172}
Corporate Income tex expense reported in the consolidated staterment

of comprehensive income 3E7,883 28,743

]
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Soversign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Caonsalidated Financial Satemeanis
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37,  CONSOLIDATION

Significant subsidiaries hwve been incleded in this consolideted financial statements are presented aa follows:

Ownership percentage
2011 2010

Mafional Company "KazMunayGas™ J5C (HC KMGT) and subsidisnies 100.00% 10000
Mational Comgany “Hazakhatan Temir Zholy” JESC "N KT2h"Y and

subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
Mational Atomic Company "Hazatemprom” JSC "MNAC KAPT) and subsidiaries 10:0.00% 10000
Kazakhiedecom JEC [KTCT) and subsidiarias 51.00% 51.00%
Samruk-Energy JSC "Samruk-Energy”™) and subsidiaras 100.00% 10 OO
Kezakhstan Electrcity Grd Operating Company JSG (MREGOC") and

subsidianies 100.00% 10000
Air Astane JSC ("Alr Astang”) 51.00% 51.00%
BTA Bank JEC ("BTA Bank’) and subsidiaries B1.48% E1.48%
Allignce Bank JSC ["Alliance Bank™) and subsidiaries GB7.00% G7.00%
Development Bank of Kazakhstan JSC "DEK) and subsidiaries 10:0.00% 100005
Enlrepressurship Developrmernt Fund “Darmu” JSC [Tamu Fund”) 10:0.00% 100.00%
Kazyna Capital Managemenl JSC and subsidianes 100.00% 1000055
Lhilstroisberbank Kezakhstan J5C = 100.00%%
Kazposi JSOC 10:0.00% 10000
Daszhan Temir Zhaky JSC 894 _86% 04 96%
Rapair Comporation "Hamkor” LLP and subsidisries = 100.00R
Investment Fund of Kazakhstan JEC 0. 00% 100,009
MNational Company “Hazakhstan Engineering” J5C {"Mazakhsian Enginearing™)

and subsidiaries 10:0.00% 60.99%
Real Eslate Fund “Samruk-Kazyna® JSC 10:0.00% 100.00%
Export-Cre Ingurance Corporation “KazExpartSarant” JSC (former "Stata

Ciorporabion for Insurence of Expert Credit and Imvesiments” JST) 10:0.00% 100004
K.azakhstan Fund of Guarantes of mortgage loan J5C - 100000
Intermational Airpart Aklobe JS0 T00.00% 1 0000
Samruk-Kazyna Contracl LLP 10:0.00% 100,000
5K Pharmacy LLP 100.00% 100.008%
Matignal Mining Company "Tau-Ken Samruk” and subaidianes 00, 00°% 10000
Kazakh Research Power Enginesnng Institule named after Chokin JSC 0%+ 50%+1
United Chamécal Company LLP and Subsidianes 1. 00% 1 000
Samruk-Kazyna Inwesi LLP 100.00% 100007
KOREM J50 100.00% 1000
International airport Atyrau JSC 100.00% 1 00 00r%
Airpor Paviodar JSC 100,00% 10000
Kazakhstan Center of Invesiment Assistance "Kazinvest™ LLP = 100005
Karegandagiproshaht and K LLP 90.00% B0.00%
Tesmarbank JEC 79.80% 78.90%
KGF 5LP 100.00% FO00 00
KEF IM 100.00% 100 O0r
KEGF Management 100.00% 100.00%
MNMC Kazgeology JSG 100.00% -
5K Finance LLP 100.00% =

TF
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38 SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During 2011 and 2000 the Group trensferred 1o the Sharcholder shares of subsidiaries i exchange for the
Sharcholder's owned shares and other property according (o swap agreements (Mofe 7, 4). These ransactions have
been excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows.

As of Decembes 31, 2001, payables for purchases of property, plant and equipment increased by 23 921 million
Tenge (2008 34,681 million Tenge). This transaction has bean excluded from the consolidated stmement of cash
fows.

In 2011, the Group received purchases of property, plant end equipment with 2 value of 8,839 millicn Tenge (2010
4,190 million Tenge) under finance kease agreements, This transaction has been exchided from the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

During 2011 the Group received pledged collateral as a repayment of loans provided to customers, Fair value of

those collateral amoundied o 9,802 million Tenge (2000: 41,403 million Tenge), This ransaction has been excluded
fram the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Dwring 2011 the Fund received from the Government loans, bearing Ioarer-than-market interest rates (Mose JOL
Discount ab mitial recognition in the ameount of 21,793 million Tenge was recognized in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity (2010: 111,144 millien Tenge). This ransaction has been excheded from the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

I 2011, the Group capitalised bormowing costs of 7.626 million Tenge (2010 571 million Tenge), This transsction
has been excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows.

During 2010 the Fund has completed acquisition of 30% stake in Ekibasiuzskava GRES-1 LLP (MNose 2,

3.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In accovdance with TAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™, parties are considered to be related if one party hos the
ability to control the other pary or exercise significamt infleence over the other pary In making fimancial or
operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed o the substance of
the relationship, nod merely the legal form.,

Related parties include key management personnel of the Group, enterprises in which a substantial interest in the
voling power 15 owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group's key management personncl and other entitics
controlled by the Government. Related party transactions were mads on teems aereed (o between the partbes that
may not necessarily be at market rates, excspt for certam regulated services, which are provided based on the tariffs
avaikable o related and third parties,

The following table provides the total amount of ransactions, which have been entered into with related parties as #
Diecember 31:

T8
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39, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

Joint werures  Other state —

where the Group controfied  Other related
i miiipns of Tengs Assoclatzs Is @ venturer entities parties
2011 9,565 10,576 1,424 72
Bue from related parties ' '
-l b 2040 17,776 4203 9,450 5023
y 2011 29 856 29 622 2222 912
LU 10 PO par e 2010 17,800 57 523 20,858 B22
2011 30,008 134,207 14,867 1,379
Sale of goods and loas 3 ! ; !
ahdies Al 2010 34 913 73,851 1,349 8755
2011 T7.857 226,160 15,337 38,427
Purchase of goods and services 2010 56,318 76 E 11311 793
Current accounts and deposits 2011 B&8 11 23305 2128
ilizbilisy) 2010 - - 16,400 2,113
Currenl accounts and depasits Fith b 14,568 = 526 898 53T, 254
{assats) 2010 2,830 - B12.421 579,431
2011 10,624 B, 783 2,508 43,803
e i ingl 2010 9,765 512 778 51,768
. 2011 1,225 e BE1,252 151,278
L meoshiac (abe 13 2010 1,882 - Baz 081 52 015
2011 22,263 10,420 146,913 12,817
Ciher assets 2010 i = 112 228 23,39
. 2011 4Tz 41,181 17,855 45
Crther Eabilities 2040 % s i 5
2011 2451 114 8.4TT 15,282
Inksrest received 2010 6218 377 3,674 23,270
2011 189 4 55,912 8,897
B san 2010 1 - 2,801 02

As of December 31, 2011 there were current bank accounts and deposits in the amount of 535,117 million Tenge
with Halvk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC, which is considered to be related parly of the Group (2000; 561,921 million
Tenge).

As of December 31, 2011 loans received from related parties comprised a payable to Halyk Bank of Kamkhstan
JSC in the amount of 147.336 million Tenge (2010: 40,464 million Tenge) and loans given o Halyk Bank of
Kazakhstan as of 31 December 2001 in the amount of 21,000 million Tenge (2010:21.000 million. Tenge),
respectively

The total amount of dividends from preferred shares received from Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan ISC in 2011 is
2,763 million Tenge (20010: 2,2461).

As of December 31, 2011 some of the Group's borrowings of 65,969 million Tenge, were guaranteed by the
Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan (2010: 39,431 million Tenge).

Total compensation to key management personnel included in personnel cosss in the accompanying consolidated
datement of comprehensive income was 8,596 million Tenge for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 6,705
million Tenge). Compensation 0 key managemeni personncl mainly cemsists of contractugl salary and
performance bonus based on operating results,

TS
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39, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {eontinued)
As noted above In Nore 76, the Government provides certain subsidies to the Group’s subsidiaries,

Daring 2011 the Fund received from the Government loans, bearing lower-than-market interest rates. Bonds
discount at initial recognition in the amount of 21,793 million Tenge was recognized in the consolidated statement
of chenges in equity (20010: 111, 144 million Tenge) (Nares 17 and 79).

40.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments congist of borrowings, cash and deposits as well as accounts receivable
and aceounts payable. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial nstruments are interes: rofe risk, foreign
currency risk and credit risk. The Group further monitors the liguidity risk arising from all financial instruments.

Imterest rate risk

Interest race risk is the risk that the valee of 8 financial instrument will eciuae doe to changes in market interest
rates. The Group limits interest rafe risk by monftoring changes in berest rates in the currencies in which its cash,
mvestments and borrowings are denommated.

The Ciroap’s exposure o interest risk relates primarily to the Group's long-term and shori-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates {Nofe 15,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before income tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and eguity (through the impact on the fair value of investments availabbe for sake) to a
reasonably possible change in floating LIBOR interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

Increase | (decrease) in

I rniliovis of Teviga basis points®  Effect on profit and loss Ciher effect on equity
2011

US Dottar 1616 (BES)EES (B47N305
Tenge 16415 ZE11[Z51) (541 WG4
2010

US Dofiar =100 /-25 (0,533) / 2.408 (13)/3
Tenge 100 / -25 1,077 § [2E8) [4,113) ¢ 598

* 1 b poim = kL

Currency risk

As a resalt of significant borrowings, lease liabilitics and trade accounts payable, cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable denorninated in the US Dollars, the Group's consolidated balance sheet can be affected
significantly by movement in the US Dodlar / Tenge exchange rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit before income tax to a remsonably possible
change in the US Dollar and Euro, with all the vasiables held constant,

Imcrease | (decrease) n

in millians of Tange o exchange rate Effect en profit foss
2011

US Dollar 10.TZ%10.72%) (148, 159)/145, 183
Eura 1B.B3%16.62%) {11,293)11,283
2010

L% Daollar +11.56% ! {11.56%) (148,852) / 149,652
Euro +16.65% [ (16.66%) (0,319) /8,318
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ORIECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arising from the inability of a party to meet the terms of the Group's financial instrument contracts is
generally limited to the amounts, i any, by which the counterparty’s obligations excead the obligations of the Group
1o that party. It is the Group’s policy to enter into financial instruments with a diversity of creditwortby parties, The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial asser. The Group considers
that its maximum exposure is reflected by the amount of loans te customers (Note [ amount dug from credit

institutions MNare [[) trade accounts receivable smd other current assets (Vofe 1.5), other financial assets (Nave 12),
and VAT recoverable, net of allowancss for impairment recognised af the reporting date.

Concentrations of credit rizk may arize from exposures (o a single deblor o o groups of debloss having similar
characteristics such that their ability to meet their obligations iz expected 1o be affectad similarly by changas in
cconamic or other conditions.

Procedures are in force to ensure that sales are only made fo custemers with an approprigte credit kistory and that an
acceptable credit exposure fmil is nof excesded. Credil rsk 15 minimized by the fact thal the Group operales on a
prepayment basis with the majority of its customers,

Liquidity risk

Ligquedity risk 1s the nisk that the Group will 2ncounter difficulty i raising funds fo meet commitments assockated
with its financial fabilities. Liguidity risk may resuli from an inability to sell a financial assed quickly at close 1o its
Eair value,

Liquidity reguirements are monitored on a reglar basis and management ensures that sufficient funds are available
o meet any commitments as they arise,

The table shown below summarises the manurity profile of the Groups financial liabilities at December 31 based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

D [abar Eran Due lstes Due later

1 month than 3 than 1 year
bt not later month but but not
than 3 not later  laler than 5 D aftar 5
i imithons of Tempe Oy dgmamd months  than{ year years FEAnE Toksl
_Al December 31, 2011
Loans from e Governmend 337 181 BB 105,445 18,855 998 101 1,480,783
Barnoraimge 123,008 166,381 40 BRE 2230, 586 2,888,003 5648641
Finance leese labilites B 2,645 8,308 16,064 2,TEE 9, 76T
D b Eushamang 307,458 57 200 126 276 232 128 19,4498 B3, 557
Trade and ather payabies 162,136 108,827 196,203 763 ] 455 028
Dearivatives 4 585 178 118 41,21 - 47,193
Inezoimia tex payabie 98 458 TATE [ - 2,586
Othear curment liabiities 3,582 20,9590 71,208 393,894 180,220 T4, 553
- 54,173 256,081 1,048,839 2,824,587 3,908,177 8191837
At December 31, 2010 )
Loans from thea Govarnmeard 471 283 20 el 15813 BEZEME 147280
Barmowings 254 GAd4 330,930 616162 257851 2078547 5,558,954
Finance laases Fabillies 26 L 2470 15041 1,579 ZhBA5
Dus o customors 185, 70& 47 058 1|51 A0 S 208,564  1,0G8 416
Trads and altar pavables 186 252 118985 156,308 31a o 453 138
Derivabves Jaz TE4 18 41 845 - #£3 TE0
Incarme ey payshla a1 238 3,213 5 - 4312
Crihar curen liabdiias 58,352 17550 51.048 384 810 &7 AT £35.978
1,157 963 Z{E.855 1,033,082 3,520, 140 346170 9546034

&1
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4l FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND
POLICIES {continued)

Capital management

The Group manzges s capital primarily though cepital management of s subsidiaries while conducting its
oversipht function. Major objective of the capital management is to ensure that subsiciarses of the Group will be
able to contimue &% & going concern while maximizing the returmn 1o sharehobders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance,

The Group manages capital of its subsidiaries by sesting various performance indicators tailored to the business need
und industry specific matters of each subsidiary. Key performance indicasors (“KPI™) used by the Group to manage
capital of its subsidiaries are ratios of: Wet Debt to Eamings before Taxes, Depreciation and Amaortization, and
Interest (“NIVEBITDA™), and Net Debt to Equity ("WIVE™) Met Debt is considered to be equal to all barmowings,
debt securities, ouarantee end finance lease labilites of relevant subsidiaries reduced by value of cash and cash
equivalents. Equity s considered to be equal to the entire equity of the subsidiary attributable to a majority
sharcholders.

Allowed maximum for the indicator is approved for each subsidiary based on the needs end specifics of i1z businass
und vares within following ranges (consolidated KP: for the Group have been presented for reference purposes as
the Group does nod moaitor KPI1's on the consolidated level):

KM 2011 2010
HOEBITO®R 332 4.04
NDE 0,80 0.82
I biars of Tengs 2011 2010
Barrowings 4,187 4 08F
Laans from the Govermment BTO0 ETQ
Fayabia far the sequisiion interast in project N 315
Finance lease liabililies 23 2d
Due to customers Tar G20
Derivativas 14 TE
Others 42 &2
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {1,841} {1.,639)
Neat debt 4 583 4431
Profit before income tax G865 636
Interes] on loans and debt securities iesued 165 147
Interest on finance lease obligations 3 3
Depreciation, depletion and smortization it 257
Impairment loss B = v S
_EBITDA 1,375 1,093
Total equily 5,730 5,422
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40,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QOBIECTIVES ANID
POLICIES {continwed)
Falir values of financial instruments

The Group uses the following hiesarchy for derermining and disclosing the fair value of financial instrumends by valuation
technigue:

Leved |: quaoted {unadiusted) prices in active markets for identical pssets or liabilies,

Lewed 20 other techniques for which a1l ingusts which have & sipnificant effect an the recordad fivir value are chservable, either
disectly oe indirectly.

Lewel 3: wchniquees which use Enputs which have a skonificant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
abservishle market data,

Set out below is 8 comparison by category of carying amounts and fair values of all of the Fund's financial instnaments:

in mil¥ons of Tengs Lewvel 1 Leval 2 Level 3 December 31, 2011
Financial instruments category
Available-for-sale financial a=sets 254, 783 155,293 - 450,056
Financial assels 21 fair value through profit and
loss 24 182 14 554 38818
Trading securiies 70,456 20 - T 478
Derivative financial gzset 133 a5 591 - 35,824
_Derivative financial liabiities 297 13,626 - 13,926
i mittang of Tange Level 1 Lovel2  Lewel3 December31, 2010
Finamcial instruments calegory
fvallahle-for-eate financial assets 514,087 111.042 18 625,148
Financial assels al fair value through profit and
loss 1,188 10,830 11,6683 23,781
Trading securities 108,120 16,083 - 121,203
Drerivative fmancial assets = 5,505 - 5,505
Dearivativie Fhancal labilites = 78,017 - 78,17

Reconciliation of the beginning batance and ending balance based on the Level 3 hierarchy of the fair value as at
Diecerber 31, 2000 is presented as follows:

Fisancial
Auvailable- assets 8l
for-sale fair value Desivative Total
fiewarcis through Trading  Financial financial
dn mifioes of Tenge assels  profil / loss securities Aseels ASSELS
As at January 1, 2010 13,573 4411 5.832 = 23516
Total profit Kloss) recognized in profil and
loss - (1,248) - = (1248}
Acquisiton T 7008 - - 7008
Sals - {(5.070) - - (5.070)
Repayrmeant {62 - = - (52}
Transier from Level 1 and Lavel 2 18 1,348 - = 1,358
Reclassificalions to alher agsats (288) = = = (288)
_Grhers {13.012) 8,114 (5,832) = {12,731)
A5 at December 31, 2010 13 11,682 =, = 1,681
Totad profit / (loss) recognized in profit and
loss = 1,167 - - 1,167
Acouisifian = 4,048 = H 4,098
Sale - {1,226) - - {1.226)
Repayment = = = = =
Transfer from Lesel 1 and Level 2 z o = = -
Raclassifications to ofher assets o = 2 m =2
_Cthers. (19)  (10an - - [1.068)
As at December 31, 2041 - 14,654 - - 14,584
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4.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Falr valoes of financial instruments {continueed )

Arr rniicens aff Tevige — 2011 2010
Transfars fram, Level 1 to Level 2

Trading securnfies i 507
Total i 507

Bet out below = @ comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group®s financial instruments,
The tabla does not contain fair value of non-financial assets and liahilities:

i mikons of Tenpe Carrying value S | —
December 31, Decamber 31, Decembsar 31, Decamber 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Financial a558i5
Loans to customers 1,738,630 i, 7r6.883 1,748,228 i, 7O08497
Amounis due from credit institutione 1,048 209 1,343,851 1,048,738 1,343,854
(Oiher financial assets 830,807 053 358 831,588 053,878
Trade accounds recevable 278 552 281 BO& 206,552 251,806
Cagh and cash equivalents 1,640,700 1,630 460 1,540,700 1,630,460
Financial liabilities
i 4156, TTH 4082126 3,208,770 4 049 264
Loans from the Gowvernmant of tha
Republic of Kazakhshan BES,T15 BTBO&T DEg 438 020, 183
Financa dessa liabilites 22 758 24,156 22,784 24,19
Amaunts dus i e custamers TiE. 544 B20 408 750,949 f20,406
Trade and other payables 442 840 460,387 442,640 £60,387
Qiher non-curment liabilities 426,703 432 251 428, 703 432 761

The fair value of inferest-bearing borrowings obtained and issued has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows at prevailimg interest rates

4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Liegal proceedings
BTA Bark

BTA Bank is in the process of o legal dispute with Investment Holding Company. CISC ("IHC"), a Kyrgvastan
registered entity.

In June 2009, Central Asia Investment Company LLC (*CAIC™), a Kyrgyestan registered entity and a 100%
subsidiary of IHC, obtained n loan from iis parent, [HC, of 8,670,000 pounds with an intended use to purchase
Kyrgyzstan siate securities, CAIC, in violation of the intended purpose of the loan from its parent, used these fumnds
1o purchase bonds of Turandlem Finance BV, "TAF B.V."), BTA Bank’s subsidiary, a1 significant discount on the
market. The nominal value of the purchased bonds was 28.395,000 pounds and accrued interest was 2,023,143
pounds. CAIC defaulted om its boan payable to THC. As a result, THC filed a lawsuit against BTA Bank, BTA Bank
Kyreyestan and TAF B.V, claiming a repayment of the full nominal value and interest accrued on debt securities of
TAF B.V. In accordance with the decision of Bishkek's district ¢ourt, Bishkek's municipal Court of appeals and the
Supreme Court of Kyrgyzstan dated September 11, 2009 BTA Bank is obliged w pay the full amoont and THC
started 10 collect the funds from BTA Bank, a guarantor on bonds of TAF B.Y., including BTA Bank's shares in
RTA Bank Kyrgyzstan and amounts due to BTA Bank from BTA Bank Kyrgyzstan. This decision was taken despite
the fact that in September BTA Bank was negotiating its debt restructuring.

In December 2004, an officer of the court foreclosed on shares held by the Bank in BTA Bank CISC, belonging to
BTA Bank.

B4
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4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Legal proceedings (continaed)

BTA Bamk fooniinued)

The management of BTA Bank believes that the decision of Kyrgyeston courts was nof in compliance with
international laws and legislation between Kazakhstan and Kyrgyzstan, Moreover, the foreclosune was execubed
with vialations of the Law of Kyrgyzstan,

On Movember 5, 2009 BTA Bank had filed a claim with the Kyrgyestan Government for compensation of
30,418,143 pounds and 38,891,000 US Dollars for damages incurred as a result of ilbegal acts of Kyrgyz legal and
government entities, Subsequenily, & number of claims were filed to the Provisional Government of the Kyroyz
Republic regarding compensation of damage done.

Currently the Mational Security Service of Kyrgyz Republic initated and transferred to the court a criminal case on
illegal carve-sul of shares of BTA Bank Kyrgyzstan CISC that belong to BTA Bank.

Alse, BTA Bank engaged a legal company - advisor to support arbitration proceedings initisted against the
Gowernment of the Kyrgyz Republic regarding compensation of damage done.

Taking inte account the mtention of the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic o endeavour best efforts 1o reinstate
the legal rights of BTA Bank, BTA Bank and the legal adviser took measures to suspend the above intemational
arbitration proceedings. The international litigations have been suspended until June 30, 2012,

Az of the date of these conselidated financial ststements the management of the Bank could net make & reasonable
estimate of possible outcome of this litdgation or amount of potential recovery.

Claims ol the verritory of the Republic of Georgia

[n 27-200% BTA Bank issued loans to several companies in the Republic of Georgia for the construction of real
estate and infrastructure facilities totalling o 173,000,000 US Dollars. The amount approved for financing of these
companies totalled to 262,000,000 U5 Dollars.

One of the borrowers of BTA Bank at the territory of the Republic of Georgin filed a claim against BTA Bank
demanding to reimburse for losses in the amount of 500,000,000 US Dollars for the damage caused to business
reputation. This claim is in court of the first instance of the Thilissi City Court and as such has not been examined.
BTA Bank believes that the stated claims are not well grounded and should not be fulfilled in case of fair legal
proceedings. Two statements for release of encumbrance from real esiate pledged in favor of BTA Bank were fiked
to the Regular Arbitration Court for Civil Disputes, Piaintiffs requested o cancel the respective pledge agreements
a5 well as replace the previously provided pledge for property belonging to other legal entities.

The Regular Arbitration Coort for Civil Disputes sustained both statements of claim, Decisions of the court were
remsoned by losses incurned by borrowers in connection with short-received amounts agreed by the borrowers with
BTA Bank carlier. BTA Bank filed statements of claim to the relevant Georgian judicial agencies {Thilissi City
Court, Thilissi Court of Appeals) with relevant jurisdiction protesting against the competency of the Regular
Arbitration Court Tor Civil Disputes (objection to jurisdiction) as well as objecting to facts stated by the plaintill om
the merits of a dispute and requiring to set aside the awards. All applications of BTA Bank were dismissed by
relevant judicial egencics of Georgia, The awards took effect and led 1o the loss by BTA Bank of a2 collateral
amounting to 31,392 400 US Doikars.

Rompetrod Rafimare 5.4, febsidiany of NC EMG)

In 2010, various Jegal actions have been initiated by the Romanion State represented by the Ministry of Public
Finance and ANAF against or in connection with the convertible debt instrument settlement by Rompetrol Rafinare
5.4, m 2010, As discussed in Meve 7.5, management believes the legal actions agaimsi the Group have no legal
grounds and the Group will succeed.

Ba
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4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {continued)

Environment Habilities

The enforcement of environmental regulation in Kazakhstan is evolving and subject to ongoing changes. Penalties
for vielations of Kazakhstan's environmental laws can be savere. Potential liabilities which may arise as a result of
stricter enforcement of existing regulations, civil litigation or changes in legislation cannot be reasonably estimated.
{rher than those emounts provided for in provisions (Nere 27) management believes that there are oo probable or
possible environmental liabilitics which could have a material adverse effect on the Group's conselidated statement
of comprehensive income or consolidaed statermnent of cash Aows.

Envirormensal obligations of NAC KAP

In accordance with "the Implementing Agreement between the Department of Energy of the United States of
America and the Ministry of Energy, Industry and Trade of the Bepublic of Keeakhstan " dated December 19, 1999,
the governments of the United States of America and Kazakhstan have assumed responsibility for decommissicning
regctor BN - 350, which is owned by KAP, and for storing the reactor’s nuclear fuel rods. Under the Agreement, the
LS Government has undertaken the responsibility o obtain finoncing from intermationsl erganizations including
Technical Assistance for CIS countries (TACIS) of the European Union, Precioso (France), Canberra (Belgium),
and ALSTOM (France), and domesfic not-for-profit erganizations, Scientific Production Cenire BY aT and KATEP
JSC. The estimated commitments for decommissioning and reclamation of the atomic reactor B-350 in its entincty
are 35 billion Tenge. The Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan does not grant this amount; therefore, the issue
on further financing of program of decommissioning BN-350 has not been solved vet.

Commodity price risk

The Group gencrates most of its revenue [rom the sale of commodities, primarily crude oil and oil products.
Historically, the prices of these products have been volatile and have fluctuated widely in responss 10 changes in
supply and demand, market uncertainty, the performance of the global or regional economies and cyclicality in
industries,

Prices may also be affected by government actlons, Including the imposition of 1wariffs end import duties. speculative
trades, an increase in capacity or an oversupply of the Group's products m its main markets, These external factors
and the volasility of the commodity markets make it difficult to estimate future prices.

A substantial or extended decline in commodity prices would marteriafly and adversely affect the Group's business
and the financial resulis and cash flows of operations. The Group does not hedge significantly its exposure 1o the
risk of Nucuations in the price of its products,

Ingurance matters

The insurance industry in the Republic of Kazakhstan is in a developing state and many forms of insurance
protection comman in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Group does not have coverage for
its plant facilities, business interruption, or third party lability in respect of property or environmental damage
arising from accidents on Growp property or relating to Group operations, Until the Group obtains adequate
insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss or destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse offect
on the Group's operations and financial position. The Group hiss obligatory insurance according to the agreements
with commercinl insurance CoOMpanias,

Taxation

Kazakhstan ‘s tax legislation and regulations are subject to ongoing changes and varying interpretations. [nstances
of inconsistent opinions between local, regional and rational tax authorities are not unusual. The current regime of
penalties and interest related 1o reported and discovered violations of Kazakhstan's tax laws are severe. Penalties are
generally $0% of the taxes additionally assessed and interest i assessed at the refinancing rate established by the
National Bank of Kezakhstan muliplied by 2.5 As a result, penalties and interest can amount to multiples of any
nssessed taxes. Fiscal pesiods remain open to review by tax autheeities for five calendar years preceding the year of
review, Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods. Because of the uncertainties associated with
Kazakhstan's tax system, the ultimate amouont of taxes, penalties and interest, iFany, may be in excess of the amount
expensed fo date and sccrued at December 31, 2011,

L1
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4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Tazation (continmed)

As ol December 31, 2011 managemend belioves that its mberpretation of the relevant legslation is appropriate and
that in s probable that the Group®s tax positions will be sustained, except as provided for in these consolidated
financial statements (Nafes  and 221

Allowarices agalnsr asrels placed with BTA Bank S5O

In September 2000, the Tax Committes of Astana initated miegrated fax aodit of the Fund's activities for 2000,
During the tax andit the tax authorities raise question on deductibility of Provisions for corporate income tax
purpase for 2009, As et the date of these financial statements the Fund did not recaived the tax audit act vel

The Decree of the Govemment No. 2275 dated December 30, 2009 approved the Rules of "allocation of assets and
contingent liabilities 1o the category of doubifiul and bad by the national management holding, and by legal entities
that are mainly engaged in borrowing transactions and repurchase of accounts receivable and (0% of voting shares
{share of participation) of such entitias belong 1o the mattonal management holding, and they have the right 1o deduct
provision (reserve) expenses against doubtful and bad assets, contingent labilities, apart from assels and contingent
liahilities provided in favour of related parties, or third perties on obligations of related parties (apart from assets and
cortingent lkabilittes of credit cooperatives) {“Rules™).

[ accordance with the Rules, the Fund formed and deducted for corporate income fax purposes provisions on gssels
placed in BTA Bank JSC in the amount of 346,748 million Tenge

The Fund's management believes that a3 ar December 31,2011 its imerpretation of applicable legislation (including
Rules) is appropriate and the Fund's position on dedoction of these provisions will be sustained. Accordingly, the
Fund did not recognize any provisions associsted with possible accruals by tax suthorities in these consolidated
financinl statements.

Trangfer pricirg comrol

Transfer pricing control in Kazakhstan hes a very wide scope and applies to many transactions that directly or
mdirectly relate o international business regardless of whether the transaction participants are related or not. The
tramsfer pricing legislation requires thas ell taxes applicable to a transaction should be cabeulated based on a market
price determined in accordance with the arm”s length principle.

The new law on transfer pricing came into effisct in Kazakhstan from January 1, 2009, The new law is not explicil
and there is little precedence with some of its provisions. Morcover, the law i not supparted by detalled guidance.
which is still under development. As n result. application of transfer pricing contral to various types of transactions
is not clearly repulated.

Because of the uncertamties associated with the Kazakhsian transfer pricing legisintion, there 15 & risk that the tax
iuthorities may take a position that differs from the Group's position, which could result in additional txes, fines
and interest at December 31, 2011,

As at December 31, 2011 management believes that its interpretation of the transfer pricing legislation i appropriate
and that it i probable that the Group®s positions with regard to transfer pricing will be sustained.

Ve commitorents of Georglan entiifes

According to the Tax Code of Georgia (*TCG™), tax administration is authorized to make decision on use of market
prices for t@xation purposes if ransaction tekes place betwesn related parties. Although TCG conmins certain
guidance on the determination of market prices of goods and services, the mechanism is not developed and there i3
no scparate transfer pricing legiskation in Georgia, Existence of such ambiguity creates uncertainties as related to the
position thiat tax suthosities might take when considering texation of transactions between related partics.

The Georgian subsidiaries of NC KMG have significant transactions with foreign subsidiarics of NC KMG a5 well
as amongst each other. These transactions fall within the definition of ransactions between related parties and may
bz challenged by tax authorities of Georgia.

Mammagement of the Group believes that it has sufficient evidence to support that pricing of wransactions between
entities of NC KMG is ot arm's length, however due to absent legislative basis for determination of market prices 1ax
authorities might take position different from that of the NC KMG.

BT
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41.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Anritrust legiskathon

The Group conducts transéctions in refining and trading scgments which are subject to antitrust and competition
legislation control in the Republic of Kazakhstan and the European Union.

[n 2011, the Group recorded a provision of 7,794 million Tenge (2010: nil) for losses relating to probable risks on
non-compliance with the antitrust legislation in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

On January %, 2012, following the deliberation in December 2011, the Romanizn Competition Council decided that
Rompetrol Downstream 5.K.L., a subsidiary of TRG, breached article 5 of the Competition Law and article 101 of
the Treaty for the Functioning of the European Union and impesed a fine in the amount of RON 159,333,612 (46.8
milflion US Dwollars or 6,945 million Tenge at the year-end exchange rates). The Group believes that all the charges
are without &nv Iegal merit as Rompetrol Downstream 5.R.L. did not take part in the mestings in which this topic
wis discussed, did not receive cormespondence in which it was announced that other firms octualfy took a decizion in
this respect, did not answer to the guestions regarding its own conduct and had an independent conduct on the
markes — there was therefore no illegal cooperation by removing the risks of competition by adopting a jeint plas,

Commitments ander oilfiekd licenses and contracts

As of December 31, 2011 the Group had following commimments on fulfilment of minimal work programs with
respect to the requirements of its oilfield licenses and related subsoil use contracts with the Government {in millions
of Tenge):

Capital Operational
Year expenditures expendliures
2012 191,538 36,011
2013 33,460 32,472
2014 154,287 52 908
20145 3,355 30305
2M5-2004 25,65 211,537
Total 360,338 353,231

Local market obligations

The Karakhstan Government requires oil producers and oil trading companies to supply 8 portion of the their crude
oil and oil products to meet domestic energy requirement on an annual basis, mainly to maintin oil products supply
balznce on the local market and fo support agricultural products producers during the spring and autamn sowing
campaigns. Local market oil prices are significantly Jower than export prices and even lower than the normal
domestic market prices determined in an arm-length transaction. If the Government does require additional crude oil
to be delivered over and above the quantities currently supplied by the Group, such supplies will tzke precedence
over market sales and will generate substantially less revenue than crude oil sold on the export market, which miy
materially and adversely affect the Group's business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

In 2011, in accordance with ks obligations, the Group delivered 2,811,271 tons of ol {2010: 3,159,150 tons) on the
domestic markes

Cither contractusl commitments

As of December 31, 2011 the caplial commitments of the Group under the contracts on acquisition of plant, property
and equipment amounted to 46,567 million Tenge (2010: 1,397 million Tenge).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

41, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued )

Capital commitments

KTeh

As al December 31, 2011, KTZh had committed to contracts for the consiruction of “Uzen — State border with
Turkmenistan” and “Khorgos - Zhetigen™ railways, the treatment-rehabilitation center in Astana, the primary
backbone transport communication net, the plant for production of passenger wagons in Astana, the capital repair of
railways, the activities related to expansion of Dostyk station, and the purchase of passenger wagons totaling
467,859 million Tenge (2010: 152,808 million Tenge). This amount includes commitments for purchose of
passenger wagons from joint venture Electric locomotives assemble plant LLP for the amount of 296,299 million

Tenge with supply 6ill December 31, 2020 and also commitments for purchase of passenger wagons from joint
venture Tulpar-Talgo LLF for the amount of 55,726 million Tenge with supply till December 31, 2014.

EMG BM and TRG

As of December 31, 2001 KMG RM's and TRG's capital commitments in oil peocessing projects were 419,530
million Tenge (2010: 146,102 million Tenge). Mainky, these contracts relates o the construction of aromatic
hydrocarbons plant and the projects related to capacity incresse and compliance of refinery with Eure standards.

Kasharan
At Degember 31, 2011 Kaghagan had capital commitments to purchase, construct or develop undivided inerest in

exploeation and appraisal assets and development oil and gas assets of 1,070,559 thousand US Dollars equivabent o
158,871 million Tenge (2010: 1,295,711 thousand US Dollars, or 190,981 million Tenge).

KEGH!
At December 31, 20011 KEGOC JSC had capital commitments on the projects of construction the electricity

transmissions, transmission lines and electricity transmission rehabilitation project in the amount of 56,140 million
Tenge (2010 19,347 million Tenge).

Afr-Astana

During 2008-2010 Ajr-Astana signed an agreement with Airbus and Embraer to purchase six and two narmow-body
pircrafis with the last payments due in 20013 and 2012, respectively, The Group repays advance payments in
acoordance with agreed table of payments. The terms of the contracts do not allow disclosing information on the
purchase cost of the gircrafis.

Keemyra Capitad Maragement J5C

As at December 31, 2011 todal investrment commitments 1o investment funds amounted to 56,114 million Tenge
(2010: 66,488 million Tenge). Financing under these commitments are to be made upon demand of investment
funds over 8 investment period of between three and five vears,

Real Extate Find "Samesk-Kanyma "JSC ¢ Real estate Fund "'}

As gt December 31, 2011 the Fund had comracual eommitments amounting to 2,532 million Tenge under
gpreements with constroction companies (2000 31,910 million Tenge).

KazTransGas JSC ("KTG", subsidiary of NC KMG)

Under the terms of the concession agreernent, KTG has an obligation to invest 30 million US Dollars each year for
the improvement and repair of the gas transportation assets ransferred and for investments in new gas transportation
assets, In accordance with the terms of the concession agreement, KTG will be reimbursed for the net book value of
the above investments at the time the concession agreement cxpires. As of December 31, 2011 KTG had
approximately 34,102 million Tenge in contractual commitments related to this investment obligation (2010 47371
million Tenge).
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41.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {continued )
Caplial commitmenis {comtinued)

Kyrgyz Bv-Pass (KTG)

KTG is obliged, subject to certain conditions, which include tariff recovery, to design and construct the Kyrgyz By-
Pass at a cost, which was estimated in the concossion agresment, of approximately 20-100 million LIS Dollars
(13275 — 14750 million Tenge). However, the new domestic tariffs which, per the concession agreement, are &
precondition for the commencement of construction of the Kyrgvez By-Pass, have not been published as of
December 31, 2011.

Dperating lease commitments

Operating lease commitments relate mainky to aircraft lease with the lease werm from 5 to 10 vears. All operating
bease contracts contaln market review clanses in the event fhat Alr Asiena exercises option to renew.  Air Astana
does not have the option to purchasea leased assets at the expiry of lease period.

Az at December 31, operating lease commitments wers as follows:

Jn mifigns of Tenge 2011 200
Within one year 20,043 18 BEG
From one to five: yearns 28,122 AT 82
Ower five years o 12,483 BEY
Total B0, E58 B4.244

Oiperating lease commitments include fixed rental payments and certain portion of payments for technical support
which vary according to fhyving hours.

The fixed and veriable rental payments are denominsted and sértled in LS Dollars. This currency is routinely used in
international commerce for afreraft operating leases.

Kuzakhizlecom license commitments

Under the terms of certain licenses on the provision of wireless telecom services, Karakhielecom has coriain
obligations in terms of coverage area of its network, Kazakhtelecom is obliged to expand the cellular
telecommunication coverage to the regions along the major highwayvs and small-sized wwns and urban-type
communitics of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Group's management believes that Kazakhtelecom i in
compliance with the terms of the licenses.

Commitments to extend loans, guarantees, letters of eredit and other commitments related to settlement
operations

At any time the Group has ootstanding commitments to extend credil. These commitments take the form of
approved loans and credit card limits and overdraft facilities and are cancellable on certain conditions.

The Group provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of customers o third
parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend for & period of up o five years,



Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC Caonsolidated Financial Statemeants
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

4l.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continaed)

Commitments to extend loans, guarantees, letters of credit and other commitments related to settlement
oprerations (contimned)

The contractual amounts of commitments are set out in the following table by category. The amounts reflected in the
table for commitments assume that amounts are fully advanced. The amounts reflected in the table for lesters of
credit represent the maximum accounting Joss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed
completely to perform as contracted,

i mivons of Tange 2011 2010
Contracied amount
Loan, cred bne and finance lease commitments 343,759 358,192
Guananiess 86,302 o7, 700
Letters of credit and other commitments relsted fo settlement

oparations 110,038 112,781
Less: Guaraniees and deposits with restricive covenants {8,558) {7,BB5)
Less: Provision for bank letters of credit and gueraniees (Nole 21) {6, 136) (5400

The Group uses the same credit control and management policies in undenaking off-balance sheet commitments s
it does for on-balance operations.

The fotal outstanding contractual commitments (o extend credil indicated above does nod necessarily represent future
cash requiremsents, as these commitments may expire or ferminate without being funded, as well the Group could
request collatern] for credit mstruments.

Trust management

Certain subsidiaries of the Group provide trust management services to individuals, trust companies, pension funds
and pther organizations, specifically it manages assets or invests received funds into different financial instruments
in aggordance with customer instructions, The Group receives commission fee for such services. Asseis received for
trust management are not assets of the Group, accordingly, they are not refected in its consolidated balance shect.
The Group does oot bear credit risk when conducting such mvestments, singe it does nod [ssue guarantees against
said mvestments.

General Prosecutor Office of the Republic of Kaxakhstan criminal investigation {Kashagan)

On the Movember O, 2007, the General Prosecutor Office of the Republic of Kerakhstam (MGPO™) notified the
previows operstor of an ongoing criminal investigation in relation 1o the award of contracts in respect of the main
onshore constructions: comtract Mo, 20040504 to Morth Caspian Coastructors M.V, ("NCC") and contract No. 2005-
D584 to Owersens International Constructors GMBH (“OIC™). The criminal investigation was inttiated by the GPO o
ascertain whether the previous operator siaff unreasonably overestimated the ¢ost of construction and instaltation
works for the oil and gas onshore processing facility by 336 million US Dollars or 49,526 million Tenge and
misused its powears 1o enter into & fictitiows contract with OIC to facilitete the emberzlement of the Confractor's
assets. In particular the GPO resolved that & criminal case ba initiaed against the previous operator s1aff on Anicle
17T of the Republic of Kazakhatan Criminal code,

During 2008 a resolution was issued by the GPO for assignment of an expert judicial review dus 1o the largs scope
of the contracts, The previous operstor issued an appeal in Movember 2008 for withdrawing this resolution. The
respanse received from the relevant department in early January 2009 was that currently they were evaluating the
task and the resoarces it required to undertake the above judicial review, On July 13, 2009, the expen judicial
review was completed and failed o provide sufficient information to the Finance Police to make any decision on the
meris af the mater, The Finance Police then ardered that the expertise be repeated,. To this end, the previous
operator has supplicd the relevant and requested documentation and contmuss (o cooperate with the authoritices.

Management of the Group believes that the allegations of GPO made are without merit. In the unlikely event that
allegations are ultimately proved to be correct, management’s assessment of the potential exposure is imited to the
cost recoverebility of the expenses incurred in relation to the DIC contract approximately equal to 112 million US
Dollars or 16,621 million Tenge (Kashagan's share approximately equals to 13,8 million US Dollars or 2,790
million Tenge) and to the deductibility of the expenses for corporate income fax parposess.
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41. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

The Mational Security Committes investipation

In 2009, the National Security Commitice of the Republic of Kazakhstan, under supervision of the Generl
Prosecutor, commenced an investigation against the former Chiel Executive Officer of KazAtomProm and other
former employess of KaeAtomProm and its subsidiaries. The investigation related to allegations mainly concerned
with asset emberzlement and illegal sale of cerain wranium deposits to affiliated offshore companies. On March 12,
2010 the court sentenced the former chief executive to 14 yvears imprisonment. The prosecutor's offive anncunced in
March 2000 that thers was a new investigation info allegations that the former chief executive was involved in
money lsundering, Purther investigations may be initiated. The management belicves that these investigations and
allzgations do oot have any effect on KarAtomProm's financial statements, a5 they aré initiated against former
management and not KazAtomProm,

Linbitities under Stabilization Plan

The Fund was assigned as the Government's main operator in implementation of the Stabifization Plan approved by
the Gowernment in 2008 Nare 1), As at December 31, 2001 commitments for messares on financial sector
siabilization and small and medium business support were accomplished.

Settiement of real ixtale markel issues

The Government made a decision 1o provide funds for stabilization of real estate market. The Government assigned
the Fund to place deposits with second-tier banks and provide direct financing o construction companies, As a
December 31, 2011 commitment to provide financing for completion of ongoing construction and acguisition of
completed housing through the Fund and it's subsidiarics amounted to 1,442 million Tenge (2010: 33,784 million
Tenge).

Implomentation of innovation, indestrial and igfrastricinee profects

As 8t December 31, 2001 115,000 million Tenge were contributed to the share capital of Development Bank of
kazakhstan JSC for the purposes of financing of innovation, industrial and infrastructure projects. As at December
31, 2011 Fund's commitments to provide financing fo imnovation, industrial and infrastruciure projects amounted to
5000 million Tenge,

Approved projects for implementation of innovation, industrial and infrestructural projects emounted to 55,980
million Tenge. As at December 31, 201 | commitments of Development Bank of Kaeakhatan J5C on financing of
innovation, industrial and infrestructural projects amounted to 59,020 million Tenge,

42, SEGMENT REFORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organized into organizstional business units based on their products and
services, and hes six reportable operating segments as follows:

il and Gas segment includes operations related to exploration and production of oil and gas, ransportation of oil
and gas and refining and trading of crude oil and refmed products.

Mining and industrial scament i engaged in exploration, minmg, processing and sales of wranium, beryllium,
tantalum and other solid materals, military industry enterprises and civil machine industry, projects for the
development of chemical industry and geofogical exploration.

Transportation segment includes operations related to raitway and air transporiation of cargo and passangers,

Telecommunication segment includes operation of fixed ling communication, including local, long-distance intercity
end international telecommunication services (including C15 and non-CIS countries); and also rent of lines, data
transfer services and wireless communication services.

Energy segment includes operations relased o produciion and distribution of electricity, function of oversight over
the input of electricity into the energy system and consumption of imported electricity, function of centralised
operatign and dispatch of facilities in the Unified Electricity System of the Republic of Kazakhsian.

Financial and Innovation Institutions segment includes operations refated to development and stimulation of
investment and innovation activities an all sagments of the economy of Republic of Kaxakhstan,

The aperations of Samruk-Kamyna were included in the segment of Corporate center and projects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Contribution to the share capital of the Fund

In the first half of 2012, the Government has contributed 1o the charter capital of the Fund 36,154 million Tenge.
Contributions have been made in the form of property and cash,

Operating sctivity
In Febroary 2012, the Air Astana J5C signed am agreement with Boeing 1o purchase three Boeing-T87 and four
Boeing 767 aircraft. The fourth Boeing 767 is subject 1o purchase reconfirmation by the Alr Astana JSC in

September 2012, Air Astana JSC is committed to pre-delivery payments in accordance with the agreed payment
schodule.

Un February 20, 2012 a decision was made to suspend the activities of Kazkhstan Growth Fund (KGF). The issue
of transfer of KGF investment portfolic and liabilithes to & different fund & currently under consideration. In this
connection, as &t the suspension date the Group measured the fair value of Investments to the fund under the net
asset value method and recognized the loss from change in the fair value of investmeants in this fund in the amount
of 472 million Tenge.

Since April 1, 2012 the Agency on Regulation of Matral Monopolies of the Republic of Kazakhstan confoemed and
approved to the Group an increase of tariffs on railway cargo transportation on average by 15%.

Smee January |, 2002 Air Astana increasad fuel collection on itemational rowtes to 40% in connection with shamp
fige in prices on aviation kerosene. Since April 5, 2012 with a purpose to compensate price increase on aviation
kerosene the fuel collection is introduced, which will reault in the Increase in prices on air tickets for internal routes
of the “Air Astana™ airline on average by 16%.

Changes in the structure of the Group

On January 13, 2012, GSM Kazakhstan, the associate, declared dividends related to prior periods to be paid to the
Group Kazakhtelecom JSC in the amount of 34,723 million Tenge during 2012, 8,681 million of which was
received m March 212,

On February 1. 2012, the Group Kazakhtelecom JSC completed the sale of its associate, GSM Kazakhstan, for
conskderation of 1,319 million LS Dollars (equivalent to 225,739 million Tenge).

In Apnl 2012, the transaction on sale of 75% of shares of Balkhashskaya TES was completed for the cash
congideration in the smount of 7,557 million Tenge.

Laoans

On January 19, 2012 the Fund issued loans to “Kazakhmys Finance PLC" in the amount of 200 million US Dollars
for the financing of the project on development of copper minefields st Bozshakol, Kasakhstan, The loan was
finamced by proceeds of the loan facility of State China Development Bank in January of 2012,

Borrowings
In February 20012 NAC Kamtomprom JSC and Astana Solar LLP concheded loan agreement with Bank of Tokvo

Mitsubishi UFJ for 80.4 million euro (equivalent 1o 15,962 million Tenge} for a period of 12 years for the purposes
of financing equipment purchase for the strategic investment project.

Favlodar Petrochemistry Plant JSC (a subsidiary of KMG) cntered into loan agreements with Halvk Bank of
Kazakhstan for the total mount of 20,969 million Tenge.

In February 2012, in order to promote financial stability of the Group, Management Board of the National Fund of
the Republic of Kaxakhstan (the *Board™) made a decision to change the terms of bonds, received from the Mational
Fund of the Republic of Kamskhstan and placed in National Bank of the Republic of Kamakhstan Note 79,
According to this decision the term of the bonds will be prolonged to 2062 and interest will be decreased to 0.01%,

Abso, the Board made a decision to provide bonds to NC KMG from Mational Fund of the Republic of Kambkhstan
in the amount of 2.5 billion US Dollars in 2013 with maturety in 2028 and [.5 billion US Doflars in 2015 with
mafurity in 2035 with interest of 3%
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43,  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS {confinued)

Financial position of BTA Bank

On Jamary 18, 2012 BTA Bank defanlted on senior bonds, bonds with discount and subordinated bonds due to the
fact that BTA Bank did not pay the amount of accrued interest on January 3, 2012,

On Februsry 6, 2012 BTA Bank formed creditors commitee. The commitiee includes Ashmore Investment
Managernent Limited, Asian Development Bank, D.E. Shaw Oculus International Inc., DE. Shaw Laminar
[nternational Inc., Gramercy Funds Management LLC. LP. Mosgan Securities Lid., Nomura International ple,
Swedish Expont Credits Guarantee Board — EKN, The Royal Bank of Scotland ple (representative of RCTFF
participants), and VR Capital Group Led,

On April 23, 2012 BTA Bank declared on suspension of pavments related to recovery obligations, which conceives
the event of default on these obligations. As a result, on April 28, 2012 BTA Bank received a notification from Bank
of New York Mellon Corporate Trustes Services Limiled acting as & trustes of recovery obligations owners on early
scttlement of recovery obligations with an initial total amount of 5,221,494 216 US Daollars.

On May 2, 2002 BTA Bank appealed to the Specialized finance court of Almaty with a request on the start of dabi
restructuring in accordance with the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan. On May B, 2012 the Specialized finance
court of Almaty approved BTA Bank's request on debt restructuring. BTA Bank will receive a legal defense during
the restructuring process in the Republic of Kazakhstan,

Mher Evenls

As part of its common share and GDR buyback program, between Janoary 1, 2012 and March 26, 2012, E&P KMG
repurchased 2,197,086 GDRs and 2 028 common shares at an aggregate value of 5,499 million Tange.

In the first quarter of 2012 the Temirbank repurchased 1,002,062 pieces of own preferred shares with the 1otal
carrying amount of 1,000 million Tenge for 772 million Tenge.

Since January 2012 Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC and its subsidiaries - members of Halvk Group - are not related
pertics of the Group

Cm January 19, 2012 the Decree of the Govemnment of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 139 approved final order of
disiribution of the Fund's net income for 2010 in the amount of 9,077 million Tenge and setthed prepavment of
dividends {Natir £5).
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